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 1                 BEFORE THE ARIZONA POWER PLANT
 2            AND TRANSMISSION LINE SITING COMMITTEE
 3   IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF     ) DOCKET NO.
     ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY IN       ) L-00000D-02-
 4   CONFORMANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF    ) 0120
     ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES SECTION 40-360,)
 5   ET SEQ., FOR A CERTIFICATE OF           ) DOCKET NO.
     ENVIRONMENTAL COMPATIBILITY             ) L-00000D-06-
 6   AUTHORIZING THE NORTH VALLEY 230KV      ) 0635-00131
     FACILITY PROJECT, CASE NO. 120 INCLUDING)
 7   THE CONSTRUCTION OF APPROXIMATELY 31    )
     MILES OF 230KV TRANSMISSION LINES, TWO  )
 8   230KV SUBSTATIONS, AND THREE SUBSTATION ) APPLICATION TO
     INTERCONNECTIONS IN MARICOPA COUNTY,    )     AMEND
 9   ARIZONA, ORIGINATING AT THE WESTWING    )  DECISION NO.
     SUBSTATION IN SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 4    )     65997
10   NORTH, RANGE 1 WEST, G&SRB&M AND        )      AND
     INTERCONNECTING AT THE RACEWAY          )  DECISION NO.
11   SUBSTATION IN SECTIONS 4 AND 5, TOWNSHIP)     69343
     5 NORTH, RANGE 1 EAST, G&SRB&M,         )
12   CONTINUING TO THE PROPOSED AVERY        )
     SUBSTATION IN SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 5    )
13   NORTH, RANGE 2 EAST, G&SRB&M AND THE    )
     PROPOSED MISTY WILLOW SUBSTATION IN     )
14   SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 3    )
     EAST, G&SRB&M, AND TERMINATING AT THE   )
15   PINNACLE PEAK SUBSTATION IN SECTION 10, )
     TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 4 EAST, G&SRB&M.)
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 1             BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and
 2   numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the
 3   Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting
 4   Committee, via videoconference, in Phoenix, Arizona,
 5   commencing at 2:07 p.m. on the 4th of June, 2021.
 6
 7   BEFORE:   THOMAS K. CHENAL, Chairman
 8
 9
     APPEARANCES:
10
11   For the Applicant:
12        SNELL & WILMER, L.L.P.
          By Mr. Matt Derstine
13        One Arizona Center
          400 East Van Buren, Suite 1900
14        Phoenix, Arizona 85004
15        and
16        PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
          Law Department
17        By Ms. Linda Benally
          400 North Fifth Street
18        Phoenix, Arizona 85004
19
     For the Arizona Corporation Commission Staff:
20
          Mr. Stephen Emedi
21        Staff Attorney, Legal Division
          1200 West Washington Street
22        Phoenix, Arizona 85007
23
24
25
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 1   ALSO PRESENT:
 2        Mr. Jason Spitzkoff, Manager, Engineering T&D, APS
 3        Mr. Kevin Duncan, Senior Siting Consultant, APS
 4        Mr. Kevin Langbaum, Corporate Communications
               Manager, Customer Communications, APS
 5
          Ms. Anna Chaulk, State Regulatory Analyst, APS
 6
          Mr. Mark Turner, Environmental Consultant, AECOM
 7
          Mr. Tod Brewer, Assistant to Chairman Chenal
 8
 9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25


Coash & Coash, Inc.







LS CASES 120 & 131    PREFILING CONFERENCE   06/04/2021 Page 5


 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  Good afternoon, everyone.  My
 2   name is Tom Chenal.  This is the time set for the
 3   prefiling conference.
 4            And may I have appearances, please.
 5            Ms. Benally, do you want to start?  We just need
 6   appearances for the record, so if you just state your
 7   name and who you are here on behalf of.
 8            MS. BENALLY:  Linda Benally.  I represent APS.
 9            MR. DERSTINE:  Matt Derstine of Snell & Wilmer
10   representing APS.
11            MR. EMEDI:  Stephen Emedi on behalf of the
12   Arizona Corporation Commission.
13            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right, good.
14            Sorry?
15            MS. BENALLY:  Chairman.
16            MR. LANGBAUM:  Can I introduce myself here?
17            CHMN. CHENAL:  Sure.
18            MR. LANGBAUM:  Kevin Langbaum on behalf of APS.
19            CHMN. CHENAL:  Very good.  Thank you.
20            MR. DERSTINE:  And I think we have got one or
21   two others.
22            Kevin Duncan, are you on as well?
23            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.  I am Kevin Duncan on behalf
24   of APS.
25            MR. TURNER:  And also Mark Turner with AECOM,
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 1   consultant to APS.
 2            MS. CHAULK:  Hi.  And I am on, too.  I'm Anna
 3   Chaulk with APS in the regulatory department.
 4            And I apologize.  I am having connectivity.  So
 5   I am going to stay off camera.  I can see and hear you.
 6   And that's good enough for now.
 7            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.
 8            MS. CHAULK:  Thank you.
 9            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.
10            MR. DERSTINE:  I will start just briefly.
11            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Matt, I'm sorry.
12            MR. DERSTINE:  Oh, there he is.
13            Jason.
14            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Jason Spitzkoff -- I apologize
15   for my tardiness -- with APS.
16            MR. DERSTINE:  Jason, would you please adjust
17   your camera so the Chairman can see what you are
18   wearing.
19            CHMN. CHENAL:  Full disclosure, Jason.
20            All right.  We are good.
21            MR. DERSTINE:  Well, just briefly, so this is a
22   prefiling conference.  You are right.  We have talked on
23   this matter a couple of times through informal
24   conferences.  I know you have your checklist, kind of
25   the standard prefiling conference checklist.  We have
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 1   covered some of those things.  So I think we are ready.
 2   You gave us some input on some of those issues, sign
 3   locations, et cetera, study area.  So we took your good
 4   advice on those.
 5            I think in a prior one of our informal
 6   conferences you had suggested or requested that we give
 7   you a little bit of a presentation on APS's approach to
 8   the use of social media now that that's kind of come to
 9   the fore of the Committee.  I know your last, your
10   procedural order for an upcoming case includes a
11   provision on the use of social media.  So we have --
12   Mr. Langbaum is here to give you a presentation on how
13   APS has used and plans to use social media.
14            And then I think we want to, when you get to
15   those sections of your checklist on timing for
16   publication and the notice, this hearing is scheduled
17   for July the 26th.  We are filing our, we are scheduled
18   to file the supplement.  Again, this is a, it is an
19   amendment to two CECs.  It is under 40-252, but we are
20   packaging this filing in support of the application to
21   amend as a CEC application.  That is, it contains all
22   the relevant information of a normal CEC application,
23   which would, in my mind -- we are planning to comply
24   with the rules, but Ms. Benally and I were talking
25   earlier today.
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 1            I am a little bit concerned that, if we file on
 2   July 11th, that we would be way ahead of the
 3   July hearing date.  So when we get there, let's talk
 4   through that to see if it makes sense to adjust the time
 5   for either the filing of the supplement, although we are
 6   ready to go with that, or probably, more importantly,
 7   the publication of the notice of hearing so that it is
 8   closer in time to the hearing, and as well as the
 9   posting.  So when you get there, we are ready to talk
10   about that a bit.
11            And then as I mentioned on the social media
12   issue, whenever you want to address that, Mr. Langbaum
13   is ready to talk through and give you a bit of a
14   presentation on APS and social media.
15            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Very good.  Let's go
16   through my checklist.  Again, I don't think this is
17   going to take all that long, but I would be interested
18   in the items that you just raised, Mr. Derstine.
19            Let me ask just generally how much public
20   interest there is in the project that might lead to
21   additional public comment or intervenors or anything of
22   that nature.
23            MR. DERSTINE:  I will just jump in.
24            In terms of the -- we just, we are just
25   announcing the project.  Obviously the application to
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 1   amend has been filed.  Intervenors in those two siting
 2   cases, CEC 131 and CEC 120, have received notice.
 3   Beyond that, we are just getting ready to go forward
 4   with a virtual open house and newsletters or mailings
 5   that would publicize the open house.
 6            So I don't know that we are in a position now to
 7   gauge how much, you know, public interest or concern
 8   there will be over the project.  I think we anticipate
 9   that there won't be a lot given the nature of the case
10   and what we are seeking to do, which is simply, you
11   know, move the line a bit further north to accommodate
12   the new TSMC project.  But I think the answer to your
13   question is we don't really have an answer for you yet
14   in terms of how much public interest there will be.
15            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  All right.  Well,
16   let's talk about just briefly the project description.
17   And if there are any exhibits to go with this hearing,
18   let's make sure they are marked and will be attached to
19   the transcript.
20            I think, you know, it is a little harder to do
21   these remotely.  I think the last time I did it I forgot
22   to use the magic words attach map or so and so as
23   Exhibit A to the transcript.  So let's make sure we do
24   that this time, or make sure I do it.
25            So let's get a brief description and we will
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 1   attach any, review exhibits and attach those as
 2   exhibits.
 3            Mr. Derstine, if that's you, or if it is --
 4            MR. DERSTINE:  I think it is Mr. Spitzkoff
 5   and/or Mr. Duncan.
 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Very good.
 7            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Yes.  So I am going to go
 8   through the project description.  And I am going to
 9   bring it up to the screen.
10            So this is the map, I think, you know, part of
11   your reference that we will use and attach.  However --
12            CHMN. CHENAL:  This would be Exhibit A, then, to
13   the transcript.
14            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Okay.  We will do that.
15            CHMN. CHENAL:  We need to make sure the court
16   reporter has a copy of any exhibit to the hearing.
17            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Definitely.
18            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.
19            MR. DERSTINE:  I think we have forwarded
20   whatever we are going to present on the screen and that
21   you will identify as exhibits to this proceeding,
22   Mr. Chairman.  We have then forwarded those to
23   Mr. Brewer.  And I think he may have already forwarded
24   those on to the court reporter, or will do so.  I think
25   I'm right about that.
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 1            MR. BREWER:  That's correct.  I sent it to the
 2   reporter.
 3            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you, Tod.
 4            So we are looking at Figure 1, Project Vicinity
 5   Map, which will be Exhibit A to this conference.
 6            MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Spitzkoff, let me interrupt
 7   you before you start.
 8            To augment what Mr. Derstine just commented on,
 9   the only exhibit that we have not sent to Mr. Brewer is
10   the PowerPoint presentation that Mr. Langbaum will be
11   speaking from today.  We will send that over at the
12   close of the hearing, meeting today.
13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Very good.
14            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Okay.  So, Mr. Chairman, the
15   Figure 1 map, which will be Exhibit A, I will orient
16   everyone to what we are seeing here.  So through the
17   north-south alignment, sort of on the middle right side
18   is the I-17, Interstate 17.  The alignment I am showing
19   that's labeled as 74 here, this is Carefree Highway.  A
20   little bit further down going east-west is the 303
21   highway here.
22            And then all of the shaded area in blue is state
23   land.  That's designated as state land.  Anything that
24   does not have a color is private land.
25            And this, this other shade of blue, I don't
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 1   know, a little darker blue, is Game & Fish land.  So
 2   this is generally going to be covered over the Ben Avery
 3   facilities.  Coming down the middle of the page here,
 4   the 51st Avenue alignment, that's here.
 5            So going into some of the more detailed, what
 6   you see here, the dashed line that goes around this
 7   project is the project study area.  The red line that
 8   shows up coming through here, that's the existing
 9   500/230 line alignment as it is today.  It is already
10   constructed.  It was authorized between CECs 131 and
11   120.
12            The blue hashed area that you see around that
13   line, we are showing those -- we thought it was good
14   reference -- that was the previously certificated
15   corridor with those projects.  So we have those for
16   reference.  The yellow or orange hash marks that you can
17   see behind that here, that's the previously certificated
18   siting area for the Avery substation.  The solid green
19   is our Avery substation location.  Avery substation is
20   covered in CEC 120.
21            So we are staying within the certificated area.
22   The subject of this amendment is going to be more about
23   expanding the size of that substation.  But we are still
24   within the previously certificated area.
25            The dotted hash marked area here that you could
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 1   see outlines the TSMC land.  So that's the land they
 2   purchased from Arizona State Land Department in, I think
 3   it was, December of just this past year.
 4            The yellow hashed area will be the proposed
 5   corridor expansion.  So that will cover -- as you could
 6   see, the black line here is symbolized as the reroute of
 7   the existing line that we would like to do.  So, in
 8   essence, the red that you see between those, where the
 9   black line connects, will go away and be replaced by
10   this black line routing here.  And the yellow is what
11   our proposed expansion will be.  That will allow us to
12   site that line with enough area to move it as far north
13   as we need.
14            The pink box represents the TS22 substation
15   siting area.  So like the Avery box here, this box is
16   the actual footprint representation of the Avery
17   substation within the hashed siting area.  This box is
18   equivalent to the orange siting area.  So a TS22
19   substation would be somewhere within this box.  This
20   box, I believe, I forget the exact number, I think it
21   was 409, 439 acres, something like that.  The substation
22   itself will be approximately 80 acres within there.
23            And then -- so that's the project description.
24   I think we will -- you will have future questions, talk
25   about notice area and all that.  So I think I will stop
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 1   here for that part.
 2            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you.
 3            Well, let's then talk about the notice of
 4   hearing and other hearing issues and get into the social
 5   media and the timing of it.
 6            So, Mr. Derstine, I mean the proposed hearing
 7   dates are July 26 through, I don't know, 29th or 30th,
 8   depending how many days we want to make sure we have it
 9   reserved for.  But then I looked at the draft notice of
10   hearing.  It looks appropriate to me.  I didn't
11   really -- I took a quick look at it.  I just really got
12   it.
13            Let's talk about who you are going to publish
14   the notice with.  I assume the Republic.
15            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Duncan, do you want to
16   talk about the --
17            I mean, assuming we are going to file the
18   supplement this -- the package that looks like a CEC
19   application on June 11th, then I think Mr. Duncan is
20   prepared to identify what our proposed publication dates
21   are in the newspapers that we will use.
22            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.  Thank you, Mr. Derstine.
23            Mr. Chairman, the newspapers that we plan to
24   publish in would be the Arizona Republic, Zones 1 and 3,
25   on Wednesday, Friday -- sorry.  Their publication cycle
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 1   is Wednesday, Friday, Saturday.  We propose to publish
 2   on Wednesday, June 16th, and Saturday, June 19th, in
 3   that, for that newspaper.
 4            For the Foothills Focus, it covers portions of
 5   nearby areas.  It's publication cycle is only on
 6   Wednesday.  So we propose to publish also on Wednesday,
 7   June 16th.
 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  A second publication or
 9   just the one for the Foothills?
10            MR. DUNCAN:  Just the one.
11            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  All right.  Well, that
12   sounds acceptable.
13            Mr. Derstine, have you and Ms. Benally had a
14   discussion about the timing of the publication of giving
15   of notice?
16            MR. DERSTINE:  I just wanted to raise with you
17   whether -- you know, this is, it is not different than,
18   you know, other cases in which our hearing date is maybe
19   40 days out from the filing of the application.  We just
20   wanted to raise whether or not it is, given that it is
21   really a 40-252 proceeding, and I will look for some
22   legal advice from Staff through Mr. Emedi if he thinks
23   otherwise, I don't think this is governed by 40-360 in
24   terms of the timing rules, but we are happy to comply
25   with those as if it were a new CEC application.  I just
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 1   wanted to raise whether you thought it made sense to
 2   delay the publication of the notice to a time that's
 3   closer to the July 26 hearing date, because we have the
 4   flexibility.  But maybe it makes sense, given all,
 5   everything, that we should just follow the rules as the
 6   statute is written, even though, technically, it is not
 7   a new CEC application.
 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, let me ask this question.
 9   Mr. Emedi can ponder the answer to your question.  I
10   didn't review the, you know, the statutes and the rules
11   on the notice.  But aren't those more in terms of
12   minimum time limit?  In other words, you have to have
13   the publications and notice at least a certain number of
14   days before.  I mean it is more, it is more a
15   limitation.  It is not a maximum period, I guess is what
16   I am saying.
17            MR. DERSTINE:  Well, there is -- so, and I don't
18   have it in front of me either, but my recollection is
19   that 04, 40-360.04 says we have to provide notice within
20   10 days of the filing of the application or actually you
21   signing the notice of hearing.
22            CHMN. CHENAL:  Notice of hearing, right.
23            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah.  So that's the trigger.  So
24   that starts that 10-day clock.  So we would have to
25   publish within 10 days.  The timeline that Mr. Duncan
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 1   provided you complies with 04 in terms of meeting that
 2   first publication within the 10 days.  And then your
 3   procedural order requires that we get the signs in the
 4   ground 20 days before the hearing.  That's not a
 5   problem.
 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  Right.
 7            MR. DERSTINE:  It is posting.  But it is really
 8   the trigger of, you know, the early publication of the
 9   notice of hearing.  And we are happy to comply with it.
10   We just, we just thought we would raise it with you.
11            CHMN. CHENAL:  Let's do it the way that is.  It
12   is within the 30 to 60 days, you know, after the -- the
13   hearing would be within 30 to 60 days after technically
14   the notice is given.  So let's just do it the way you
15   proposed.
16            MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.
17            CHMN. CHENAL:  It is one less avenue of attack
18   if someone wants to attack this down the road.  You
19   know, clearly this will work, you know.  You know, if we
20   deviate from it, who knows what kind of mischief someone
21   could cause.
22            MR. DERSTINE:  Right.  Very good.
23            CHMN. CHENAL:  So...
24            All right.  Signs and lo --
25            Yes, Ms. Benally.
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 1            MS. BENALLY:  I am sorry, Mr. Chairman.
 2            So based on the review that we have done with
 3   the newspapers, they would have to have the final
 4   publication by the 9th of June, so just from a timing
 5   standpoint for you to be aware of when you issue your
 6   notice of hearing in order to meet the publication date
 7   of June 16th and June 19.
 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  So say that again, please.  When
 9   do they have to --
10            MS. BENALLY:  June the 9th is the date that, I
11   believe.
12            Mr. Duncan, you can verify that for me if I am
13   inaccurate.
14            MR. DUNCAN:  No, you are correct.  June 9th is
15   when those need to be at the newspaper.
16            CHMN. CHENAL:  But I thought your filing is
17   going to be June 11th.
18            MR. DERSTINE:  Right.  So I guess we can, we can
19   reconvene on that.
20            But, so if we file June 11th, Kevin, if we slide
21   back our -- and the Chairman signs the notice of hearing
22   on or about June 11th, I assume we can still get a
23   publication within 10 days.  We just may slide back from
24   the June 16th original publication date.  And maybe what
25   you have set up --
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 1            MR. DUNCAN:  Let me clarify.  Is it 10 business
 2   days or 10 calendar days?
 3            MR. DERSTINE:  10 days straight, yeah, calendar
 4   days.
 5            MR. DUNCAN:  I am going to say that they -- it
 6   would probably -- that's going to put it on the 10th
 7   day.  That would be -- because, because Foothills Focus
 8   only runs on Wednesday, and the Republic doesn't run on
 9   Monday or Tuesday.  So in both cases it would be the
10   10th day.
11            MR. DERSTINE:  So the Republic doesn't run ads
12   on Monday or Tuesday in the zones that you are looking
13   to publish, is that right?
14            MR. DUNCAN:  That's right.  And Foothills Focus
15   only runs on Wednesday.  So if we are talking about
16   10 days from the 11th, that's -- let's see.
17            Actually, we cannot meet that.  That would put
18   us outside that window.
19            CHMN. CHENAL:  It is really not 10 days from
20   the -- and I apologize.  It is harder doing this when
21   you are -- when I am not in the office and I have all my
22   books in front of me and statutes and, you know.
23            But I think the statute is not technically 10
24   days from filing.  It is 10 -- it is within giving
25   notice.
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 1            And, Mr. Derstine, maybe help me out here, but
 2   can we just -- can I just hold the notice of hearing and
 3   sign it a day later and start the clock ticking?  I
 4   mean, will that assist in meeting the schedule or give
 5   you --
 6            MR. DERSTINE:  Or it sounds like maybe what we
 7   would do is, can we file earlier?  Are we in a position
 8   to file earlier Kevin?  Does that work?
 9            MR. DUNCAN:  We are not in a position to file
10   earlier.  In order for us to, in order for us to make
11   10 days, because the publication date would be the 23rd,
12   that's the earliest Wednesday we could get if we don't
13   make the 16th.  And 10 days back from the 23rd is the
14   13th.  That is the Sunday following our filing.
15            MS. BENALLY:  I have the rule relating to the
16   notice requirement.  So if you don't mind, I can share
17   that really quickly.
18            Basically it says:  The presiding officer shall,
19   within 10 days after receiving an application, provide
20   public notice as to time and place of hearing on the
21   application.  So it is 10 days from the time the
22   application is filed.
23            CHMN. CHENAL:  Are you reading the statute or
24   the rule?
25            MS. BENALLY:  The rule.
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 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  You are reading the rule.  The
 2   statute is a little different.  But there is a little
 3   inconsistency there, I think.
 4            MR. DERSTINE:  Well, I guess the difficulty with
 5   this is that the particular -- we need to get one notice
 6   up within 10 days.
 7            And, Kevin, you are saying none of the, either
 8   the Republic or that Foothills paper won't accommodate
 9   that unless the Chairman signs it on the 9th?
10            MR. DUNCAN:  That is correct.  Well, yes,
11   because the 9th is the day we have to have it to the
12   newspapers in order to -- they, both newspapers, require
13   a week.
14            CHMN. CHENAL:  Can I postdate it?  Can we give
15   it to them on the 9th but I date it the 11th?
16            MR. DUNCAN:  I don't think the newspaper is
17   going to reject it, as long as we all feel that's
18   aboveboard.
19            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well --
20            MR. DERSTINE:  It is effective on the 11th
21   anyway.
22            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yeah.  I don't know why it
23   wouldn't be.  They just need something so they can get
24   it in their publication process so it is ready to be
25   published on the 16th.  I don't -- if what they publish
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 1   on the 16th is dated the 11th, I don't think they really
 2   care.
 3            MR. DERSTINE:  Right.
 4            CHMN. CHENAL:  Right?  I think, I mean correct
 5   me if I'm wrong, but I think that will work.  I am happy
 6   to do that, by the way.
 7            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah.  I think if we can -- you
 8   have our proposed draft notice of hearing.  You can
 9   review it and mark up whatever you think needs to be
10   edited or changed.  And then if you are in a position to
11   then sign it and postdate it effective the 11th, then we
12   can send it back to the newspapers.  They can use that
13   to do their markup and their galley sheet for the actual
14   publication.  And that meets their timing requirements.
15   I think that works legally and works for the paper.
16            CHMN. CHENAL:  So today is the 4th.  5th, 6th,
17   the 7th is Monday.  I will look at this this afternoon
18   and I will get it back to Tod.  He can get it to you.
19            I doubt there will be any changes other than
20   filling in the dates and things like that.  I did look
21   at it briefly.  Nothing jumped out at me.  So assuming
22   you get it back later this afternoon, you can do it in
23   final.  If you want to send it to me Monday, I can sign
24   it and we get it back to you.  So you will have it on
25   the 7th.  But we will have it dated the -- maybe if,
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 1   when you send it back for me to sign it, you can fill in
 2   the dates, you know, the 11th so I don't inadvertently
 3   write the 7th or whatever the date is.
 4            MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.
 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  I think that works.
 6            MR. DERSTINE:  Yep, I agree.
 7            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Signs and locations.
 8            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes, I will speak to that.
 9            So I know you have seen this map before.
10            Jason, can you share the sign map, please.
11            So once this --
12            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Kevin, who are you asking?
13            MR. DUNCAN:  I am sorry.  Jason, I thought -- I
14   can bring it up.  Just give me a moment.  Sorry.  I
15   didn't have it ready.
16            MR. SPITZKOFF:  I have it.  I just didn't hear
17   who you asked.
18            MR. DUNCAN:  Oh, okay.
19            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Okay.  That is Figure 1.  And
20   here is our sign map.  This was, the base layer behind
21   this is an older, older figure --
22            MR. DUNCAN:  We are going to be updating --
23            MR. SPITZKOFF:  -- that shows --
24            MR. DUNCAN:  -- this, yeah, we are going to be
25   updating this map just to reflect that if -- it does
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 1   show an older version, but in terms of the sign
 2   locations, they are accurate.
 3            So the Sign No. 1 location is just south of the
 4   entrance into the Ben Avery shooting facility but on the
 5   south side.  The sign will be placed on state lane.
 6            Sign No. 2 is at the south end of the entrance
 7   into the Arizona Game & Fish Department's headquarters,
 8   but, again, will be on the south side.
 9            Both of those signs are in areas that have
10   established large turnoff areas.  So even though the
11   signs will be set back from the road, there will be room
12   there for people to pull up, take a picture safely
13   and/or read the sign, and get back in their car and be
14   on their way.
15            Sign No. 3 is located adjacent to 51st Avenue.
16   Again, it will be on state land.  And we are putting
17   this in a location where there is an adequate pull-off
18   area for people to safely be able to see that sign.
19            And Sign No. 4, the appearance here shows it as
20   if it is on the private land, but it actually will be on
21   the state land, on the south there of the Carefree
22   Highway alignment.  But, again, it will be on the state
23   land but in an area where there is adequate room for
24   people to pull over safely and photograph or view the
25   sign.
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 1            So those four locations are all generally in the
 2   project vicinity in areas where people who are here by
 3   the area would see it.  And I know this has been
 4   discussed with you previously.  So those are our four
 5   locations.
 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  Those are fine to me.  Let's make
 7   the map we are looking at Exhibit 2 this conference,
 8   and, again, to make sure that the Colette has a copy.
 9            THE REPORTER:  Did you want 2 or B?
10            CHMN. CHENAL:  B.  If the other one was A, this
11   will be B.  If the first one was 1, this will be 2.
12   Makes no difference.
13            Okay.  I think that's good.  Let's talk now
14   about social media.
15            Mr. Langbaum.  Did I pronounce your name
16   correctly?
17            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes.  Thank you.
18            MR. DUNCAN:  Do you want to review the sign
19   text --
20            CHMN. CHENAL:  I am sorry, yes.
21            MR. DUNCAN:  -- before --
22            CHMN. CHENAL:  I do.  And we do it for the
23   record.  I jumped ahead because I already looked at it
24   when it was sent to me earlier today.  And it looked
25   acceptable.  But let's make sure that's correct.
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 1            And so this will become Exhibit No. 3.  Let's
 2   make them numerical, Colette.
 3            THE REPORTER:  Okay.
 4            MR. DUNCAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
 5            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Okay.  I think I have the latest
 6   version, but I don't know.  We will find out.
 7            MS. BENALLY:  That is not the current version.
 8            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Okay.  Well, then, does anyone
 9   else have it?
10            MS. BENALLY:  I sent it to the team at
11   12:08 p.m.  Mr. Spitzkoff, would you mind checking your
12   email to see if you might be able to look at it?
13            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Yep, I got your email.
14            MS. BENALLY:  Thank you very much.
15            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Okay.  There we go.  That's it?
16            MS. BENALLY:  Yes.  Thank you.
17            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Okay.  Kevin, or I don't know
18   who is talking to this.
19            MR. DUNCAN:  Oh, yes.  So this is me.  This is
20   talking about the -- this is the text that we intended
21   for the roadside signs.
22            Mr. Chairman.
23            CHMN. CHENAL:  Can you scroll up so we can see
24   the bottom?  Oh, it is just the -- okay.  That's it.
25   All right.
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 1            MR. DERSTINE:  And we had elected, or I
 2   suggested that we not include a map just because it is
 3   hard to get all the relevant information in a letter
 4   size format people can read.  And so that was --
 5   (indiscernible).
 6            THE REPORTER:  Mr. Derstine.
 7            (The reporter requested repetition.)
 8            MR. DERSTINE:  My suggestion was not to include
 9   a map, Mr. Chairman.  I am not sure how you feel about
10   it.  It just seems like a lot of information to put on a
11   road sign.  But if we need to include the map on the
12   sign, we can do it.
13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, it is a difficult issue.  I
14   would rather see a map.  I would rather see a map,
15   frankly.  That's kind of the way we have done it in past
16   hearings.
17            I certainly would like to have the discussion
18   with the Committee on that.  On the times I have seen
19   signs, it is somewhat helpful.  And I don't think it
20   would be too hard to add it.  I know that it would be
21   accessible by the link, but I think it would be more
22   helpful to have the map than not, even though this is
23   squishing it a little to get it onto the sign.  And we
24   can talk to the Committee about it when it comes up in
25   the hearing if there is much, you know, if there is much
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 1   thought about, about whether or not to have the map
 2   associated with the sign.
 3            MR. DERSTINE:  Very good.
 4            MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Chairman, this is Ms. Benally.
 5   The only other comment I would like to make is the date
 6   and time will be revised to reflect whatever you advise
 7   that we set for this hearing.
 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yeah.  I thought the 28th was a
 9   little optimistic.  I don't know.  Maybe it is not.
10   Maybe we finish then.  But, you know, I may want to
11   include a little more time just in case.  I don't know.
12   We can talk about that in a minute.
13            But the form looks fine to me.  The language
14   looks fine.  I prefer, Mr. Derstine, to see a map.  I
15   appreciate the issue.  But I would rather have it than
16   not.  Then we can discuss it with the Committee when it
17   comes up at the hearing just to make sure that, you
18   know, the Committee is all on the same page going
19   forward.  That would be a pretty big change to me, and I
20   would rather have the input of the Committee on that.
21            MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.
22            CHMN. CHENAL:  So all right.
23            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Do we need to provide this or
24   have we already provided it as like Exhibit C?
25            CHMN. CHENAL:  That would be Exhibit 3, yes.
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 1   What is on the screen will be marked as Exhibit 3 to
 2   this conference.  Thank you.
 3            Notice to affected jurisdictions.  Mr. Derstine,
 4   can you remind me which jurisdictions are affected by
 5   this?
 6            MR. DERSTINE:  I will let Mr. Spitzkoff or
 7   Mr. Duncan respond to that.
 8            MR. DUNCAN:  I will be happy to respond to that.
 9            So the, Mr. Chairman, the affected jurisdictions
10   include the City of Phoenix.  The entire project area is
11   within the City of Phoenix.  It also impacts the Arizona
12   State Land Department, being that the entirety of the,
13   the planned relocated line is on Arizona State Trust
14   Land.
15            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.
16            MR. DERSTINE:  And is it also all within
17   Maricopa County, Kevin?
18            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes, it is all within Maricopa
19   County as well.
20            CHMN. CHENAL:  So I think we would want to
21   include all three of those.
22            MR. DERSTINE:  Right.
23            MR. DUNCAN:  Very good.
24            CHMN. CHENAL:  Any reason to include -- we don't
25   have to -- Game & Fish?  I mean --
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 1            MR. DUNCAN:  We --
 2            CHMN. CHENAL:  -- it is south of their property,
 3   I understand.
 4            MR. DUNCAN:  We have not felt the need to
 5   include them, as there are no direct impacts.  Yeah, the
 6   line potentially would be moved closer to their
 7   property, but still at a great distance.  So we didn't
 8   feel it necessary.
 9            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Understood.  I don't
10   dispute that.
11            Mr. Langbaum, let's talk about social media now.
12            MR. LANGBAUM:  Thank you.
13            Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman.  My name is Kevin
14   Langbaum.
15            CHMN. CHENAL:  Langbaum.
16            MR. LANGBAUM:  It is fine.
17            I am the manager of customer communications at
18   APS.  I have been here for 13 years, all in corporate
19   communications, including eight years in which I have
20   overseen our social media in various roles.
21            I want to talk today a little bit about how we
22   use social media with our line siting outreach.  So I am
23   going to pull up a deck that I will walk through.
24            Okay.  Let me know if you are seeing it.
25            CHMN. CHENAL:  Not yet.
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 1            MR. DERSTINE:  And I think, as Ms. Benally
 2   indicated, we will get this deck to the court reporter.
 3   And I assume you will want to mark it for the record as
 4   Exhibit 4.
 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yes.  Thank you.
 6            MR. LANGBAUM:  Okay.  Are you seeing it now?
 7            CHMN. CHENAL:  Negative.
 8            MR. DUNCAN:  No.
 9            MR. DERSTINE:  No.
10            MR. LANGBAUM:  Okay.  Let me try again.  It
11   shows that I am sharing it.
12            So how about now?
13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yes.
14            MR. LANGBAUM:  Okay.  So we are currently using
15   a variety of channels to publicize line siting open
16   houses, public comment or hearings, including direct
17   mail, email, newspaper advertising, our websites, and
18   social media.
19            What we are, what we are using for social media
20   is Facebook advertising.  This is part of an effective
21   overall media mix.  We use advertising to reach
22   customers geographically based on the impacted areas of
23   the project.
24            We can run these advertisements during the
25   virtual open house period and point people through the
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 1   links in the ad to the virtual open house website and
 2   invite them to share their comments or ask questions.
 3            CHMN. CHENAL:  Oh, one second.  Can we go back?
 4            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes.
 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  What does the last comment mean?
 6   You have to dumb that one down for me.
 7            MR. LANGBAUM:  Okay.  So we have a Facebook
 8   page, an APS Facebook page.  We can post anything we
 9   want on it.  And the people who follow our page will
10   see, only the people who followed our page would see
11   that in their feeds.  That's referred to as an organic
12   post.
13            Paid advertising does not live on our page.  It
14   shows up in the feeds of the people that we are trying
15   to reach through the ad.  So it is a little bit
16   different versus posting something on our page.  It
17   really allows us to reach the desired audience.
18            CHMN. CHENAL:  So, rather than organic posts,
19   which I understand now to be, say, followers on
20   Facebook, the specific audience is actually a larger
21   audience of people who are not yet followers who you
22   hope to reach.
23            MR. LANGBAUM:  Correct.
24            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  All right.  Thank you.
25            MR. LANGBAUM:  Okay?  These are two examples of


Coash & Coash, Inc.







LS CASES 120 & 131    PREFILING CONFERENCE   06/04/2021 Page 33


 1   recent efforts, the one on the left, a Facebook ad, the
 2   one on the right, that appears on Instagram, which is
 3   connected to Facebook.  So I will cover that in a
 4   moment.  These are within the last year.  I should point
 5   out that we have started doing these ads about the
 6   middle of last year.
 7            Facebook gives us a broad audience.  It is a
 8   popular site.  We have really good capabilities to reach
 9   the audiences.  We can do it based on a radius
10   surrounding a certain area mileage-wise.  Others you can
11   only look at zip codes.  So this is a really effective
12   way of finding the folks that we want to reach in the
13   areas surrounding the project.
14            CHMN. CHENAL:  Mr. Langbaum, let me stop you
15   right there.  Are you going to discuss in a moment what
16   radius, for example, or area or zip code you are going
17   to use for this project?  In other words, is this just
18   background; you are going to get into the specifics of
19   this case?
20            MR. LANGBAUM:  I was not prepared to get into
21   the specifics of this case.  This is background.  But we
22   certainly can provide that information.
23            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yeah.  So am I to understand that
24   the methods you have just described will be the methods
25   you will use for this project?
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 1            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes.
 2            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  And then, since this is an
 3   issue of the radius surrounding the project area, or the
 4   zip code, what would be your intent as to the radius you
 5   would use of the extent of the zip code area for this
 6   project for purposes of the social media, at least
 7   Facebook?
 8            MR. LANGBAUM:  So I am not prepared to answer
 9   that today.  I would have to research that and get back
10   to you.  We would be able to provide that information.
11            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, do you have like a -- do
12   you have like thoughts or policies or, based on your
13   previous cases, kind of what would normally, you would
14   think, might be appropriate for a case like this?  Now,
15   I'm not holding you to it of course.  I have no idea.  I
16   mean I don't know if it extends to Wickenburg, to
17   Carefree.
18            MR. LANGBAUM:  Kevin, can --
19            MR. DUNCAN:  If I might, Mr. Chairman.
20            So in the last meeting that you had with our
21   team, I was not in attendance but it was brought to my
22   attention that there was a request to extend our
23   notification area slightly to the east to encompass some
24   residential neighborhoods east of I-17 in addition to
25   our notification area, which comprised essentially the
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 1   study area, which was essentially what you saw on the
 2   map that was marked as Exhibit A.
 3            That additional notification area is primarily
 4   the area that these Facebook ads are going to be driven
 5   to.  I don't have an exact statement on the radius.  But
 6   the extended area was shared with the social media team
 7   at APS, and they designed a radius appropriate to
 8   encompass that.  And that is in addition to the other,
 9   you know, handful of property owners that would be
10   receiving the -- that would have received the Facebook
11   ad previously, such as the Arizona Game & Fish
12   Department, the Arizona State Land Department, the Ben
13   Avery Shooting Range, and a few commercial properties
14   along the east side of I-17.
15            So the radius on this one is being extended to
16   include, it is probably what it is -- honestly, I don't
17   have the exact reference in front of me -- but it is
18   probably two separate radiuses that were created, one
19   for the initial study area and then one for the added
20   area to include those residences.
21            That radius probably is somewhere on the order
22   of about a quarter mile, because the additional area
23   would be, if you looked at it as a circle, would be
24   about a, about a quarter mile, you know, if it was, if
25   it was -- if you were to measure it, about a quarter
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 1   mile dimensionally in each direction.
 2            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman.
 3            Kevin, I am sorry.
 4            I was just going to note I think our objective
 5   in using these targeted Facebook ads, Mr. Chairman, is
 6   to mirror the notifications or the mailing list that we
 7   would pull up.  So all the addresses in our notification
 8   area, we are looking to kind of cover that same map with
 9   our Facebook, with our targeted Facebook ads so that the
10   bulk who we have identified would be within the
11   notification area.
12            In this case, as Kevin mentioned, we decided to
13   expand it to include some of those subdivisions a little
14   bit further east of I-17.  But those folks will get the
15   mailings, and they will also be targeted with these
16   Facebook ads.
17            And so that's really, when we are using the term
18   radius here, as I understand what we are really looking
19   at is trying to mirror the same notification area that
20   would cover our mailing list for paper mailing.
21            Is that right, Kevin?
22            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.
23            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes, that's right.
24            CHMN. CHENAL:  And I appreciate that.  That
25   gives, that gives some, you know, context to this.
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 1            I remember in the last meeting we did discuss
 2   picking up a little of the neighborhood to the east of
 3   where, of what had been proposed and that those people
 4   would receive mailers, if I remember correctly.
 5            So the Facebook ads and targeted area would try
 6   to mirror the notice, the same noticed area for the
 7   mailers.  You will have to forgive me.  I didn't know
 8   Facebook could be that precise.
 9            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes.  That's one of the
10   advantages we find to using these ads.
11            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  All right.  Thanks,
12   Mr. Langbaum.  Go ahead.
13            MR. LANGBAUM:  Thank you.  Okay.
14            CHMN. CHENAL:  I wanted to clarify that, and I
15   now have it.  So thank you.
16            MR. LANGBAUM:  Thank you.
17            So I just want to cover a few of the benefits
18   and the limitations, reemphasizing social media is an
19   additional way of reaching customers.  Part of the mix
20   that we have said also includes the mailed notice, the
21   emails and newspaper advertisements.  It can be a cost
22   effective and, as we just discussed, geographically
23   specific way of pointing people to the website or the
24   comment area.
25            As with anything else, you have limitations.
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 1   Not everyone uses social media.  Not everyone is on all
 2   channels of social media.  And even on Facebook we can't
 3   guarantee that, even if you are in that zone, you will
 4   see our ads.  We can, we can do our best.  Like the
 5   traditional tactics, it is effective when it is
 6   appropriate to the audience.  So we are using it as
 7   another tool in our toolkit.
 8            MR. DERSTINE:  Kevin, I am sorry.  Can I stop
 9   you for a minute with a question?
10            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes.
11            MR. DERSTINE:  I saw you had Instagram and
12   Facebook.  I understand Facebook owns Instagram.  So if
13   I am on Instagram but I am not on Facebook, or vice
14   versa, if you are placing a Facebook ad and I just use
15   Instagram, am I going to see that on my feed?  Is there
16   the same geographic targeting for Instagram that you
17   have for Facebook?
18            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes, it should be.  One of the
19   advantages to Facebook is, because the platforms are
20   connected, we can reach Instagram as well.
21            MR. DERSTINE:  So --
22            CHMN. CHENAL:  And then -- sorry.
23            MR. DERSTINE:  Well, I was just going to say,
24   when we had some comments from the last case,
25   particularly from Member Gentles, who said, you know,
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 1   the younger folks use Instagram, maybe the folks in my
 2   generation or older have taken off with Facebook, would
 3   work.  When APS is placing a targeted Facebook ad,
 4   trying to publicize an upcoming case for an open house
 5   for a case, it is going to go through to both channels.
 6   Am I right in understanding that?
 7            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes, that's correct.
 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Now, my question is:  What is
 9   being advertised on Facebook and Instagram?  Is it the
10   open house or is it the hearing that's coming up, or
11   both?
12            MR. LANGBAUM:  Typically, and, Kevin, you can
13   chime in as well on this, but these examples here are --
14   show ads for the virtual open house, which would go out
15   kind of timed to the beginning of that open house so
16   that these would be served for several weeks during the
17   duration of the virtual open house.
18            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.  Thank you, Kevin.
19            Mr. Chairman, on this, for this project
20   specifically, the upcoming Facebook ad would coincide
21   with the opening of our virtual open house and would
22   direct people to the virtual open house.  We would again
23   use the Facebook ad in conjunction with our notice of
24   hearing to help publicize the notice of hearing.  That
25   is a second use that we would have upcoming adjacent to
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 1   the announcement of the virtual open house.
 2            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Let's stop there and just
 3   key in on that for a second.  Okay.  So the notice of
 4   hearing will also be advertised in the same targeted
 5   area as we discussed, both on Facebook and Instagram,
 6   correct?
 7            MR. DUNCAN:  That is correct.
 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Very good.
 9            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Mr. Chairman, just to clarify,
10   our intent with our use of social media in this manner
11   is really to mimic the mailings.  So if we do a mailing,
12   we would do a social media ad campaign with that.  So if
13   we do a mailing for the virtual open house, or in the
14   future even a regular open house, we would do a
15   mailing -- we would do the social media ads.  Same thing
16   when we put a mailing out for notice of hearing, we
17   would do notice in the social media also.  So it is
18   another -- if we are going to send out a postcard or a
19   newsletter, we will also do the social media version.
20            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Very good.
21            MR. LANGBAUM:  So one other thing I want to
22   cover in regards to social media is it is, by nature, an
23   engaged, a two-way engaged conversation.  While we do
24   provide a link to the virtual open house where customers
25   can put their input into the record there, we will treat


Coash & Coash, Inc.







LS CASES 120 & 131    PREFILING CONFERENCE   06/04/2021 Page 41


 1   comments that come in through social media as if they
 2   are coming into every other appropriate channel.  So we
 3   will forward those to the project team.  They will be
 4   logged and they will be responded to as appropriate.
 5            So we do, we do not get a lot on social media
 6   comments about it because there are other venues to do
 7   that, but we do have a process in place to handle that.
 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you.
 9            MR. LANGBAUM:  I want to just talk a little bit
10   about some of the other social media channels.  For
11   Twitter, we do not do the advertising there.  It has a
12   much smaller audience.  It doesn't have the ability to
13   target as effectively with the geographic areas.
14            And then NextDoor is relatively new.  It is
15   growing.  It is evolving.  We will continue to monitor,
16   evaluate, and adjust our best practices in terms of
17   using that as appropriate.  So that's something we are
18   definitely keeping an eye on.
19            And then the last slide I am going to kick over
20   to Jason.  He is going to have some summary of kind of
21   recommendations.
22            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Thank you, Kevin.
23            So, Mr. Chairman, you know, we wanted to provide
24   a background of what our evaluation and our use of
25   social media is to date.  You know, I think you had
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 1   indicated a desire to hear a little bit about that.
 2            As you have seen from Kevin's presentation here,
 3   APS's use at this time is primarily in the Facebook ads
 4   and, you know, the attached Instagram audience also.  We
 5   feel that is the best use of social media to date.  As
 6   he also just mentioned, social media, the platforms that
 7   are out there are always evolving.  So we will, you
 8   know, continuously evaluate the uses and the platforms.
 9            So with that, you know, our recommendation, you
10   know, for future orders regarding use of social media
11   would be to have it as broad as possible and, you know,
12   not as specific, because the uses could even change
13   depending upon the nature of the case, too.  So the
14   flexibility is really key to reach the right audience
15   and the right location for the right project.
16            Some other comments, you know, our plan for
17   social media, you know, most all platforms, people can
18   comment on those.  So if we do get comments from those
19   Facebook ads, we will pull those down and include them
20   as needed in our public comment summaries.  But our
21   intent is to use those ads to drive the audience to the
22   websites where you can have that official comment and an
23   easier back and forth so we can respond to comments as
24   appropriate.
25            So, hopefully, I hope we provided a good
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 1   background for our current use of social media and what
 2   our hope is for future orders of social media providing
 3   that flexibility.
 4            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yeah, thank you.  And I, I am --
 5   I found this to be very helpful, enlightening.  I know
 6   it is a generational thing.  I learned today, for
 7   example, how specific and targeted Facebook could be.  I
 8   did not know it could be as targeted as a mailing.  I
 9   guess it makes sense, but it just, that's new to me that
10   it can be that precise.
11            So I will probably have general language in the
12   procedural order that will say kind of like we treat
13   signage, it will be something like use social media in a
14   manner discussed and directed during the prefiling
15   conference, or something like that, at least for this
16   coming case, just to keep it flexible and loose.  But I
17   think I have the intent.  I know the understanding.  It
18   will be the use of Facebook and Instagram to, to provide
19   notice of the hearing and the virtual, the virtual open
20   house in the area that has been discussed as the area
21   for the giving of notice, including that expanded area
22   to the east side of I-17.
23            At the last, the last time we had a meeting, we
24   did discuss what that area looked like and the size of
25   it.  And we actually got into a discussion of whether it
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 1   should be expanded a little, which you have done.  But
 2   did any of your exhibits describe that area yet today?
 3            MR. DUNCAN:  I am sorry, Mr. Chairman.  This is,
 4   this is Kevin Duncan.
 5            If we can bring Exhibit A, that's the Figure 1
 6   map, back up, I can use that to illustrate the area.
 7            CHMN. CHENAL:  I think we used numbers.  That
 8   will be Exhibit A -- excuse me, Exhibit 1.
 9            MR. DUNCAN:  So basically we include the study
10   area.  Everything within the study area boundary is part
11   of the notification area.  But we also included, if you
12   follow along the Carefree Highway over to basically
13   where state land, the state land begins to the north, I
14   am sorry, over and then basically all down to there,
15   then over to the east, and then down to Dove Valley
16   Road, and then back to the west, that's the area that we
17   added in.
18            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  And that's, looking at
19   Exhibit 1, it is the blue area just to the east of what
20   is depicted as Carefree Highway, Dove Valley Road, and
21   Sonoran Desert Drive.  It is the residential areas that
22   are to the east of North Valley Parkway and bordered on
23   the north by Carefree Highway and the south by Sonoran
24   Desert Drive, at least to the area indicated in blue,
25   and the east, which is the State Trust Land.  So that --
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 1   and all the area to the west, to the freeway.  So --
 2            MR. DUNCAN:  I want to clarify that it is the
 3   area east of the study area between Carefree Highway and
 4   Dove Valley Road.  We did not include the area south of
 5   Dove Valley Road.
 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  And was there a reason?
 7   It looks like they are going to be impacted just as much
 8   to the south of Dove Valley as to the north.
 9            MR. DUNCAN:  The only reason that I can offer,
10   and it is not a very good reason, is that's how it was
11   communicated to me.
12            MR. DERSTINE:  Kevin, can we expand it between
13   Dove Valley south to Sonoran Desert Drive?
14            MR. DUNCAN:  It is not going to be possible to
15   get the mailings to that lower area in time for the
16   virtual open house.  But we certainly could expand that
17   for the Facebook ad.
18            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, what about the noticing --
19   what about the hearing?  I think I am a little bit more
20   concerned about the hearing than the open house.
21            MR. DUNCAN:  The notice of hearing, that
22   certainly can be added in.
23            CHMN. CHENAL:  So let's do that.  Let's, let's
24   include that area south of Dove Valley Road to Sonoran
25   Desert Drive, and to the east -- and I can't tell from
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 1   this map how far east it goes.
 2            MR. DUNCAN:  It continues quite a ways beyond
 3   that boundary.
 4            CHMN. CHENAL:  In terms of residential property?
 5            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.
 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  You see the general north-south
 7   line from Carefree Highway where it becomes public,
 8   where it becomes the State Trust Land?
 9            MR. DUNCAN:  State land, yes, we can use that.
10   And then it looks like there is some sort of a wash or
11   canal there, or something there that could define as the
12   boundary.
13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yes, yes, okay.  Let's use that
14   as best as is possible to pick up that additional
15   residential area.
16            MR. DUNCAN:  Certainly.  No problem.
17            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  All right.  Good.  And at
18   least to make sure if we can pick that up for the
19   notification and Facebook and Instagram for the notice
20   of hearing.
21            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.
22            CHMN. CHENAL:  I know we would not be able to do
23   it for the virtual, the open house, but for the notice
24   of hearing, that would be good.
25            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.
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 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay, very good.
 2            All right.  Let's -- I think the rest of this
 3   should be pretty easy.  Let's go on to the rest of what
 4   I have on my checklist and talk about the hearing.
 5            The location.
 6            MR. DUNCAN:  Okay.  So the hearing location is
 7   intended to be at the Briarwood Country Club located at
 8   20800 North 135th Avenue in Sun City West.
 9            CHMN. CHENAL:  And the estimated time for this,
10   it is going to start changing very -- excuse me.  It is
11   July 26th at 1:00 p.m.  And then there will be an open
12   house or, excuse me, a public comment session that
13   evening starting at 5:30, I would like to say.
14            MR. DUNCAN:  We --
15            CHMN. CHENAL:  Then the remaining hearing dates
16   would be the times 9:30 to 5:00.
17            MR. DUNCAN:  We are estimating, Mr. Chairman,
18   that we believe that this can be finished by the end of
19   the day on the 28th.
20            CHMN. CHENAL:  And what hearing -- I am sorry.
21   I don't have it in the notice of hearing in front of me.
22   What -- let's see if I can pull that up.
23            The public comment will be taken in the evening
24   on the first day.  That's 5:30.  The hearing will begin
25   on the 26th at 1:00 p.m., July 26th.  And the remaining
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 1   days it will go from 9:00 to 5:00 until the completion
 2   of the hearing.
 3            So the question is:  Should the hearing be
 4   noticed to finish on the 28th, which is Wednesday, or
 5   should we add at least one extra day in there to be
 6   safe?
 7            MR. DERSTINE:  Let's add a day to be safe.
 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Is one enough?  Do
 9   you want to add two?
10            MS. BENALLY:  I think what we discussed --
11            I am sorry, Mr. Spitzkoff.  Go ahead.
12            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Mr. Chairman, I think we
13   certainly feel that one would be enough, given the
14   limited area of the project.
15            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  I just warn you.  It
16   sounds like that would be the case.  The unknown is
17   intervenors or people who are opposed to the project
18   come out of the woodwork that we don't know that could
19   delay.  I just, I will scare you, because we have
20   hearings set in August, in September, and a bunch of
21   people lining up for hearings in October.  So if we
22   don't complete it that week, you won't be seeing the
23   completion of this until November at the earliest.
24            MR. SPITZKOFF:  I think we are more than happy
25   to notice the whole week.
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 1            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah.  Do it.
 2            MS. BENALLY:  So I think July -- starting at
 3   1:00 on July 26th, and noticing it to 5:00 on Friday,
 4   July 30th, I think is adequate coverage for any
 5   unexpected matters that may come up.
 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  And I think, I think you should.
 7            The Committee is available, right, Tod?  The
 8   Committee is available that week?
 9            MR. BREWER:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.
10            CHMN. CHENAL:  So I know it is extremely
11   unlikely, and I will push and we can extend the hours of
12   the hearing as necessary, and we can move it along, and
13   I grant you, it should finish by Wednesday, it is just
14   the unknown.
15            I mean my sense is you don't have a -- it is no
16   one's fault, it is just that the waters haven't been
17   tested to find out if there is going to be opposition to
18   this or not, and you just don't know.  So because of
19   that, let's build in a little more, a safety valve just
20   for your benefit.
21            It wouldn't be such a big deal to me if we
22   didn't have all these hearings that are set up.  And I
23   am telling you it is just really jamb packed.  And I
24   mean there are ones we are trying to squeeze in between
25   now and October.  And we are -- even a three-day
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 1   hearing, we can't figure out a way how to do it.
 2            So I am not making this up.  This is, this is
 3   precious time that we have.  I would certainly take
 4   advantage of it, even though it is extremely unlikely
 5   that we will use it.  I just, I just say that.  I think
 6   it is wise to put it in there.
 7            And I know, I think there is authority to, if we
 8   only noticed it for three days and we won't know if it
 9   is going to go longer, I think there is authority that I
10   could continue the hearing, and we could do it that way.
11   But I just would feel safer and I think it is cleaner to
12   do it the way we just discussed.  So just --
13            MR. DUNCAN:  Agreed.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
14            CHMN. CHENAL:  -- that's what you are going to
15   do.
16            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, we are
17   certainly prepared to notice that whole week.
18            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  I think that's smart.
19            MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Chairman, I am sorry, before
20   you continue, would you please confirm that the start
21   time starting on the 27th through the 30th would be
22   9:00 a.m.?
23            CHMN. CHENAL:  9:00.  I misspoke when I said
24   9:30.  It is 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 --
25            MS. BENALLY:  Thank you.


Coash & Coash, Inc.







LS CASES 120 & 131    PREFILING CONFERENCE   06/04/2021 Page 51


 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  -- as normally.
 2            And then the hearing on July 26th, the public
 3   comment portion would be at 5:30.  Okay?
 4            Standard issue of lodging, have arrangements
 5   been made by the applicant for lodging for those people
 6   that want lodging?
 7            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  Lodging
 8   has been arranged, availability at the Hilton Garden Inn
 9   located at 16601 North Stadium Way in Surprise.
10            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Thank you.
11            All right.  Moving on to the tour, we are not
12   going to have a tour in person.  But I would ask the
13   applicant to have, you know, a very good, strong flyover
14   presentation, Google flyover or something like that,
15   drones, whatever, that would take the place of a tour.
16   I believe we have discussed that previously.
17            Is that your intent?
18            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes, it is.
19            Mark, would you mind speaking to that briefly.
20            MR. TURNER:  Yes.  This is Mark Turner with
21   AECOM.
22            Yes, Kevin, we do have a draft flyover available
23   that I could share with you.  John has finished that
24   just as of this morning.  So you have not seen it yet,
25   but it is ready for internal review.


Coash & Coash, Inc.







LS CASES 120 & 131    PREFILING CONFERENCE   06/04/2021 Page 52


 1            MR. DUNCAN:  Thank you, Mark.
 2            CHMN. CHENAL:  Perfect.
 3            Let's talk about a date for prehearing
 4   conference.  Did we already discuss a date?
 5            MS. BENALLY:  Not to my knowledge, Mr. Chair.
 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  So what about the 19th,
 7   July 19th, at 2:00 p.m.?  Does that make sense?
 8            MR. DERSTINE:  That works for me.
 9            MS. BENALLY:  Works for the applicant,
10   Mr. Chairman.
11            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right, Monday, July 19th, at
12   2:00 p.m.
13            I believe we have discussed there is no ongoing
14   litigation or disputes regarding this project or the
15   area that you intend, what is in the application, or
16   will be in the application, is that correct, Ms. Benally
17   or Mr. Derstine?
18            MS. BENALLY:  That's correct, Chairman.
19            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.
20            CHMN. CHENAL:  The procedural order, I will
21   issue that as we normally do.  And I think, like I said,
22   on social media, and, Tod, you will have to make a note
23   here, the social media will be something along the lines
24   of will be done in accordance with what was discussed at
25   the prefiling conference, something pretty general.  I
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 1   know that in the future matters will refine that
 2   language.
 3            The CEC, we will get that by the prehearing
 4   conference.  Kind of the general request is to do red
 5   line versions of any changes to the previous CECs so we
 6   can see what changes are made.  It might be extremely
 7   similar and very similar to the previous case but a few
 8   things have changed, and if you do a red line version,
 9   that's helpful.
10            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah.  Mr. Chairman, this is,
11   again, because this is an amendment process that will go
12   back to the Commission, this will be a recommended
13   opinion and order.
14            CHMN. CHENAL:  That's right.  That's right.
15            MR. DERSTINE:  And so our thought was, because
16   we are dealing with -- you are on what?  The last case
17   was 188?  This is CEC 120 and 131.
18            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yeah.
19            MR. DERSTINE:  Your conditions have evolved
20   probably significantly.  Well, I know they have since
21   then.
22            So our thought was for the conditions for this
23   limited segment of line that's going to be relocated, we
24   will simply, we will follow the general practice for
25   your line siting cases to include the updated conditions
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 1   rather than trying to negotiate conditions from Case 120
 2   to Case 188, that kind of thing.  And so we will, for
 3   this new segment of line, the relocated segment of the
 4   line, the new current conditions will apply, but we will
 5   have language in there that all of the remaining, you
 6   know, conditions as to the original CECs will remain
 7   unchanged or unaffected, it is just this, the relocated
 8   segment of line, that's going to fall under the new
 9   conditions.
10            CHMN. CHENAL:  I think that's fair.  That sounds
11   like it makes some sense.  And I think that will meet
12   the path of least resistance.
13            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah, our thought, too.
14            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yeah, that makes sense.
15            All right.  We always request robust wi-fi for
16   the hearing location.
17            Will the applicant be providing iPads or Surface
18   Pros or something with the application, exhibits
19   located -- downloaded on those devices?
20            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  We will be
21   providing you iPads.
22            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Good.
23            The applicant obviously will discuss with Staff
24   at the Corporation Commission covering all the costs for
25   the hearing?
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 1            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.
 2            CHMN. CHENAL:  Mr. Emedi, did you have any
 3   thoughts or comments regarding any of the matters you
 4   have heard so far?
 5            MR. EMEDI:  No.  Thank you, Chairman Chenal.
 6   Everything you guys have decided on sounds reasonable.
 7            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  I don't really have
 8   anything further.  Anything we need to talk about,
 9   Ms. Benally or Mr. Derstine, or anybody else on the
10   call?
11            (No response.)
12            CHMN. CHENAL:  So my to do list is to review the
13   notice of hearing, get that to Tod this afternoon.  And
14   then he will get it to you all.  And then I doubt there
15   will be -- I am not going to fill in the dates.  I will
16   leave it to you to do that.  If there is any changes, I
17   will note it.  I doubt that there will be.  But then you
18   will get it back to me on Monday or Tuesday.  And as
19   soon as I get it, I will turn it around and get it, and
20   get it back to Tod to get back to you.
21            Sound good?
22            MR. DERSTINE:  That sounds good.  Thank you.
23            CHMN. CHENAL:  Then you will, you will fill in
24   the dates for that, Mr. Derstine.  And I expect it will
25   be dated June 11th for the date of the signing of the
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 1   notice of hearing.  But, you know, give some thought to
 2   that and just make sure that works from your end.  But I
 3   will move that back right away.
 4            And then, Tod, just because this is our
 5   opportunity, we will work on that.  You will draft that
 6   procedural order.
 7            MR. BREWER:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.
 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  That's how we do it.
 9            And then we will have your agenda and the
10   other -- anything else we need ready to go.  And then,
11   because we will be moving quickly if it is going to be
12   filed here on June 11th, so we want to be ready to go.
13            And then we will see everyone on July 19th at
14   2:00 p.m. for the prehearing conference.  And if
15   anything comes up between now and then, we need to
16   speak, we will make ourselves available to do that.
17            MR. DERSTINE:  Thank you.
18            CHMN. CHENAL:  And if nothing else, thank you
19   very much.  We will adjourn.  And please have a good,
20   good weekend.  And we will see, we will see you back
21   here pretty soon.
22            (The
23    proceeding concluded at 3:24 p.m.)
24
25
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     taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,
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 1      CHMN. CHENAL: Good afternoon, everyone.  My
 2  name is Tom Chenal.  This is the time set for the
 3  prefiling conference.
 4      And may I have appearances, please.
 5      Ms. Benally, do you want to start?  We just need
 6  appearances for the record, so if you just state your
 7  name and who you are here on behalf of.
 8      MS. BENALLY: Linda Benally.  I represent APS.
 9      MR. DERSTINE: Matt Derstine of Snell & Wilmer
10  representing APS.
11      MR. EMEDI: Stephen Emedi on behalf of the
12  Arizona Corporation Commission.
13      CHMN. CHENAL: All right, good.
14      Sorry?
15      MS. BENALLY: Chairman.
16      MR. LANGBAUM: Can I introduce myself here?
17      CHMN. CHENAL: Sure.
18      MR. LANGBAUM: Kevin Langbaum on behalf of APS.
19      CHMN. CHENAL: Very good.  Thank you.
20      MR. DERSTINE: And I think we have got one or
21  two others.
22      Kevin Duncan, are you on as well?
23      MR. DUNCAN: Yes.  I am Kevin Duncan on behalf
24  of APS.
25      MR. TURNER: And also Mark Turner with AECOM,
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 1  consultant to APS.
 2      MS. CHAULK: Hi.  And I am on, too.  I'm Anna
 3  Chaulk with APS in the regulatory department.
 4      And I apologize.  I am having connectivity.  So
 5  I am going to stay off camera.  I can see and hear you.
 6  And that's good enough for now.
 7      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.
 8      MS. CHAULK: Thank you.
 9      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.
10      MR. DERSTINE: I will start just briefly.
11      MR. SPITZKOFF: Matt, I'm sorry.
12      MR. DERSTINE: Oh, there he is.
13      Jason.
14      MR. SPITZKOFF: Jason Spitzkoff -- I apologize
15  for my tardiness -- with APS.
16      MR. DERSTINE: Jason, would you please adjust
17  your camera so the Chairman can see what you are
18  wearing.
19      CHMN. CHENAL: Full disclosure, Jason.
20      All right.  We are good.
21      MR. DERSTINE: Well, just briefly, so this is a
22  prefiling conference.  You are right.  We have talked on
23  this matter a couple of times through informal
24  conferences.  I know you have your checklist, kind of
25  the standard prefiling conference checklist.  We have
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 1  covered some of those things.  So I think we are ready.
 2  You gave us some input on some of those issues, sign
 3  locations, et cetera, study area.  So we took your good
 4  advice on those.
 5      I think in a prior one of our informal
 6  conferences you had suggested or requested that we give
 7  you a little bit of a presentation on APS's approach to
 8  the use of social media now that that's kind of come to
 9  the fore of the Committee.  I know your last, your
10  procedural order for an upcoming case includes a
11  provision on the use of social media.  So we have --
12  Mr. Langbaum is here to give you a presentation on how
13  APS has used and plans to use social media.
14      And then I think we want to, when you get to
15  those sections of your checklist on timing for
16  publication and the notice, this hearing is scheduled
17  for July the 26th.  We are filing our, we are scheduled
18  to file the supplement.  Again, this is a, it is an
19  amendment to two CECs.  It is under 40-252, but we are
20  packaging this filing in support of the application to
21  amend as a CEC application.  That is, it contains all
22  the relevant information of a normal CEC application,
23  which would, in my mind -- we are planning to comply
24  with the rules, but Ms. Benally and I were talking
25  earlier today.
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 1      I am a little bit concerned that, if we file on
 2  July 11th, that we would be way ahead of the
 3  July hearing date.  So when we get there, let's talk
 4  through that to see if it makes sense to adjust the time
 5  for either the filing of the supplement, although we are
 6  ready to go with that, or probably, more importantly,
 7  the publication of the notice of hearing so that it is
 8  closer in time to the hearing, and as well as the
 9  posting.  So when you get there, we are ready to talk
10  about that a bit.
11      And then as I mentioned on the social media
12  issue, whenever you want to address that, Mr. Langbaum
13  is ready to talk through and give you a bit of a
14  presentation on APS and social media.
15      CHMN. CHENAL: All right.  Very good.  Let's go
16  through my checklist.  Again, I don't think this is
17  going to take all that long, but I would be interested
18  in the items that you just raised, Mr. Derstine.
19      Let me ask just generally how much public
20  interest there is in the project that might lead to
21  additional public comment or intervenors or anything of
22  that nature.
23      MR. DERSTINE: I will just jump in.
24      In terms of the -- we just, we are just
25  announcing the project.  Obviously the application to
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 1  amend has been filed.  Intervenors in those two siting
 2  cases, CEC 131 and CEC 120, have received notice.
 3  Beyond that, we are just getting ready to go forward
 4  with a virtual open house and newsletters or mailings
 5  that would publicize the open house.
 6      So I don't know that we are in a position now to
 7  gauge how much, you know, public interest or concern
 8  there will be over the project.  I think we anticipate
 9  that there won't be a lot given the nature of the case
10  and what we are seeking to do, which is simply, you
11  know, move the line a bit further north to accommodate
12  the new TSMC project.  But I think the answer to your
13  question is we don't really have an answer for you yet
14  in terms of how much public interest there will be.
15      CHMN. CHENAL: All right.  All right.  Well,
16  let's talk about just briefly the project description.
17  And if there are any exhibits to go with this hearing,
18  let's make sure they are marked and will be attached to
19  the transcript.
20      I think, you know, it is a little harder to do
21  these remotely.  I think the last time I did it I forgot
22  to use the magic words attach map or so and so as
23  Exhibit A to the transcript.  So let's make sure we do
24  that this time, or make sure I do it.
25      So let's get a brief description and we will
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 1  attach any, review exhibits and attach those as
 2  exhibits.
 3      Mr. Derstine, if that's you, or if it is --
 4      MR. DERSTINE: I think it is Mr. Spitzkoff
 5  and/or Mr. Duncan.
 6      CHMN. CHENAL: All right.  Very good.
 7      MR. SPITZKOFF: Yes.  So I am going to go
 8  through the project description.  And I am going to
 9  bring it up to the screen.
10      So this is the map, I think, you know, part of
11  your reference that we will use and attach.  However --
12      CHMN. CHENAL: This would be Exhibit A, then, to
13  the transcript.
14      MR. SPITZKOFF: Okay.  We will do that.
15      CHMN. CHENAL: We need to make sure the court
16  reporter has a copy of any exhibit to the hearing.
17      MR. SPITZKOFF: Definitely.
18      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.
19      MR. DERSTINE: I think we have forwarded
20  whatever we are going to present on the screen and that
21  you will identify as exhibits to this proceeding,
22  Mr. Chairman.  We have then forwarded those to
23  Mr. Brewer.  And I think he may have already forwarded
24  those on to the court reporter, or will do so.  I think
25  I'm right about that.
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 1      MR. BREWER: That's correct.  I sent it to the
 2  reporter.
 3      CHMN. CHENAL: Thank you, Tod.
 4      So we are looking at Figure 1, Project Vicinity
 5  Map, which will be Exhibit A to this conference.
 6      MS. BENALLY: Mr. Spitzkoff, let me interrupt
 7  you before you start.
 8      To augment what Mr. Derstine just commented on,
 9  the only exhibit that we have not sent to Mr. Brewer is
10  the PowerPoint presentation that Mr. Langbaum will be
11  speaking from today.  We will send that over at the
12  close of the hearing, meeting today.
13      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.  Very good.
14      MR. SPITZKOFF: Okay.  So, Mr. Chairman, the
15  Figure 1 map, which will be Exhibit A, I will orient
16  everyone to what we are seeing here.  So through the
17  north-south alignment, sort of on the middle right side
18  is the I-17, Interstate 17.  The alignment I am showing
19  that's labeled as 74 here, this is Carefree Highway.  A
20  little bit further down going east-west is the 303
21  highway here.
22      And then all of the shaded area in blue is state
23  land.  That's designated as state land.  Anything that
24  does not have a color is private land.
25      And this, this other shade of blue, I don't
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 1  know, a little darker blue, is Game & Fish land.  So
 2  this is generally going to be covered over the Ben Avery
 3  facilities.  Coming down the middle of the page here,
 4  the 51st Avenue alignment, that's here.
 5      So going into some of the more detailed, what
 6  you see here, the dashed line that goes around this
 7  project is the project study area.  The red line that
 8  shows up coming through here, that's the existing
 9  500/230 line alignment as it is today.  It is already
10  constructed.  It was authorized between CECs 131 and
11  120.
12      The blue hashed area that you see around that
13  line, we are showing those -- we thought it was good
14  reference -- that was the previously certificated
15  corridor with those projects.  So we have those for
16  reference.  The yellow or orange hash marks that you can
17  see behind that here, that's the previously certificated
18  siting area for the Avery substation.  The solid green
19  is our Avery substation location.  Avery substation is
20  covered in CEC 120.
21      So we are staying within the certificated area.
22  The subject of this amendment is going to be more about
23  expanding the size of that substation.  But we are still
24  within the previously certificated area.
25      The dotted hash marked area here that you could
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 1  see outlines the TSMC land.  So that's the land they
 2  purchased from Arizona State Land Department in, I think
 3  it was, December of just this past year.
 4      The yellow hashed area will be the proposed
 5  corridor expansion.  So that will cover -- as you could
 6  see, the black line here is symbolized as the reroute of
 7  the existing line that we would like to do.  So, in
 8  essence, the red that you see between those, where the
 9  black line connects, will go away and be replaced by
10  this black line routing here.  And the yellow is what
11  our proposed expansion will be.  That will allow us to
12  site that line with enough area to move it as far north
13  as we need.
14      The pink box represents the TS22 substation
15  siting area.  So like the Avery box here, this box is
16  the actual footprint representation of the Avery
17  substation within the hashed siting area.  This box is
18  equivalent to the orange siting area.  So a TS22
19  substation would be somewhere within this box.  This
20  box, I believe, I forget the exact number, I think it
21  was 409, 439 acres, something like that.  The substation
22  itself will be approximately 80 acres within there.
23      And then -- so that's the project description.
24  I think we will -- you will have future questions, talk
25  about notice area and all that.  So I think I will stop
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 1  here for that part.
 2      CHMN. CHENAL: Thank you.
 3      Well, let's then talk about the notice of
 4  hearing and other hearing issues and get into the social
 5  media and the timing of it.
 6      So, Mr. Derstine, I mean the proposed hearing
 7  dates are July 26 through, I don't know, 29th or 30th,
 8  depending how many days we want to make sure we have it
 9  reserved for.  But then I looked at the draft notice of
10  hearing.  It looks appropriate to me.  I didn't
11  really -- I took a quick look at it.  I just really got
12  it.
13      Let's talk about who you are going to publish
14  the notice with.  I assume the Republic.
15      MR. DERSTINE: Mr. Duncan, do you want to
16  talk about the --
17      I mean, assuming we are going to file the
18  supplement this -- the package that looks like a CEC
19  application on June 11th, then I think Mr. Duncan is
20  prepared to identify what our proposed publication dates
21  are in the newspapers that we will use.
22      MR. DUNCAN: Yes.  Thank you, Mr. Derstine.
23      Mr. Chairman, the newspapers that we plan to
24  publish in would be the Arizona Republic, Zones 1 and 3,
25  on Wednesday, Friday -- sorry.  Their publication cycle
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 1  is Wednesday, Friday, Saturday.  We propose to publish
 2  on Wednesday, June 16th, and Saturday, June 19th, in
 3  that, for that newspaper.
 4      For the Foothills Focus, it covers portions of
 5  nearby areas.  It's publication cycle is only on
 6  Wednesday.  So we propose to publish also on Wednesday,
 7  June 16th.
 8      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.  A second publication or
 9  just the one for the Foothills?
10      MR. DUNCAN: Just the one.
11      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.  All right.  Well, that
12  sounds acceptable.
13      Mr. Derstine, have you and Ms. Benally had a
14  discussion about the timing of the publication of giving
15  of notice?
16      MR. DERSTINE: I just wanted to raise with you
17  whether -- you know, this is, it is not different than,
18  you know, other cases in which our hearing date is maybe
19  40 days out from the filing of the application.  We just
20  wanted to raise whether or not it is, given that it is
21  really a 40-252 proceeding, and I will look for some
22  legal advice from Staff through Mr. Emedi if he thinks
23  otherwise, I don't think this is governed by 40-360 in
24  terms of the timing rules, but we are happy to comply
25  with those as if it were a new CEC application.  I just
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 1  wanted to raise whether you thought it made sense to
 2  delay the publication of the notice to a time that's
 3  closer to the July 26 hearing date, because we have the
 4  flexibility.  But maybe it makes sense, given all,
 5  everything, that we should just follow the rules as the
 6  statute is written, even though, technically, it is not
 7  a new CEC application.
 8      CHMN. CHENAL: Well, let me ask this question.
 9  Mr. Emedi can ponder the answer to your question.  I
10  didn't review the, you know, the statutes and the rules
11  on the notice.  But aren't those more in terms of
12  minimum time limit?  In other words, you have to have
13  the publications and notice at least a certain number of
14  days before.  I mean it is more, it is more a
15  limitation.  It is not a maximum period, I guess is what
16  I am saying.
17      MR. DERSTINE: Well, there is -- so, and I don't
18  have it in front of me either, but my recollection is
19  that 04, 40-360.04 says we have to provide notice within
20  10 days of the filing of the application or actually you
21  signing the notice of hearing.
22      CHMN. CHENAL: Notice of hearing, right.
23      MR. DERSTINE: Yeah.  So that's the trigger.  So
24  that starts that 10-day clock.  So we would have to
25  publish within 10 days.  The timeline that Mr. Duncan
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 1  provided you complies with 04 in terms of meeting that
 2  first publication within the 10 days.  And then your
 3  procedural order requires that we get the signs in the
 4  ground 20 days before the hearing.  That's not a
 5  problem.
 6      CHMN. CHENAL: Right.
 7      MR. DERSTINE: It is posting.  But it is really
 8  the trigger of, you know, the early publication of the
 9  notice of hearing.  And we are happy to comply with it.
10  We just, we just thought we would raise it with you.
11      CHMN. CHENAL: Let's do it the way that is.  It
12  is within the 30 to 60 days, you know, after the -- the
13  hearing would be within 30 to 60 days after technically
14  the notice is given.  So let's just do it the way you
15  proposed.
16      MR. DERSTINE: Okay.
17      CHMN. CHENAL: It is one less avenue of attack
18  if someone wants to attack this down the road.  You
19  know, clearly this will work, you know.  You know, if we
20  deviate from it, who knows what kind of mischief someone
21  could cause.
22      MR. DERSTINE: Right.  Very good.
23      CHMN. CHENAL: So...
24      All right.  Signs and lo --
25      Yes, Ms. Benally.
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 1      MS. BENALLY: I am sorry, Mr. Chairman.
 2      So based on the review that we have done with
 3  the newspapers, they would have to have the final
 4  publication by the 9th of June, so just from a timing
 5  standpoint for you to be aware of when you issue your
 6  notice of hearing in order to meet the publication date
 7  of June 16th and June 19.
 8      CHMN. CHENAL: So say that again, please.  When
 9  do they have to --
10      MS. BENALLY: June the 9th is the date that, I
11  believe.
12      Mr. Duncan, you can verify that for me if I am
13  inaccurate.
14      MR. DUNCAN: No, you are correct.  June 9th is
15  when those need to be at the newspaper.
16      CHMN. CHENAL: But I thought your filing is
17  going to be June 11th.
18      MR. DERSTINE: Right.  So I guess we can, we can
19  reconvene on that.
20      But, so if we file June 11th, Kevin, if we slide
21  back our -- and the Chairman signs the notice of hearing
22  on or about June 11th, I assume we can still get a
23  publication within 10 days.  We just may slide back from
24  the June 16th original publication date.  And maybe what
25  you have set up --
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 1      MR. DUNCAN: Let me clarify.  Is it 10 business
 2  days or 10 calendar days?
 3      MR. DERSTINE: 10 days straight, yeah, calendar
 4  days.
 5      MR. DUNCAN: I am going to say that they -- it
 6  would probably -- that's going to put it on the 10th
 7  day.  That would be -- because, because Foothills Focus
 8  only runs on Wednesday, and the Republic doesn't run on
 9  Monday or Tuesday.  So in both cases it would be the
10  10th day.
11      MR. DERSTINE: So the Republic doesn't run ads
12  on Monday or Tuesday in the zones that you are looking
13  to publish, is that right?
14      MR. DUNCAN: That's right.  And Foothills Focus
15  only runs on Wednesday.  So if we are talking about
16  10 days from the 11th, that's -- let's see.
17      Actually, we cannot meet that.  That would put
18  us outside that window.
19      CHMN. CHENAL: It is really not 10 days from
20  the -- and I apologize.  It is harder doing this when
21  you are -- when I am not in the office and I have all my
22  books in front of me and statutes and, you know.
23      But I think the statute is not technically 10
24  days from filing.  It is 10 -- it is within giving
25  notice.
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 1      And, Mr. Derstine, maybe help me out here, but
 2  can we just -- can I just hold the notice of hearing and
 3  sign it a day later and start the clock ticking?  I
 4  mean, will that assist in meeting the schedule or give
 5  you --
 6      MR. DERSTINE: Or it sounds like maybe what we
 7  would do is, can we file earlier?  Are we in a position
 8  to file earlier Kevin?  Does that work?
 9      MR. DUNCAN: We are not in a position to file
10  earlier.  In order for us to, in order for us to make
11  10 days, because the publication date would be the 23rd,
12  that's the earliest Wednesday we could get if we don't
13  make the 16th.  And 10 days back from the 23rd is the
14  13th.  That is the Sunday following our filing.
15      MS. BENALLY: I have the rule relating to the
16  notice requirement.  So if you don't mind, I can share
17  that really quickly.
18      Basically it says:  The presiding officer shall,
19  within 10 days after receiving an application, provide
20  public notice as to time and place of hearing on the
21  application.  So it is 10 days from the time the
22  application is filed.
23      CHMN. CHENAL: Are you reading the statute or
24  the rule?
25      MS. BENALLY: The rule.


Page 21


 1      CHMN. CHENAL: You are reading the rule.  The
 2  statute is a little different.  But there is a little
 3  inconsistency there, I think.
 4      MR. DERSTINE: Well, I guess the difficulty with
 5  this is that the particular -- we need to get one notice
 6  up within 10 days.
 7      And, Kevin, you are saying none of the, either
 8  the Republic or that Foothills paper won't accommodate
 9  that unless the Chairman signs it on the 9th?
10      MR. DUNCAN: That is correct.  Well, yes,
11  because the 9th is the day we have to have it to the
12  newspapers in order to -- they, both newspapers, require
13  a week.
14      CHMN. CHENAL: Can I postdate it?  Can we give
15  it to them on the 9th but I date it the 11th?
16      MR. DUNCAN: I don't think the newspaper is
17  going to reject it, as long as we all feel that's
18  aboveboard.
19      CHMN. CHENAL: Well --
20      MR. DERSTINE: It is effective on the 11th
21  anyway.
22      CHMN. CHENAL: Yeah.  I don't know why it
23  wouldn't be.  They just need something so they can get
24  it in their publication process so it is ready to be
25  published on the 16th.  I don't -- if what they publish
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 1  on the 16th is dated the 11th, I don't think they really
 2  care.
 3      MR. DERSTINE: Right.
 4      CHMN. CHENAL: Right?  I think, I mean correct
 5  me if I'm wrong, but I think that will work.  I am happy
 6  to do that, by the way.
 7      MR. DERSTINE: Yeah.  I think if we can -- you
 8  have our proposed draft notice of hearing.  You can
 9  review it and mark up whatever you think needs to be
10  edited or changed.  And then if you are in a position to
11  then sign it and postdate it effective the 11th, then we
12  can send it back to the newspapers.  They can use that
13  to do their markup and their galley sheet for the actual
14  publication.  And that meets their timing requirements.
15  I think that works legally and works for the paper.
16      CHMN. CHENAL: So today is the 4th.  5th, 6th,
17  the 7th is Monday.  I will look at this this afternoon
18  and I will get it back to Tod.  He can get it to you.
19      I doubt there will be any changes other than
20  filling in the dates and things like that.  I did look
21  at it briefly.  Nothing jumped out at me.  So assuming
22  you get it back later this afternoon, you can do it in
23  final.  If you want to send it to me Monday, I can sign
24  it and we get it back to you.  So you will have it on
25  the 7th.  But we will have it dated the -- maybe if,
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 1  when you send it back for me to sign it, you can fill in
 2  the dates, you know, the 11th so I don't inadvertently
 3  write the 7th or whatever the date is.
 4      MR. DERSTINE: Okay.
 5      CHMN. CHENAL: I think that works.
 6      MR. DERSTINE: Yep, I agree.
 7      CHMN. CHENAL: All right.  Signs and locations.
 8      MR. DUNCAN: Yes, I will speak to that.
 9      So I know you have seen this map before.
10      Jason, can you share the sign map, please.
11      So once this --
12      MR. SPITZKOFF: Kevin, who are you asking?
13      MR. DUNCAN: I am sorry.  Jason, I thought -- I
14  can bring it up.  Just give me a moment.  Sorry.  I
15  didn't have it ready.
16      MR. SPITZKOFF: I have it.  I just didn't hear
17  who you asked.
18      MR. DUNCAN: Oh, okay.
19      MR. SPITZKOFF: Okay.  That is Figure 1.  And
20  here is our sign map.  This was, the base layer behind
21  this is an older, older figure --
22      MR. DUNCAN: We are going to be updating --
23      MR. SPITZKOFF: -- that shows --
24      MR. DUNCAN: -- this, yeah, we are going to be
25  updating this map just to reflect that if -- it does


Page 24


 1  show an older version, but in terms of the sign
 2  locations, they are accurate.
 3      So the Sign No. 1 location is just south of the
 4  entrance into the Ben Avery shooting facility but on the
 5  south side.  The sign will be placed on state lane.
 6      Sign No. 2 is at the south end of the entrance
 7  into the Arizona Game & Fish Department's headquarters,
 8  but, again, will be on the south side.
 9      Both of those signs are in areas that have
10  established large turnoff areas.  So even though the
11  signs will be set back from the road, there will be room
12  there for people to pull up, take a picture safely
13  and/or read the sign, and get back in their car and be
14  on their way.
15      Sign No. 3 is located adjacent to 51st Avenue.
16  Again, it will be on state land.  And we are putting
17  this in a location where there is an adequate pull-off
18  area for people to safely be able to see that sign.
19      And Sign No. 4, the appearance here shows it as
20  if it is on the private land, but it actually will be on
21  the state land, on the south there of the Carefree
22  Highway alignment.  But, again, it will be on the state
23  land but in an area where there is adequate room for
24  people to pull over safely and photograph or view the
25  sign.
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 1      So those four locations are all generally in the
 2  project vicinity in areas where people who are here by
 3  the area would see it.  And I know this has been
 4  discussed with you previously.  So those are our four
 5  locations.
 6      CHMN. CHENAL: Those are fine to me.  Let's make
 7  the map we are looking at Exhibit 2 this conference,
 8  and, again, to make sure that the Colette has a copy.
 9      THE REPORTER: Did you want 2 or B?
10      CHMN. CHENAL: B.  If the other one was A, this
11  will be B.  If the first one was 1, this will be 2.
12  Makes no difference.
13      Okay.  I think that's good.  Let's talk now
14  about social media.
15      Mr. Langbaum.  Did I pronounce your name
16  correctly?
17      MR. LANGBAUM: Yes.  Thank you.
18      MR. DUNCAN: Do you want to review the sign
19  text --
20      CHMN. CHENAL: I am sorry, yes.
21      MR. DUNCAN: -- before --
22      CHMN. CHENAL: I do.  And we do it for the
23  record.  I jumped ahead because I already looked at it
24  when it was sent to me earlier today.  And it looked
25  acceptable.  But let's make sure that's correct.
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 1      And so this will become Exhibit No. 3.  Let's
 2  make them numerical, Colette.
 3      THE REPORTER: Okay.
 4      MR. DUNCAN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
 5      MR. SPITZKOFF: Okay.  I think I have the latest
 6  version, but I don't know.  We will find out.
 7      MS. BENALLY: That is not the current version.
 8      MR. SPITZKOFF: Okay.  Well, then, does anyone
 9  else have it?
10      MS. BENALLY: I sent it to the team at
11      12:08 p.m.  Mr. Spitzkoff, would you mind checking your
12  email to see if you might be able to look at it?
13      MR. SPITZKOFF: Yep, I got your email.
14      MS. BENALLY: Thank you very much.
15      MR. SPITZKOFF: Okay.  There we go.  That's it?
16      MS. BENALLY: Yes.  Thank you.
17      MR. SPITZKOFF: Okay.  Kevin, or I don't know
18  who is talking to this.
19      MR. DUNCAN: Oh, yes.  So this is me.  This is
20  talking about the -- this is the text that we intended
21  for the roadside signs.
22      Mr. Chairman.
23      CHMN. CHENAL: Can you scroll up so we can see
24  the bottom?  Oh, it is just the -- okay.  That's it.
25  All right.
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 1      MR. DERSTINE: And we had elected, or I
 2  suggested that we not include a map just because it is
 3  hard to get all the relevant information in a letter
 4  size format people can read.  And so that was --
 5  (indiscernible).
 6      THE REPORTER: Mr. Derstine.
 7      (The reporter requested repetition.)
 8      MR. DERSTINE: My suggestion was not to include
 9  a map, Mr. Chairman.  I am not sure how you feel about
10  it.  It just seems like a lot of information to put on a
11  road sign.  But if we need to include the map on the
12  sign, we can do it.
13      CHMN. CHENAL: Well, it is a difficult issue.  I
14  would rather see a map.  I would rather see a map,
15  frankly.  That's kind of the way we have done it in past
16  hearings.
17      I certainly would like to have the discussion
18  with the Committee on that.  On the times I have seen
19  signs, it is somewhat helpful.  And I don't think it
20  would be too hard to add it.  I know that it would be
21  accessible by the link, but I think it would be more
22  helpful to have the map than not, even though this is
23  squishing it a little to get it onto the sign.  And we
24  can talk to the Committee about it when it comes up in
25  the hearing if there is much, you know, if there is much
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 1  thought about, about whether or not to have the map
 2  associated with the sign.
 3      MR. DERSTINE: Very good.
 4      MS. BENALLY: Mr. Chairman, this is Ms. Benally.
 5  The only other comment I would like to make is the date
 6  and time will be revised to reflect whatever you advise
 7  that we set for this hearing.
 8      CHMN. CHENAL: Yeah.  I thought the 28th was a
 9  little optimistic.  I don't know.  Maybe it is not.
10  Maybe we finish then.  But, you know, I may want to
11  include a little more time just in case.  I don't know.
12  We can talk about that in a minute.
13      But the form looks fine to me.  The language
14  looks fine.  I prefer, Mr. Derstine, to see a map.  I
15  appreciate the issue.  But I would rather have it than
16  not.  Then we can discuss it with the Committee when it
17  comes up at the hearing just to make sure that, you
18  know, the Committee is all on the same page going
19  forward.  That would be a pretty big change to me, and I
20  would rather have the input of the Committee on that.
21      MR. DERSTINE: Okay.
22      CHMN. CHENAL: So all right.
23      MR. SPITZKOFF: Do we need to provide this or
24  have we already provided it as like Exhibit C?
25      CHMN. CHENAL: That would be Exhibit 3, yes.


Page 29


 1  What is on the screen will be marked as Exhibit 3 to
 2  this conference.  Thank you.
 3      Notice to affected jurisdictions.  Mr. Derstine,
 4  can you remind me which jurisdictions are affected by
 5  this?
 6      MR. DERSTINE: I will let Mr. Spitzkoff or
 7  Mr. Duncan respond to that.
 8      MR. DUNCAN: I will be happy to respond to that.
 9      So the, Mr. Chairman, the affected jurisdictions
10  include the City of Phoenix.  The entire project area is
11  within the City of Phoenix.  It also impacts the Arizona
12  State Land Department, being that the entirety of the,
13  the planned relocated line is on Arizona State Trust
14  Land.
15      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.
16      MR. DERSTINE: And is it also all within
17  Maricopa County, Kevin?
18      MR. DUNCAN: Yes, it is all within Maricopa
19  County as well.
20      CHMN. CHENAL: So I think we would want to
21  include all three of those.
22      MR. DERSTINE: Right.
23      MR. DUNCAN: Very good.
24      CHMN. CHENAL: Any reason to include -- we don't
25  have to -- Game & Fish?  I mean --
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 1      MR. DUNCAN: We --
 2      CHMN. CHENAL: -- it is south of their property,
 3  I understand.
 4      MR. DUNCAN: We have not felt the need to
 5  include them, as there are no direct impacts.  Yeah, the
 6  line potentially would be moved closer to their
 7  property, but still at a great distance.  So we didn't
 8  feel it necessary.
 9      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.  Understood.  I don't
10  dispute that.
11      Mr. Langbaum, let's talk about social media now.
12      MR. LANGBAUM: Thank you.
13      Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman.  My name is Kevin
14  Langbaum.
15      CHMN. CHENAL: Langbaum.
16      MR. LANGBAUM: It is fine.
17      I am the manager of customer communications at
18  APS.  I have been here for 13 years, all in corporate
19  communications, including eight years in which I have
20  overseen our social media in various roles.
21      I want to talk today a little bit about how we
22  use social media with our line siting outreach.  So I am
23  going to pull up a deck that I will walk through.
24      Okay.  Let me know if you are seeing it.
25      CHMN. CHENAL: Not yet.
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 1      MR. DERSTINE: And I think, as Ms. Benally
 2  indicated, we will get this deck to the court reporter.
 3  And I assume you will want to mark it for the record as
 4  Exhibit 4.
 5      CHMN. CHENAL: Yes.  Thank you.
 6      MR. LANGBAUM: Okay.  Are you seeing it now?
 7      CHMN. CHENAL: Negative.
 8      MR. DUNCAN: No.
 9      MR. DERSTINE: No.
10      MR. LANGBAUM: Okay.  Let me try again.  It
11  shows that I am sharing it.
12      So how about now?
13      CHMN. CHENAL: Yes.
14      MR. LANGBAUM: Okay.  So we are currently using
15  a variety of channels to publicize line siting open
16  houses, public comment or hearings, including direct
17  mail, email, newspaper advertising, our websites, and
18  social media.
19      What we are, what we are using for social media
20  is Facebook advertising.  This is part of an effective
21  overall media mix.  We use advertising to reach
22  customers geographically based on the impacted areas of
23  the project.
24      We can run these advertisements during the
25  virtual open house period and point people through the


Page 32


 1  links in the ad to the virtual open house website and
 2  invite them to share their comments or ask questions.
 3      CHMN. CHENAL: Oh, one second.  Can we go back?
 4      MR. LANGBAUM: Yes.
 5      CHMN. CHENAL: What does the last comment mean?
 6  You have to dumb that one down for me.
 7      MR. LANGBAUM: Okay.  So we have a Facebook
 8  page, an APS Facebook page.  We can post anything we
 9  want on it.  And the people who follow our page will
10  see, only the people who followed our page would see
11  that in their feeds.  That's referred to as an organic
12  post.
13      Paid advertising does not live on our page.  It
14  shows up in the feeds of the people that we are trying
15  to reach through the ad.  So it is a little bit
16  different versus posting something on our page.  It
17  really allows us to reach the desired audience.
18      CHMN. CHENAL: So, rather than organic posts,
19  which I understand now to be, say, followers on
20  Facebook, the specific audience is actually a larger
21  audience of people who are not yet followers who you
22  hope to reach.
23      MR. LANGBAUM: Correct.
24      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.  All right.  Thank you.
25      MR. LANGBAUM: Okay?  These are two examples of
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 1  recent efforts, the one on the left, a Facebook ad, the
 2  one on the right, that appears on Instagram, which is
 3  connected to Facebook.  So I will cover that in a
 4  moment.  These are within the last year.  I should point
 5  out that we have started doing these ads about the
 6  middle of last year.
 7      Facebook gives us a broad audience.  It is a
 8  popular site.  We have really good capabilities to reach
 9  the audiences.  We can do it based on a radius
10  surrounding a certain area mileage-wise.  Others you can
11  only look at zip codes.  So this is a really effective
12  way of finding the folks that we want to reach in the
13  areas surrounding the project.
14      CHMN. CHENAL: Mr. Langbaum, let me stop you
15  right there.  Are you going to discuss in a moment what
16  radius, for example, or area or zip code you are going
17  to use for this project?  In other words, is this just
18  background; you are going to get into the specifics of
19  this case?
20      MR. LANGBAUM: I was not prepared to get into
21  the specifics of this case.  This is background.  But we
22  certainly can provide that information.
23      CHMN. CHENAL: Yeah.  So am I to understand that
24  the methods you have just described will be the methods
25  you will use for this project?
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 1      MR. LANGBAUM: Yes.
 2      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.  And then, since this is an
 3  issue of the radius surrounding the project area, or the
 4  zip code, what would be your intent as to the radius you
 5  would use of the extent of the zip code area for this
 6  project for purposes of the social media, at least
 7  Facebook?
 8      MR. LANGBAUM: So I am not prepared to answer
 9  that today.  I would have to research that and get back
10  to you.  We would be able to provide that information.
11      CHMN. CHENAL: Well, do you have like a -- do
12  you have like thoughts or policies or, based on your
13  previous cases, kind of what would normally, you would
14  think, might be appropriate for a case like this?  Now,
15  I'm not holding you to it of course.  I have no idea.  I
16  mean I don't know if it extends to Wickenburg, to
17  Carefree.
18      MR. LANGBAUM: Kevin, can --
19      MR. DUNCAN: If I might, Mr. Chairman.
20      So in the last meeting that you had with our
21  team, I was not in attendance but it was brought to my
22  attention that there was a request to extend our
23  notification area slightly to the east to encompass some
24  residential neighborhoods east of I-17 in addition to
25  our notification area, which comprised essentially the
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 1  study area, which was essentially what you saw on the
 2  map that was marked as Exhibit A.
 3      That additional notification area is primarily
 4  the area that these Facebook ads are going to be driven
 5  to.  I don't have an exact statement on the radius.  But
 6  the extended area was shared with the social media team
 7  at APS, and they designed a radius appropriate to
 8  encompass that.  And that is in addition to the other,
 9  you know, handful of property owners that would be
10  receiving the -- that would have received the Facebook
11  ad previously, such as the Arizona Game & Fish
12  Department, the Arizona State Land Department, the Ben
13  Avery Shooting Range, and a few commercial properties
14  along the east side of I-17.
15      So the radius on this one is being extended to
16  include, it is probably what it is -- honestly, I don't
17  have the exact reference in front of me -- but it is
18  probably two separate radiuses that were created, one
19  for the initial study area and then one for the added
20  area to include those residences.
21      That radius probably is somewhere on the order
22  of about a quarter mile, because the additional area
23  would be, if you looked at it as a circle, would be
24  about a, about a quarter mile, you know, if it was, if
25  it was -- if you were to measure it, about a quarter
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 1  mile dimensionally in each direction.
 2      MR. DERSTINE: Mr. Chairman.
 3      Kevin, I am sorry.
 4      I was just going to note I think our objective
 5  in using these targeted Facebook ads, Mr. Chairman, is
 6  to mirror the notifications or the mailing list that we
 7  would pull up.  So all the addresses in our notification
 8  area, we are looking to kind of cover that same map with
 9  our Facebook, with our targeted Facebook ads so that the
10  bulk who we have identified would be within the
11  notification area.
12      In this case, as Kevin mentioned, we decided to
13  expand it to include some of those subdivisions a little
14  bit further east of I-17.  But those folks will get the
15  mailings, and they will also be targeted with these
16  Facebook ads.
17      And so that's really, when we are using the term
18  radius here, as I understand what we are really looking
19  at is trying to mirror the same notification area that
20  would cover our mailing list for paper mailing.
21      Is that right, Kevin?
22      MR. DUNCAN: Yes.
23      MR. LANGBAUM: Yes, that's right.
24      CHMN. CHENAL: And I appreciate that.  That
25  gives, that gives some, you know, context to this.
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 1      I remember in the last meeting we did discuss
 2  picking up a little of the neighborhood to the east of
 3  where, of what had been proposed and that those people
 4  would receive mailers, if I remember correctly.
 5      So the Facebook ads and targeted area would try
 6  to mirror the notice, the same noticed area for the
 7  mailers.  You will have to forgive me.  I didn't know
 8  Facebook could be that precise.
 9      MR. LANGBAUM: Yes.  That's one of the
10  advantages we find to using these ads.
11      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.  All right.  Thanks,
12  Mr. Langbaum.  Go ahead.
13      MR. LANGBAUM: Thank you.  Okay.
14      CHMN. CHENAL: I wanted to clarify that, and I
15  now have it.  So thank you.
16      MR. LANGBAUM: Thank you.
17      So I just want to cover a few of the benefits
18  and the limitations, reemphasizing social media is an
19  additional way of reaching customers.  Part of the mix
20  that we have said also includes the mailed notice, the
21  emails and newspaper advertisements.  It can be a cost
22  effective and, as we just discussed, geographically
23  specific way of pointing people to the website or the
24  comment area.
25      As with anything else, you have limitations.
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 1  Not everyone uses social media.  Not everyone is on all
 2  channels of social media.  And even on Facebook we can't
 3  guarantee that, even if you are in that zone, you will
 4  see our ads.  We can, we can do our best.  Like the
 5  traditional tactics, it is effective when it is
 6  appropriate to the audience.  So we are using it as
 7  another tool in our toolkit.
 8      MR. DERSTINE: Kevin, I am sorry.  Can I stop
 9  you for a minute with a question?
10      MR. LANGBAUM: Yes.
11      MR. DERSTINE: I saw you had Instagram and
12  Facebook.  I understand Facebook owns Instagram.  So if
13  I am on Instagram but I am not on Facebook, or vice
14  versa, if you are placing a Facebook ad and I just use
15  Instagram, am I going to see that on my feed?  Is there
16  the same geographic targeting for Instagram that you
17  have for Facebook?
18      MR. LANGBAUM: Yes, it should be.  One of the
19  advantages to Facebook is, because the platforms are
20  connected, we can reach Instagram as well.
21      MR. DERSTINE: So --
22      CHMN. CHENAL: And then -- sorry.
23      MR. DERSTINE: Well, I was just going to say,
24  when we had some comments from the last case,
25  particularly from Member Gentles, who said, you know,
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 1  the younger folks use Instagram, maybe the folks in my
 2  generation or older have taken off with Facebook, would
 3  work.  When APS is placing a targeted Facebook ad,
 4  trying to publicize an upcoming case for an open house
 5  for a case, it is going to go through to both channels.
 6  Am I right in understanding that?
 7      MR. LANGBAUM: Yes, that's correct.
 8      CHMN. CHENAL: Now, my question is:  What is
 9  being advertised on Facebook and Instagram?  Is it the
10  open house or is it the hearing that's coming up, or
11  both?
12      MR. LANGBAUM: Typically, and, Kevin, you can
13  chime in as well on this, but these examples here are --
14  show ads for the virtual open house, which would go out
15  kind of timed to the beginning of that open house so
16  that these would be served for several weeks during the
17  duration of the virtual open house.
18      MR. DUNCAN: Yes.  Thank you, Kevin.
19      Mr. Chairman, on this, for this project
20  specifically, the upcoming Facebook ad would coincide
21  with the opening of our virtual open house and would
22  direct people to the virtual open house.  We would again
23  use the Facebook ad in conjunction with our notice of
24  hearing to help publicize the notice of hearing.  That
25  is a second use that we would have upcoming adjacent to
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 1  the announcement of the virtual open house.
 2      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.  Let's stop there and just
 3  key in on that for a second.  Okay.  So the notice of
 4  hearing will also be advertised in the same targeted
 5  area as we discussed, both on Facebook and Instagram,
 6  correct?
 7      MR. DUNCAN: That is correct.
 8      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.  Very good.
 9      MR. SPITZKOFF: Mr. Chairman, just to clarify,
10  our intent with our use of social media in this manner
11  is really to mimic the mailings.  So if we do a mailing,
12  we would do a social media ad campaign with that.  So if
13  we do a mailing for the virtual open house, or in the
14  future even a regular open house, we would do a
15  mailing -- we would do the social media ads.  Same thing
16  when we put a mailing out for notice of hearing, we
17  would do notice in the social media also.  So it is
18  another -- if we are going to send out a postcard or a
19  newsletter, we will also do the social media version.
20      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.  Very good.
21      MR. LANGBAUM: So one other thing I want to
22  cover in regards to social media is it is, by nature, an
23  engaged, a two-way engaged conversation.  While we do
24  provide a link to the virtual open house where customers
25  can put their input into the record there, we will treat
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 1  comments that come in through social media as if they
 2  are coming into every other appropriate channel.  So we
 3  will forward those to the project team.  They will be
 4  logged and they will be responded to as appropriate.
 5      So we do, we do not get a lot on social media
 6  comments about it because there are other venues to do
 7  that, but we do have a process in place to handle that.
 8      CHMN. CHENAL: Thank you.
 9      MR. LANGBAUM: I want to just talk a little bit
10  about some of the other social media channels.  For
11  Twitter, we do not do the advertising there.  It has a
12  much smaller audience.  It doesn't have the ability to
13  target as effectively with the geographic areas.
14      And then NextDoor is relatively new.  It is
15  growing.  It is evolving.  We will continue to monitor,
16  evaluate, and adjust our best practices in terms of
17  using that as appropriate.  So that's something we are
18  definitely keeping an eye on.
19      And then the last slide I am going to kick over
20  to Jason.  He is going to have some summary of kind of
21  recommendations.
22      MR. SPITZKOFF: Thank you, Kevin.
23      So, Mr. Chairman, you know, we wanted to provide
24  a background of what our evaluation and our use of
25  social media is to date.  You know, I think you had
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 1  indicated a desire to hear a little bit about that.
 2      As you have seen from Kevin's presentation here,
 3  APS's use at this time is primarily in the Facebook ads
 4  and, you know, the attached Instagram audience also.  We
 5  feel that is the best use of social media to date.  As
 6  he also just mentioned, social media, the platforms that
 7  are out there are always evolving.  So we will, you
 8  know, continuously evaluate the uses and the platforms.
 9      So with that, you know, our recommendation, you
10  know, for future orders regarding use of social media
11  would be to have it as broad as possible and, you know,
12  not as specific, because the uses could even change
13  depending upon the nature of the case, too.  So the
14  flexibility is really key to reach the right audience
15  and the right location for the right project.
16      Some other comments, you know, our plan for
17  social media, you know, most all platforms, people can
18  comment on those.  So if we do get comments from those
19  Facebook ads, we will pull those down and include them
20  as needed in our public comment summaries.  But our
21  intent is to use those ads to drive the audience to the
22  websites where you can have that official comment and an
23  easier back and forth so we can respond to comments as
24  appropriate.
25      So, hopefully, I hope we provided a good
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 1  background for our current use of social media and what
 2  our hope is for future orders of social media providing
 3  that flexibility.
 4      CHMN. CHENAL: Yeah, thank you.  And I, I am --
 5  I found this to be very helpful, enlightening.  I know
 6  it is a generational thing.  I learned today, for
 7  example, how specific and targeted Facebook could be.  I
 8  did not know it could be as targeted as a mailing.  I
 9  guess it makes sense, but it just, that's new to me that
10  it can be that precise.
11      So I will probably have general language in the
12  procedural order that will say kind of like we treat
13  signage, it will be something like use social media in a
14  manner discussed and directed during the prefiling
15  conference, or something like that, at least for this
16  coming case, just to keep it flexible and loose.  But I
17  think I have the intent.  I know the understanding.  It
18  will be the use of Facebook and Instagram to, to provide
19  notice of the hearing and the virtual, the virtual open
20  house in the area that has been discussed as the area
21  for the giving of notice, including that expanded area
22  to the east side of I-17.
23      At the last, the last time we had a meeting, we
24  did discuss what that area looked like and the size of
25  it.  And we actually got into a discussion of whether it
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 1  should be expanded a little, which you have done.  But
 2  did any of your exhibits describe that area yet today?
 3      MR. DUNCAN: I am sorry, Mr. Chairman.  This is,
 4  this is Kevin Duncan.
 5      If we can bring Exhibit A, that's the Figure 1
 6  map, back up, I can use that to illustrate the area.
 7      CHMN. CHENAL: I think we used numbers.  That
 8  will be Exhibit A -- excuse me, Exhibit 1.
 9      MR. DUNCAN: So basically we include the study
10  area.  Everything within the study area boundary is part
11  of the notification area.  But we also included, if you
12  follow along the Carefree Highway over to basically
13  where state land, the state land begins to the north, I
14  am sorry, over and then basically all down to there,
15  then over to the east, and then down to Dove Valley
16  Road, and then back to the west, that's the area that we
17  added in.
18      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.  And that's, looking at
19  Exhibit 1, it is the blue area just to the east of what
20  is depicted as Carefree Highway, Dove Valley Road, and
21  Sonoran Desert Drive.  It is the residential areas that
22  are to the east of North Valley Parkway and bordered on
23  the north by Carefree Highway and the south by Sonoran
24  Desert Drive, at least to the area indicated in blue,
25  and the east, which is the State Trust Land.  So that --
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 1  and all the area to the west, to the freeway.  So --
 2      MR. DUNCAN: I want to clarify that it is the
 3  area east of the study area between Carefree Highway and
 4  Dove Valley Road.  We did not include the area south of
 5  Dove Valley Road.
 6      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.  And was there a reason?
 7  It looks like they are going to be impacted just as much
 8  to the south of Dove Valley as to the north.
 9      MR. DUNCAN: The only reason that I can offer,
10  and it is not a very good reason, is that's how it was
11  communicated to me.
12      MR. DERSTINE: Kevin, can we expand it between
13  Dove Valley south to Sonoran Desert Drive?
14      MR. DUNCAN: It is not going to be possible to
15  get the mailings to that lower area in time for the
16  virtual open house.  But we certainly could expand that
17  for the Facebook ad.
18      CHMN. CHENAL: Well, what about the noticing --
19  what about the hearing?  I think I am a little bit more
20  concerned about the hearing than the open house.
21      MR. DUNCAN: The notice of hearing, that
22  certainly can be added in.
23      CHMN. CHENAL: So let's do that.  Let's, let's
24  include that area south of Dove Valley Road to Sonoran
25  Desert Drive, and to the east -- and I can't tell from
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 1  this map how far east it goes.
 2      MR. DUNCAN: It continues quite a ways beyond
 3  that boundary.
 4      CHMN. CHENAL: In terms of residential property?
 5      MR. DUNCAN: Yes.
 6      CHMN. CHENAL: You see the general north-south
 7  line from Carefree Highway where it becomes public,
 8  where it becomes the State Trust Land?
 9      MR. DUNCAN: State land, yes, we can use that.
10  And then it looks like there is some sort of a wash or
11  canal there, or something there that could define as the
12  boundary.
13      CHMN. CHENAL: Yes, yes, okay.  Let's use that
14  as best as is possible to pick up that additional
15  residential area.
16      MR. DUNCAN: Certainly.  No problem.
17      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.  All right.  Good.  And at
18  least to make sure if we can pick that up for the
19  notification and Facebook and Instagram for the notice
20  of hearing.
21      MR. DUNCAN: Yes.
22      CHMN. CHENAL: I know we would not be able to do
23  it for the virtual, the open house, but for the notice
24  of hearing, that would be good.
25      MR. DUNCAN: Yes.
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 1      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay, very good.
 2      All right.  Let's -- I think the rest of this
 3  should be pretty easy.  Let's go on to the rest of what
 4  I have on my checklist and talk about the hearing.
 5      The location.
 6      MR. DUNCAN: Okay.  So the hearing location is
 7  intended to be at the Briarwood Country Club located at
 8  20800 North 135th Avenue in Sun City West.
 9      CHMN. CHENAL: And the estimated time for this,
10  it is going to start changing very -- excuse me.  It is
11  July 26th at 1:00 p.m.  And then there will be an open
12  house or, excuse me, a public comment session that
13  evening starting at 5:30, I would like to say.
14      MR. DUNCAN: We --
15      CHMN. CHENAL: Then the remaining hearing dates
16  would be the times 9:30 to 5:00.
17      MR. DUNCAN: We are estimating, Mr. Chairman,
18  that we believe that this can be finished by the end of
19  the day on the 28th.
20      CHMN. CHENAL: And what hearing -- I am sorry.
21  I don't have it in the notice of hearing in front of me.
22  What -- let's see if I can pull that up.
23      The public comment will be taken in the evening
24  on the first day.  That's 5:30.  The hearing will begin
25  on the 26th at 1:00 p.m., July 26th.  And the remaining
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 1  days it will go from 9:00 to 5:00 until the completion
 2  of the hearing.
 3      So the question is:  Should the hearing be
 4  noticed to finish on the 28th, which is Wednesday, or
 5  should we add at least one extra day in there to be
 6  safe?
 7      MR. DERSTINE: Let's add a day to be safe.
 8      CHMN. CHENAL: All right.  Is one enough?  Do
 9  you want to add two?
10      MS. BENALLY: I think what we discussed --
11      I am sorry, Mr. Spitzkoff.  Go ahead.
12      MR. SPITZKOFF: Mr. Chairman, I think we
13  certainly feel that one would be enough, given the
14  limited area of the project.
15      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.  I just warn you.  It
16  sounds like that would be the case.  The unknown is
17  intervenors or people who are opposed to the project
18  come out of the woodwork that we don't know that could
19  delay.  I just, I will scare you, because we have
20  hearings set in August, in September, and a bunch of
21  people lining up for hearings in October.  So if we
22  don't complete it that week, you won't be seeing the
23  completion of this until November at the earliest.
24      MR. SPITZKOFF: I think we are more than happy
25  to notice the whole week.
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 1      MR. DERSTINE: Yeah.  Do it.
 2      MS. BENALLY: So I think July -- starting at
 3      1:00 on July 26th, and noticing it to 5:00 on Friday,
 4  July 30th, I think is adequate coverage for any
 5  unexpected matters that may come up.
 6      CHMN. CHENAL: And I think, I think you should.
 7      The Committee is available, right, Tod?  The
 8  Committee is available that week?
 9      MR. BREWER: Yes, Mr. Chairman.
10      CHMN. CHENAL: So I know it is extremely
11  unlikely, and I will push and we can extend the hours of
12  the hearing as necessary, and we can move it along, and
13  I grant you, it should finish by Wednesday, it is just
14  the unknown.
15      I mean my sense is you don't have a -- it is no
16  one's fault, it is just that the waters haven't been
17  tested to find out if there is going to be opposition to
18  this or not, and you just don't know.  So because of
19  that, let's build in a little more, a safety valve just
20  for your benefit.
21      It wouldn't be such a big deal to me if we
22  didn't have all these hearings that are set up.  And I
23  am telling you it is just really jamb packed.  And I
24  mean there are ones we are trying to squeeze in between
25  now and October.  And we are -- even a three-day
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 1  hearing, we can't figure out a way how to do it.
 2      So I am not making this up.  This is, this is
 3  precious time that we have.  I would certainly take
 4  advantage of it, even though it is extremely unlikely
 5  that we will use it.  I just, I just say that.  I think
 6  it is wise to put it in there.
 7      And I know, I think there is authority to, if we
 8  only noticed it for three days and we won't know if it
 9  is going to go longer, I think there is authority that I
10  could continue the hearing, and we could do it that way.
11  But I just would feel safer and I think it is cleaner to
12  do it the way we just discussed.  So just --
13      MR. DUNCAN: Agreed.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
14      CHMN. CHENAL: -- that's what you are going to
15  do.
16      MR. SPITZKOFF: Yes, Mr. Chairman, we are
17  certainly prepared to notice that whole week.
18      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.  I think that's smart.
19      MS. BENALLY: Mr. Chairman, I am sorry, before
20  you continue, would you please confirm that the start
21  time starting on the 27th through the 30th would be
22      9:00 a.m.?
23      CHMN. CHENAL: 9:00.  I misspoke when I said
24      9:30.  It is 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 --
25      MS. BENALLY: Thank you.
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 1      CHMN. CHENAL: -- as normally.
 2      And then the hearing on July 26th, the public
 3  comment portion would be at 5:30.  Okay?
 4      Standard issue of lodging, have arrangements
 5  been made by the applicant for lodging for those people
 6  that want lodging?
 7      MR. DUNCAN: Yes.  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  Lodging
 8  has been arranged, availability at the Hilton Garden Inn
 9  located at 16601 North Stadium Way in Surprise.
10      CHMN. CHENAL: All right.  Thank you.
11      All right.  Moving on to the tour, we are not
12  going to have a tour in person.  But I would ask the
13  applicant to have, you know, a very good, strong flyover
14  presentation, Google flyover or something like that,
15  drones, whatever, that would take the place of a tour.
16  I believe we have discussed that previously.
17      Is that your intent?
18      MR. DUNCAN: Yes, it is.
19      Mark, would you mind speaking to that briefly.
20      MR. TURNER: Yes.  This is Mark Turner with
21  AECOM.
22      Yes, Kevin, we do have a draft flyover available
23  that I could share with you.  John has finished that
24  just as of this morning.  So you have not seen it yet,
25  but it is ready for internal review.
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 1      MR. DUNCAN: Thank you, Mark.
 2      CHMN. CHENAL: Perfect.
 3      Let's talk about a date for prehearing
 4  conference.  Did we already discuss a date?
 5      MS. BENALLY: Not to my knowledge, Mr. Chair.
 6      CHMN. CHENAL: So what about the 19th,
 7  July 19th, at 2:00 p.m.?  Does that make sense?
 8      MR. DERSTINE: That works for me.
 9      MS. BENALLY: Works for the applicant,
10  Mr. Chairman.
11      CHMN. CHENAL: All right, Monday, July 19th, at
12      2:00 p.m.
13      I believe we have discussed there is no ongoing
14  litigation or disputes regarding this project or the
15  area that you intend, what is in the application, or
16  will be in the application, is that correct, Ms. Benally
17  or Mr. Derstine?
18      MS. BENALLY: That's correct, Chairman.
19      MR. DERSTINE: Yes.
20      CHMN. CHENAL: The procedural order, I will
21  issue that as we normally do.  And I think, like I said,
22  on social media, and, Tod, you will have to make a note
23  here, the social media will be something along the lines
24  of will be done in accordance with what was discussed at
25  the prefiling conference, something pretty general.  I
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 1  know that in the future matters will refine that
 2  language.
 3      The CEC, we will get that by the prehearing
 4  conference.  Kind of the general request is to do red
 5  line versions of any changes to the previous CECs so we
 6  can see what changes are made.  It might be extremely
 7  similar and very similar to the previous case but a few
 8  things have changed, and if you do a red line version,
 9  that's helpful.
10      MR. DERSTINE: Yeah.  Mr. Chairman, this is,
11  again, because this is an amendment process that will go
12  back to the Commission, this will be a recommended
13  opinion and order.
14      CHMN. CHENAL: That's right.  That's right.
15      MR. DERSTINE: And so our thought was, because
16  we are dealing with -- you are on what?  The last case
17  was 188?  This is CEC 120 and 131.
18      CHMN. CHENAL: Yeah.
19      MR. DERSTINE: Your conditions have evolved
20  probably significantly.  Well, I know they have since
21  then.
22      So our thought was for the conditions for this
23  limited segment of line that's going to be relocated, we
24  will simply, we will follow the general practice for
25  your line siting cases to include the updated conditions
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 1  rather than trying to negotiate conditions from Case 120
 2  to Case 188, that kind of thing.  And so we will, for
 3  this new segment of line, the relocated segment of the
 4  line, the new current conditions will apply, but we will
 5  have language in there that all of the remaining, you
 6  know, conditions as to the original CECs will remain
 7  unchanged or unaffected, it is just this, the relocated
 8  segment of line, that's going to fall under the new
 9  conditions.
10      CHMN. CHENAL: I think that's fair.  That sounds
11  like it makes some sense.  And I think that will meet
12  the path of least resistance.
13      MR. DERSTINE: Yeah, our thought, too.
14      CHMN. CHENAL: Yeah, that makes sense.
15      All right.  We always request robust wi-fi for
16  the hearing location.
17      Will the applicant be providing iPads or Surface
18  Pros or something with the application, exhibits
19  located -- downloaded on those devices?
20      MR. DUNCAN: Yes, Mr. Chairman.  We will be
21  providing you iPads.
22      CHMN. CHENAL: All right.  Good.
23      The applicant obviously will discuss with Staff
24  at the Corporation Commission covering all the costs for
25  the hearing?
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 1      MR. DERSTINE: Yes.
 2      CHMN. CHENAL: Mr. Emedi, did you have any
 3  thoughts or comments regarding any of the matters you
 4  have heard so far?
 5      MR. EMEDI: No.  Thank you, Chairman Chenal.
 6  Everything you guys have decided on sounds reasonable.
 7      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.  I don't really have
 8  anything further.  Anything we need to talk about,
 9  Ms. Benally or Mr. Derstine, or anybody else on the
10  call?
11      (No response.)
12      CHMN. CHENAL: So my to do list is to review the
13  notice of hearing, get that to Tod this afternoon.  And
14  then he will get it to you all.  And then I doubt there
15  will be -- I am not going to fill in the dates.  I will
16  leave it to you to do that.  If there is any changes, I
17  will note it.  I doubt that there will be.  But then you
18  will get it back to me on Monday or Tuesday.  And as
19  soon as I get it, I will turn it around and get it, and
20  get it back to Tod to get back to you.
21      Sound good?
22      MR. DERSTINE: That sounds good.  Thank you.
23      CHMN. CHENAL: Then you will, you will fill in
24  the dates for that, Mr. Derstine.  And I expect it will
25  be dated June 11th for the date of the signing of the
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 1  notice of hearing.  But, you know, give some thought to
 2  that and just make sure that works from your end.  But I
 3  will move that back right away.
 4      And then, Tod, just because this is our
 5  opportunity, we will work on that.  You will draft that
 6  procedural order.
 7      MR. BREWER: Yes, Mr. Chairman.
 8      CHMN. CHENAL: That's how we do it.
 9      And then we will have your agenda and the
10  other -- anything else we need ready to go.  And then,
11  because we will be moving quickly if it is going to be
12  filed here on June 11th, so we want to be ready to go.
13      And then we will see everyone on July 19th at
14      2:00 p.m. for the prehearing conference.  And if
15  anything comes up between now and then, we need to
16  speak, we will make ourselves available to do that.
17      MR. DERSTINE: Thank you.
18      CHMN. CHENAL: And if nothing else, thank you
19  very much.  We will adjourn.  And please have a good,
20  good weekend.  And we will see, we will see you back
21  here pretty soon.
22      (The
23  proceeding concluded at 3:24 p.m.)
24  
25  
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 1  STATE OF ARIZONA    )
    COUNTY OF MARICOPA  )
 2 
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 6 
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 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  Good afternoon, everyone.  My
  


 2   name is Tom Chenal.  This is the time set for the
  


 3   prefiling conference.
  


 4            And may I have appearances, please.
  


 5            Ms. Benally, do you want to start?  We just need
  


 6   appearances for the record, so if you just state your
  


 7   name and who you are here on behalf of.
  


 8            MS. BENALLY:  Linda Benally.  I represent APS.
  


 9            MR. DERSTINE:  Matt Derstine of Snell & Wilmer
  


10   representing APS.
  


11            MR. EMEDI:  Stephen Emedi on behalf of the
  


12   Arizona Corporation Commission.
  


13            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right, good.
  


14            Sorry?
  


15            MS. BENALLY:  Chairman.
  


16            MR. LANGBAUM:  Can I introduce myself here?
  


17            CHMN. CHENAL:  Sure.
  


18            MR. LANGBAUM:  Kevin Langbaum on behalf of APS.
  


19            CHMN. CHENAL:  Very good.  Thank you.
  


20            MR. DERSTINE:  And I think we have got one or
  


21   two others.
  


22            Kevin Duncan, are you on as well?
  


23            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.  I am Kevin Duncan on behalf
  


24   of APS.
  


25            MR. TURNER:  And also Mark Turner with AECOM,
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 1   consultant to APS.
  


 2            MS. CHAULK:  Hi.  And I am on, too.  I'm Anna
  


 3   Chaulk with APS in the regulatory department.
  


 4            And I apologize.  I am having connectivity.  So
  


 5   I am going to stay off camera.  I can see and hear you.
  


 6   And that's good enough for now.
  


 7            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.
  


 8            MS. CHAULK:  Thank you.
  


 9            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.
  


10            MR. DERSTINE:  I will start just briefly.
  


11            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Matt, I'm sorry.
  


12            MR. DERSTINE:  Oh, there he is.
  


13            Jason.
  


14            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Jason Spitzkoff -- I apologize
  


15   for my tardiness -- with APS.
  


16            MR. DERSTINE:  Jason, would you please adjust
  


17   your camera so the Chairman can see what you are
  


18   wearing.
  


19            CHMN. CHENAL:  Full disclosure, Jason.
  


20            All right.  We are good.
  


21            MR. DERSTINE:  Well, just briefly, so this is a
  


22   prefiling conference.  You are right.  We have talked on
  


23   this matter a couple of times through informal
  


24   conferences.  I know you have your checklist, kind of
  


25   the standard prefiling conference checklist.  We have
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 1   covered some of those things.  So I think we are ready.
  


 2   You gave us some input on some of those issues, sign
  


 3   locations, et cetera, study area.  So we took your good
  


 4   advice on those.
  


 5            I think in a prior one of our informal
  


 6   conferences you had suggested or requested that we give
  


 7   you a little bit of a presentation on APS's approach to
  


 8   the use of social media now that that's kind of come to
  


 9   the fore of the Committee.  I know your last, your
  


10   procedural order for an upcoming case includes a
  


11   provision on the use of social media.  So we have --
  


12   Mr. Langbaum is here to give you a presentation on how
  


13   APS has used and plans to use social media.
  


14            And then I think we want to, when you get to
  


15   those sections of your checklist on timing for
  


16   publication and the notice, this hearing is scheduled
  


17   for July the 26th.  We are filing our, we are scheduled
  


18   to file the supplement.  Again, this is a, it is an
  


19   amendment to two CECs.  It is under 40-252, but we are
  


20   packaging this filing in support of the application to
  


21   amend as a CEC application.  That is, it contains all
  


22   the relevant information of a normal CEC application,
  


23   which would, in my mind -- we are planning to comply
  


24   with the rules, but Ms. Benally and I were talking
  


25   earlier today.
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 1            I am a little bit concerned that, if we file on
  


 2   July 11th, that we would be way ahead of the
  


 3   July hearing date.  So when we get there, let's talk
  


 4   through that to see if it makes sense to adjust the time
  


 5   for either the filing of the supplement, although we are
  


 6   ready to go with that, or probably, more importantly,
  


 7   the publication of the notice of hearing so that it is
  


 8   closer in time to the hearing, and as well as the
  


 9   posting.  So when you get there, we are ready to talk
  


10   about that a bit.
  


11            And then as I mentioned on the social media
  


12   issue, whenever you want to address that, Mr. Langbaum
  


13   is ready to talk through and give you a bit of a
  


14   presentation on APS and social media.
  


15            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Very good.  Let's go
  


16   through my checklist.  Again, I don't think this is
  


17   going to take all that long, but I would be interested
  


18   in the items that you just raised, Mr. Derstine.
  


19            Let me ask just generally how much public
  


20   interest there is in the project that might lead to
  


21   additional public comment or intervenors or anything of
  


22   that nature.
  


23            MR. DERSTINE:  I will just jump in.
  


24            In terms of the -- we just, we are just
  


25   announcing the project.  Obviously the application to
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 1   amend has been filed.  Intervenors in those two siting
  


 2   cases, CEC 131 and CEC 120, have received notice.
  


 3   Beyond that, we are just getting ready to go forward
  


 4   with a virtual open house and newsletters or mailings
  


 5   that would publicize the open house.
  


 6            So I don't know that we are in a position now to
  


 7   gauge how much, you know, public interest or concern
  


 8   there will be over the project.  I think we anticipate
  


 9   that there won't be a lot given the nature of the case
  


10   and what we are seeking to do, which is simply, you
  


11   know, move the line a bit further north to accommodate
  


12   the new TSMC project.  But I think the answer to your
  


13   question is we don't really have an answer for you yet
  


14   in terms of how much public interest there will be.
  


15            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  All right.  Well,
  


16   let's talk about just briefly the project description.
  


17   And if there are any exhibits to go with this hearing,
  


18   let's make sure they are marked and will be attached to
  


19   the transcript.
  


20            I think, you know, it is a little harder to do
  


21   these remotely.  I think the last time I did it I forgot
  


22   to use the magic words attach map or so and so as
  


23   Exhibit A to the transcript.  So let's make sure we do
  


24   that this time, or make sure I do it.
  


25            So let's get a brief description and we will
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 1   attach any, review exhibits and attach those as
  


 2   exhibits.
  


 3            Mr. Derstine, if that's you, or if it is --
  


 4            MR. DERSTINE:  I think it is Mr. Spitzkoff
  


 5   and/or Mr. Duncan.
  


 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Very good.
  


 7            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Yes.  So I am going to go
  


 8   through the project description.  And I am going to
  


 9   bring it up to the screen.
  


10            So this is the map, I think, you know, part of
  


11   your reference that we will use and attach.  However --
  


12            CHMN. CHENAL:  This would be Exhibit A, then, to
  


13   the transcript.
  


14            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Okay.  We will do that.
  


15            CHMN. CHENAL:  We need to make sure the court
  


16   reporter has a copy of any exhibit to the hearing.
  


17            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Definitely.
  


18            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.
  


19            MR. DERSTINE:  I think we have forwarded
  


20   whatever we are going to present on the screen and that
  


21   you will identify as exhibits to this proceeding,
  


22   Mr. Chairman.  We have then forwarded those to
  


23   Mr. Brewer.  And I think he may have already forwarded
  


24   those on to the court reporter, or will do so.  I think
  


25   I'm right about that.
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 1            MR. BREWER:  That's correct.  I sent it to the
  


 2   reporter.
  


 3            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you, Tod.
  


 4            So we are looking at Figure 1, Project Vicinity
  


 5   Map, which will be Exhibit A to this conference.
  


 6            MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Spitzkoff, let me interrupt
  


 7   you before you start.
  


 8            To augment what Mr. Derstine just commented on,
  


 9   the only exhibit that we have not sent to Mr. Brewer is
  


10   the PowerPoint presentation that Mr. Langbaum will be
  


11   speaking from today.  We will send that over at the
  


12   close of the hearing, meeting today.
  


13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Very good.
  


14            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Okay.  So, Mr. Chairman, the
  


15   Figure 1 map, which will be Exhibit A, I will orient
  


16   everyone to what we are seeing here.  So through the
  


17   north-south alignment, sort of on the middle right side
  


18   is the I-17, Interstate 17.  The alignment I am showing
  


19   that's labeled as 74 here, this is Carefree Highway.  A
  


20   little bit further down going east-west is the 303
  


21   highway here.
  


22            And then all of the shaded area in blue is state
  


23   land.  That's designated as state land.  Anything that
  


24   does not have a color is private land.
  


25            And this, this other shade of blue, I don't
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 1   know, a little darker blue, is Game & Fish land.  So
  


 2   this is generally going to be covered over the Ben Avery
  


 3   facilities.  Coming down the middle of the page here,
  


 4   the 51st Avenue alignment, that's here.
  


 5            So going into some of the more detailed, what
  


 6   you see here, the dashed line that goes around this
  


 7   project is the project study area.  The red line that
  


 8   shows up coming through here, that's the existing
  


 9   500/230 line alignment as it is today.  It is already
  


10   constructed.  It was authorized between CECs 131 and
  


11   120.
  


12            The blue hashed area that you see around that
  


13   line, we are showing those -- we thought it was good
  


14   reference -- that was the previously certificated
  


15   corridor with those projects.  So we have those for
  


16   reference.  The yellow or orange hash marks that you can
  


17   see behind that here, that's the previously certificated
  


18   siting area for the Avery substation.  The solid green
  


19   is our Avery substation location.  Avery substation is
  


20   covered in CEC 120.
  


21            So we are staying within the certificated area.
  


22   The subject of this amendment is going to be more about
  


23   expanding the size of that substation.  But we are still
  


24   within the previously certificated area.
  


25            The dotted hash marked area here that you could
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 1   see outlines the TSMC land.  So that's the land they
  


 2   purchased from Arizona State Land Department in, I think
  


 3   it was, December of just this past year.
  


 4            The yellow hashed area will be the proposed
  


 5   corridor expansion.  So that will cover -- as you could
  


 6   see, the black line here is symbolized as the reroute of
  


 7   the existing line that we would like to do.  So, in
  


 8   essence, the red that you see between those, where the
  


 9   black line connects, will go away and be replaced by
  


10   this black line routing here.  And the yellow is what
  


11   our proposed expansion will be.  That will allow us to
  


12   site that line with enough area to move it as far north
  


13   as we need.
  


14            The pink box represents the TS22 substation
  


15   siting area.  So like the Avery box here, this box is
  


16   the actual footprint representation of the Avery
  


17   substation within the hashed siting area.  This box is
  


18   equivalent to the orange siting area.  So a TS22
  


19   substation would be somewhere within this box.  This
  


20   box, I believe, I forget the exact number, I think it
  


21   was 409, 439 acres, something like that.  The substation
  


22   itself will be approximately 80 acres within there.
  


23            And then -- so that's the project description.
  


24   I think we will -- you will have future questions, talk
  


25   about notice area and all that.  So I think I will stop
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 1   here for that part.
  


 2            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you.
  


 3            Well, let's then talk about the notice of
  


 4   hearing and other hearing issues and get into the social
  


 5   media and the timing of it.
  


 6            So, Mr. Derstine, I mean the proposed hearing
  


 7   dates are July 26 through, I don't know, 29th or 30th,
  


 8   depending how many days we want to make sure we have it
  


 9   reserved for.  But then I looked at the draft notice of
  


10   hearing.  It looks appropriate to me.  I didn't
  


11   really -- I took a quick look at it.  I just really got
  


12   it.
  


13            Let's talk about who you are going to publish
  


14   the notice with.  I assume the Republic.
  


15            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Duncan, do you want to
  


16   talk about the --
  


17            I mean, assuming we are going to file the
  


18   supplement this -- the package that looks like a CEC
  


19   application on June 11th, then I think Mr. Duncan is
  


20   prepared to identify what our proposed publication dates
  


21   are in the newspapers that we will use.
  


22            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.  Thank you, Mr. Derstine.
  


23            Mr. Chairman, the newspapers that we plan to
  


24   publish in would be the Arizona Republic, Zones 1 and 3,
  


25   on Wednesday, Friday -- sorry.  Their publication cycle
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 1   is Wednesday, Friday, Saturday.  We propose to publish
  


 2   on Wednesday, June 16th, and Saturday, June 19th, in
  


 3   that, for that newspaper.
  


 4            For the Foothills Focus, it covers portions of
  


 5   nearby areas.  It's publication cycle is only on
  


 6   Wednesday.  So we propose to publish also on Wednesday,
  


 7   June 16th.
  


 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  A second publication or
  


 9   just the one for the Foothills?
  


10            MR. DUNCAN:  Just the one.
  


11            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  All right.  Well, that
  


12   sounds acceptable.
  


13            Mr. Derstine, have you and Ms. Benally had a
  


14   discussion about the timing of the publication of giving
  


15   of notice?
  


16            MR. DERSTINE:  I just wanted to raise with you
  


17   whether -- you know, this is, it is not different than,
  


18   you know, other cases in which our hearing date is maybe
  


19   40 days out from the filing of the application.  We just
  


20   wanted to raise whether or not it is, given that it is
  


21   really a 40-252 proceeding, and I will look for some
  


22   legal advice from Staff through Mr. Emedi if he thinks
  


23   otherwise, I don't think this is governed by 40-360 in
  


24   terms of the timing rules, but we are happy to comply
  


25   with those as if it were a new CEC application.  I just
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 1   wanted to raise whether you thought it made sense to
  


 2   delay the publication of the notice to a time that's
  


 3   closer to the July 26 hearing date, because we have the
  


 4   flexibility.  But maybe it makes sense, given all,
  


 5   everything, that we should just follow the rules as the
  


 6   statute is written, even though, technically, it is not
  


 7   a new CEC application.
  


 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, let me ask this question.
  


 9   Mr. Emedi can ponder the answer to your question.  I
  


10   didn't review the, you know, the statutes and the rules
  


11   on the notice.  But aren't those more in terms of
  


12   minimum time limit?  In other words, you have to have
  


13   the publications and notice at least a certain number of
  


14   days before.  I mean it is more, it is more a
  


15   limitation.  It is not a maximum period, I guess is what
  


16   I am saying.
  


17            MR. DERSTINE:  Well, there is -- so, and I don't
  


18   have it in front of me either, but my recollection is
  


19   that 04, 40-360.04 says we have to provide notice within
  


20   10 days of the filing of the application or actually you
  


21   signing the notice of hearing.
  


22            CHMN. CHENAL:  Notice of hearing, right.
  


23            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah.  So that's the trigger.  So
  


24   that starts that 10-day clock.  So we would have to
  


25   publish within 10 days.  The timeline that Mr. Duncan
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 1   provided you complies with 04 in terms of meeting that
  


 2   first publication within the 10 days.  And then your
  


 3   procedural order requires that we get the signs in the
  


 4   ground 20 days before the hearing.  That's not a
  


 5   problem.
  


 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  Right.
  


 7            MR. DERSTINE:  It is posting.  But it is really
  


 8   the trigger of, you know, the early publication of the
  


 9   notice of hearing.  And we are happy to comply with it.
  


10   We just, we just thought we would raise it with you.
  


11            CHMN. CHENAL:  Let's do it the way that is.  It
  


12   is within the 30 to 60 days, you know, after the -- the
  


13   hearing would be within 30 to 60 days after technically
  


14   the notice is given.  So let's just do it the way you
  


15   proposed.
  


16            MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.
  


17            CHMN. CHENAL:  It is one less avenue of attack
  


18   if someone wants to attack this down the road.  You
  


19   know, clearly this will work, you know.  You know, if we
  


20   deviate from it, who knows what kind of mischief someone
  


21   could cause.
  


22            MR. DERSTINE:  Right.  Very good.
  


23            CHMN. CHENAL:  So...
  


24            All right.  Signs and lo --
  


25            Yes, Ms. Benally.
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 1            MS. BENALLY:  I am sorry, Mr. Chairman.
  


 2            So based on the review that we have done with
  


 3   the newspapers, they would have to have the final
  


 4   publication by the 9th of June, so just from a timing
  


 5   standpoint for you to be aware of when you issue your
  


 6   notice of hearing in order to meet the publication date
  


 7   of June 16th and June 19.
  


 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  So say that again, please.  When
  


 9   do they have to --
  


10            MS. BENALLY:  June the 9th is the date that, I
  


11   believe.
  


12            Mr. Duncan, you can verify that for me if I am
  


13   inaccurate.
  


14            MR. DUNCAN:  No, you are correct.  June 9th is
  


15   when those need to be at the newspaper.
  


16            CHMN. CHENAL:  But I thought your filing is
  


17   going to be June 11th.
  


18            MR. DERSTINE:  Right.  So I guess we can, we can
  


19   reconvene on that.
  


20            But, so if we file June 11th, Kevin, if we slide
  


21   back our -- and the Chairman signs the notice of hearing
  


22   on or about June 11th, I assume we can still get a
  


23   publication within 10 days.  We just may slide back from
  


24   the June 16th original publication date.  And maybe what
  


25   you have set up --
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 1            MR. DUNCAN:  Let me clarify.  Is it 10 business
  


 2   days or 10 calendar days?
  


 3            MR. DERSTINE:  10 days straight, yeah, calendar
  


 4   days.
  


 5            MR. DUNCAN:  I am going to say that they -- it
  


 6   would probably -- that's going to put it on the 10th
  


 7   day.  That would be -- because, because Foothills Focus
  


 8   only runs on Wednesday, and the Republic doesn't run on
  


 9   Monday or Tuesday.  So in both cases it would be the
  


10   10th day.
  


11            MR. DERSTINE:  So the Republic doesn't run ads
  


12   on Monday or Tuesday in the zones that you are looking
  


13   to publish, is that right?
  


14            MR. DUNCAN:  That's right.  And Foothills Focus
  


15   only runs on Wednesday.  So if we are talking about
  


16   10 days from the 11th, that's -- let's see.
  


17            Actually, we cannot meet that.  That would put
  


18   us outside that window.
  


19            CHMN. CHENAL:  It is really not 10 days from
  


20   the -- and I apologize.  It is harder doing this when
  


21   you are -- when I am not in the office and I have all my
  


22   books in front of me and statutes and, you know.
  


23            But I think the statute is not technically 10
  


24   days from filing.  It is 10 -- it is within giving
  


25   notice.
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 1            And, Mr. Derstine, maybe help me out here, but
  


 2   can we just -- can I just hold the notice of hearing and
  


 3   sign it a day later and start the clock ticking?  I
  


 4   mean, will that assist in meeting the schedule or give
  


 5   you --
  


 6            MR. DERSTINE:  Or it sounds like maybe what we
  


 7   would do is, can we file earlier?  Are we in a position
  


 8   to file earlier Kevin?  Does that work?
  


 9            MR. DUNCAN:  We are not in a position to file
  


10   earlier.  In order for us to, in order for us to make
  


11   10 days, because the publication date would be the 23rd,
  


12   that's the earliest Wednesday we could get if we don't
  


13   make the 16th.  And 10 days back from the 23rd is the
  


14   13th.  That is the Sunday following our filing.
  


15            MS. BENALLY:  I have the rule relating to the
  


16   notice requirement.  So if you don't mind, I can share
  


17   that really quickly.
  


18            Basically it says:  The presiding officer shall,
  


19   within 10 days after receiving an application, provide
  


20   public notice as to time and place of hearing on the
  


21   application.  So it is 10 days from the time the
  


22   application is filed.
  


23            CHMN. CHENAL:  Are you reading the statute or
  


24   the rule?
  


25            MS. BENALLY:  The rule.


      COASH & COASH, INC.                  602-258-1440
      www.coashandcoash.com                 Phoenix, AZ







LS CASES 120 & 131    PREFILING CONFERENCE   06/04/2021 21


  


 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  You are reading the rule.  The
  


 2   statute is a little different.  But there is a little
  


 3   inconsistency there, I think.
  


 4            MR. DERSTINE:  Well, I guess the difficulty with
  


 5   this is that the particular -- we need to get one notice
  


 6   up within 10 days.
  


 7            And, Kevin, you are saying none of the, either
  


 8   the Republic or that Foothills paper won't accommodate
  


 9   that unless the Chairman signs it on the 9th?
  


10            MR. DUNCAN:  That is correct.  Well, yes,
  


11   because the 9th is the day we have to have it to the
  


12   newspapers in order to -- they, both newspapers, require
  


13   a week.
  


14            CHMN. CHENAL:  Can I postdate it?  Can we give
  


15   it to them on the 9th but I date it the 11th?
  


16            MR. DUNCAN:  I don't think the newspaper is
  


17   going to reject it, as long as we all feel that's
  


18   aboveboard.
  


19            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well --
  


20            MR. DERSTINE:  It is effective on the 11th
  


21   anyway.
  


22            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yeah.  I don't know why it
  


23   wouldn't be.  They just need something so they can get
  


24   it in their publication process so it is ready to be
  


25   published on the 16th.  I don't -- if what they publish
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 1   on the 16th is dated the 11th, I don't think they really
  


 2   care.
  


 3            MR. DERSTINE:  Right.
  


 4            CHMN. CHENAL:  Right?  I think, I mean correct
  


 5   me if I'm wrong, but I think that will work.  I am happy
  


 6   to do that, by the way.
  


 7            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah.  I think if we can -- you
  


 8   have our proposed draft notice of hearing.  You can
  


 9   review it and mark up whatever you think needs to be
  


10   edited or changed.  And then if you are in a position to
  


11   then sign it and postdate it effective the 11th, then we
  


12   can send it back to the newspapers.  They can use that
  


13   to do their markup and their galley sheet for the actual
  


14   publication.  And that meets their timing requirements.
  


15   I think that works legally and works for the paper.
  


16            CHMN. CHENAL:  So today is the 4th.  5th, 6th,
  


17   the 7th is Monday.  I will look at this this afternoon
  


18   and I will get it back to Tod.  He can get it to you.
  


19            I doubt there will be any changes other than
  


20   filling in the dates and things like that.  I did look
  


21   at it briefly.  Nothing jumped out at me.  So assuming
  


22   you get it back later this afternoon, you can do it in
  


23   final.  If you want to send it to me Monday, I can sign
  


24   it and we get it back to you.  So you will have it on
  


25   the 7th.  But we will have it dated the -- maybe if,
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 1   when you send it back for me to sign it, you can fill in
  


 2   the dates, you know, the 11th so I don't inadvertently
  


 3   write the 7th or whatever the date is.
  


 4            MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.
  


 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  I think that works.
  


 6            MR. DERSTINE:  Yep, I agree.
  


 7            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Signs and locations.
  


 8            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes, I will speak to that.
  


 9            So I know you have seen this map before.
  


10            Jason, can you share the sign map, please.
  


11            So once this --
  


12            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Kevin, who are you asking?
  


13            MR. DUNCAN:  I am sorry.  Jason, I thought -- I
  


14   can bring it up.  Just give me a moment.  Sorry.  I
  


15   didn't have it ready.
  


16            MR. SPITZKOFF:  I have it.  I just didn't hear
  


17   who you asked.
  


18            MR. DUNCAN:  Oh, okay.
  


19            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Okay.  That is Figure 1.  And
  


20   here is our sign map.  This was, the base layer behind
  


21   this is an older, older figure --
  


22            MR. DUNCAN:  We are going to be updating --
  


23            MR. SPITZKOFF:  -- that shows --
  


24            MR. DUNCAN:  -- this, yeah, we are going to be
  


25   updating this map just to reflect that if -- it does
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 1   show an older version, but in terms of the sign
  


 2   locations, they are accurate.
  


 3            So the Sign No. 1 location is just south of the
  


 4   entrance into the Ben Avery shooting facility but on the
  


 5   south side.  The sign will be placed on state lane.
  


 6            Sign No. 2 is at the south end of the entrance
  


 7   into the Arizona Game & Fish Department's headquarters,
  


 8   but, again, will be on the south side.
  


 9            Both of those signs are in areas that have
  


10   established large turnoff areas.  So even though the
  


11   signs will be set back from the road, there will be room
  


12   there for people to pull up, take a picture safely
  


13   and/or read the sign, and get back in their car and be
  


14   on their way.
  


15            Sign No. 3 is located adjacent to 51st Avenue.
  


16   Again, it will be on state land.  And we are putting
  


17   this in a location where there is an adequate pull-off
  


18   area for people to safely be able to see that sign.
  


19            And Sign No. 4, the appearance here shows it as
  


20   if it is on the private land, but it actually will be on
  


21   the state land, on the south there of the Carefree
  


22   Highway alignment.  But, again, it will be on the state
  


23   land but in an area where there is adequate room for
  


24   people to pull over safely and photograph or view the
  


25   sign.
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 1            So those four locations are all generally in the
  


 2   project vicinity in areas where people who are here by
  


 3   the area would see it.  And I know this has been
  


 4   discussed with you previously.  So those are our four
  


 5   locations.
  


 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  Those are fine to me.  Let's make
  


 7   the map we are looking at Exhibit 2 this conference,
  


 8   and, again, to make sure that the Colette has a copy.
  


 9            THE REPORTER:  Did you want 2 or B?
  


10            CHMN. CHENAL:  B.  If the other one was A, this
  


11   will be B.  If the first one was 1, this will be 2.
  


12   Makes no difference.
  


13            Okay.  I think that's good.  Let's talk now
  


14   about social media.
  


15            Mr. Langbaum.  Did I pronounce your name
  


16   correctly?
  


17            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes.  Thank you.
  


18            MR. DUNCAN:  Do you want to review the sign
  


19   text --
  


20            CHMN. CHENAL:  I am sorry, yes.
  


21            MR. DUNCAN:  -- before --
  


22            CHMN. CHENAL:  I do.  And we do it for the
  


23   record.  I jumped ahead because I already looked at it
  


24   when it was sent to me earlier today.  And it looked
  


25   acceptable.  But let's make sure that's correct.
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 1            And so this will become Exhibit No. 3.  Let's
  


 2   make them numerical, Colette.
  


 3            THE REPORTER:  Okay.
  


 4            MR. DUNCAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
  


 5            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Okay.  I think I have the latest
  


 6   version, but I don't know.  We will find out.
  


 7            MS. BENALLY:  That is not the current version.
  


 8            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Okay.  Well, then, does anyone
  


 9   else have it?
  


10            MS. BENALLY:  I sent it to the team at
  


11   12:08 p.m.  Mr. Spitzkoff, would you mind checking your
  


12   email to see if you might be able to look at it?
  


13            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Yep, I got your email.
  


14            MS. BENALLY:  Thank you very much.
  


15            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Okay.  There we go.  That's it?
  


16            MS. BENALLY:  Yes.  Thank you.
  


17            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Okay.  Kevin, or I don't know
  


18   who is talking to this.
  


19            MR. DUNCAN:  Oh, yes.  So this is me.  This is
  


20   talking about the -- this is the text that we intended
  


21   for the roadside signs.
  


22            Mr. Chairman.
  


23            CHMN. CHENAL:  Can you scroll up so we can see
  


24   the bottom?  Oh, it is just the -- okay.  That's it.
  


25   All right.


      COASH & COASH, INC.                  602-258-1440
      www.coashandcoash.com                 Phoenix, AZ







LS CASES 120 & 131    PREFILING CONFERENCE   06/04/2021 27


  


 1            MR. DERSTINE:  And we had elected, or I
  


 2   suggested that we not include a map just because it is
  


 3   hard to get all the relevant information in a letter
  


 4   size format people can read.  And so that was --
  


 5   (indiscernible).
  


 6            THE REPORTER:  Mr. Derstine.
  


 7            (The reporter requested repetition.)
  


 8            MR. DERSTINE:  My suggestion was not to include
  


 9   a map, Mr. Chairman.  I am not sure how you feel about
  


10   it.  It just seems like a lot of information to put on a
  


11   road sign.  But if we need to include the map on the
  


12   sign, we can do it.
  


13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, it is a difficult issue.  I
  


14   would rather see a map.  I would rather see a map,
  


15   frankly.  That's kind of the way we have done it in past
  


16   hearings.
  


17            I certainly would like to have the discussion
  


18   with the Committee on that.  On the times I have seen
  


19   signs, it is somewhat helpful.  And I don't think it
  


20   would be too hard to add it.  I know that it would be
  


21   accessible by the link, but I think it would be more
  


22   helpful to have the map than not, even though this is
  


23   squishing it a little to get it onto the sign.  And we
  


24   can talk to the Committee about it when it comes up in
  


25   the hearing if there is much, you know, if there is much
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 1   thought about, about whether or not to have the map
  


 2   associated with the sign.
  


 3            MR. DERSTINE:  Very good.
  


 4            MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Chairman, this is Ms. Benally.
  


 5   The only other comment I would like to make is the date
  


 6   and time will be revised to reflect whatever you advise
  


 7   that we set for this hearing.
  


 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yeah.  I thought the 28th was a
  


 9   little optimistic.  I don't know.  Maybe it is not.
  


10   Maybe we finish then.  But, you know, I may want to
  


11   include a little more time just in case.  I don't know.
  


12   We can talk about that in a minute.
  


13            But the form looks fine to me.  The language
  


14   looks fine.  I prefer, Mr. Derstine, to see a map.  I
  


15   appreciate the issue.  But I would rather have it than
  


16   not.  Then we can discuss it with the Committee when it
  


17   comes up at the hearing just to make sure that, you
  


18   know, the Committee is all on the same page going
  


19   forward.  That would be a pretty big change to me, and I
  


20   would rather have the input of the Committee on that.
  


21            MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.
  


22            CHMN. CHENAL:  So all right.
  


23            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Do we need to provide this or
  


24   have we already provided it as like Exhibit C?
  


25            CHMN. CHENAL:  That would be Exhibit 3, yes.
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 1   What is on the screen will be marked as Exhibit 3 to
  


 2   this conference.  Thank you.
  


 3            Notice to affected jurisdictions.  Mr. Derstine,
  


 4   can you remind me which jurisdictions are affected by
  


 5   this?
  


 6            MR. DERSTINE:  I will let Mr. Spitzkoff or
  


 7   Mr. Duncan respond to that.
  


 8            MR. DUNCAN:  I will be happy to respond to that.
  


 9            So the, Mr. Chairman, the affected jurisdictions
  


10   include the City of Phoenix.  The entire project area is
  


11   within the City of Phoenix.  It also impacts the Arizona
  


12   State Land Department, being that the entirety of the,
  


13   the planned relocated line is on Arizona State Trust
  


14   Land.
  


15            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.
  


16            MR. DERSTINE:  And is it also all within
  


17   Maricopa County, Kevin?
  


18            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes, it is all within Maricopa
  


19   County as well.
  


20            CHMN. CHENAL:  So I think we would want to
  


21   include all three of those.
  


22            MR. DERSTINE:  Right.
  


23            MR. DUNCAN:  Very good.
  


24            CHMN. CHENAL:  Any reason to include -- we don't
  


25   have to -- Game & Fish?  I mean --
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 1            MR. DUNCAN:  We --
  


 2            CHMN. CHENAL:  -- it is south of their property,
  


 3   I understand.
  


 4            MR. DUNCAN:  We have not felt the need to
  


 5   include them, as there are no direct impacts.  Yeah, the
  


 6   line potentially would be moved closer to their
  


 7   property, but still at a great distance.  So we didn't
  


 8   feel it necessary.
  


 9            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Understood.  I don't
  


10   dispute that.
  


11            Mr. Langbaum, let's talk about social media now.
  


12            MR. LANGBAUM:  Thank you.
  


13            Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman.  My name is Kevin
  


14   Langbaum.
  


15            CHMN. CHENAL:  Langbaum.
  


16            MR. LANGBAUM:  It is fine.
  


17            I am the manager of customer communications at
  


18   APS.  I have been here for 13 years, all in corporate
  


19   communications, including eight years in which I have
  


20   overseen our social media in various roles.
  


21            I want to talk today a little bit about how we
  


22   use social media with our line siting outreach.  So I am
  


23   going to pull up a deck that I will walk through.
  


24            Okay.  Let me know if you are seeing it.
  


25            CHMN. CHENAL:  Not yet.
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 1            MR. DERSTINE:  And I think, as Ms. Benally
  


 2   indicated, we will get this deck to the court reporter.
  


 3   And I assume you will want to mark it for the record as
  


 4   Exhibit 4.
  


 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yes.  Thank you.
  


 6            MR. LANGBAUM:  Okay.  Are you seeing it now?
  


 7            CHMN. CHENAL:  Negative.
  


 8            MR. DUNCAN:  No.
  


 9            MR. DERSTINE:  No.
  


10            MR. LANGBAUM:  Okay.  Let me try again.  It
  


11   shows that I am sharing it.
  


12            So how about now?
  


13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yes.
  


14            MR. LANGBAUM:  Okay.  So we are currently using
  


15   a variety of channels to publicize line siting open
  


16   houses, public comment or hearings, including direct
  


17   mail, email, newspaper advertising, our websites, and
  


18   social media.
  


19            What we are, what we are using for social media
  


20   is Facebook advertising.  This is part of an effective
  


21   overall media mix.  We use advertising to reach
  


22   customers geographically based on the impacted areas of
  


23   the project.
  


24            We can run these advertisements during the
  


25   virtual open house period and point people through the
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 1   links in the ad to the virtual open house website and
  


 2   invite them to share their comments or ask questions.
  


 3            CHMN. CHENAL:  Oh, one second.  Can we go back?
  


 4            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes.
  


 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  What does the last comment mean?
  


 6   You have to dumb that one down for me.
  


 7            MR. LANGBAUM:  Okay.  So we have a Facebook
  


 8   page, an APS Facebook page.  We can post anything we
  


 9   want on it.  And the people who follow our page will
  


10   see, only the people who followed our page would see
  


11   that in their feeds.  That's referred to as an organic
  


12   post.
  


13            Paid advertising does not live on our page.  It
  


14   shows up in the feeds of the people that we are trying
  


15   to reach through the ad.  So it is a little bit
  


16   different versus posting something on our page.  It
  


17   really allows us to reach the desired audience.
  


18            CHMN. CHENAL:  So, rather than organic posts,
  


19   which I understand now to be, say, followers on
  


20   Facebook, the specific audience is actually a larger
  


21   audience of people who are not yet followers who you
  


22   hope to reach.
  


23            MR. LANGBAUM:  Correct.
  


24            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  All right.  Thank you.
  


25            MR. LANGBAUM:  Okay?  These are two examples of
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 1   recent efforts, the one on the left, a Facebook ad, the
  


 2   one on the right, that appears on Instagram, which is
  


 3   connected to Facebook.  So I will cover that in a
  


 4   moment.  These are within the last year.  I should point
  


 5   out that we have started doing these ads about the
  


 6   middle of last year.
  


 7            Facebook gives us a broad audience.  It is a
  


 8   popular site.  We have really good capabilities to reach
  


 9   the audiences.  We can do it based on a radius
  


10   surrounding a certain area mileage-wise.  Others you can
  


11   only look at zip codes.  So this is a really effective
  


12   way of finding the folks that we want to reach in the
  


13   areas surrounding the project.
  


14            CHMN. CHENAL:  Mr. Langbaum, let me stop you
  


15   right there.  Are you going to discuss in a moment what
  


16   radius, for example, or area or zip code you are going
  


17   to use for this project?  In other words, is this just
  


18   background; you are going to get into the specifics of
  


19   this case?
  


20            MR. LANGBAUM:  I was not prepared to get into
  


21   the specifics of this case.  This is background.  But we
  


22   certainly can provide that information.
  


23            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yeah.  So am I to understand that
  


24   the methods you have just described will be the methods
  


25   you will use for this project?
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 1            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes.
  


 2            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  And then, since this is an
  


 3   issue of the radius surrounding the project area, or the
  


 4   zip code, what would be your intent as to the radius you
  


 5   would use of the extent of the zip code area for this
  


 6   project for purposes of the social media, at least
  


 7   Facebook?
  


 8            MR. LANGBAUM:  So I am not prepared to answer
  


 9   that today.  I would have to research that and get back
  


10   to you.  We would be able to provide that information.
  


11            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, do you have like a -- do
  


12   you have like thoughts or policies or, based on your
  


13   previous cases, kind of what would normally, you would
  


14   think, might be appropriate for a case like this?  Now,
  


15   I'm not holding you to it of course.  I have no idea.  I
  


16   mean I don't know if it extends to Wickenburg, to
  


17   Carefree.
  


18            MR. LANGBAUM:  Kevin, can --
  


19            MR. DUNCAN:  If I might, Mr. Chairman.
  


20            So in the last meeting that you had with our
  


21   team, I was not in attendance but it was brought to my
  


22   attention that there was a request to extend our
  


23   notification area slightly to the east to encompass some
  


24   residential neighborhoods east of I-17 in addition to
  


25   our notification area, which comprised essentially the
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 1   study area, which was essentially what you saw on the
  


 2   map that was marked as Exhibit A.
  


 3            That additional notification area is primarily
  


 4   the area that these Facebook ads are going to be driven
  


 5   to.  I don't have an exact statement on the radius.  But
  


 6   the extended area was shared with the social media team
  


 7   at APS, and they designed a radius appropriate to
  


 8   encompass that.  And that is in addition to the other,
  


 9   you know, handful of property owners that would be
  


10   receiving the -- that would have received the Facebook
  


11   ad previously, such as the Arizona Game & Fish
  


12   Department, the Arizona State Land Department, the Ben
  


13   Avery Shooting Range, and a few commercial properties
  


14   along the east side of I-17.
  


15            So the radius on this one is being extended to
  


16   include, it is probably what it is -- honestly, I don't
  


17   have the exact reference in front of me -- but it is
  


18   probably two separate radiuses that were created, one
  


19   for the initial study area and then one for the added
  


20   area to include those residences.
  


21            That radius probably is somewhere on the order
  


22   of about a quarter mile, because the additional area
  


23   would be, if you looked at it as a circle, would be
  


24   about a, about a quarter mile, you know, if it was, if
  


25   it was -- if you were to measure it, about a quarter
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 1   mile dimensionally in each direction.
  


 2            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman.
  


 3            Kevin, I am sorry.
  


 4            I was just going to note I think our objective
  


 5   in using these targeted Facebook ads, Mr. Chairman, is
  


 6   to mirror the notifications or the mailing list that we
  


 7   would pull up.  So all the addresses in our notification
  


 8   area, we are looking to kind of cover that same map with
  


 9   our Facebook, with our targeted Facebook ads so that the
  


10   bulk who we have identified would be within the
  


11   notification area.
  


12            In this case, as Kevin mentioned, we decided to
  


13   expand it to include some of those subdivisions a little
  


14   bit further east of I-17.  But those folks will get the
  


15   mailings, and they will also be targeted with these
  


16   Facebook ads.
  


17            And so that's really, when we are using the term
  


18   radius here, as I understand what we are really looking
  


19   at is trying to mirror the same notification area that
  


20   would cover our mailing list for paper mailing.
  


21            Is that right, Kevin?
  


22            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.
  


23            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes, that's right.
  


24            CHMN. CHENAL:  And I appreciate that.  That
  


25   gives, that gives some, you know, context to this.
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 1            I remember in the last meeting we did discuss
  


 2   picking up a little of the neighborhood to the east of
  


 3   where, of what had been proposed and that those people
  


 4   would receive mailers, if I remember correctly.
  


 5            So the Facebook ads and targeted area would try
  


 6   to mirror the notice, the same noticed area for the
  


 7   mailers.  You will have to forgive me.  I didn't know
  


 8   Facebook could be that precise.
  


 9            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes.  That's one of the
  


10   advantages we find to using these ads.
  


11            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  All right.  Thanks,
  


12   Mr. Langbaum.  Go ahead.
  


13            MR. LANGBAUM:  Thank you.  Okay.
  


14            CHMN. CHENAL:  I wanted to clarify that, and I
  


15   now have it.  So thank you.
  


16            MR. LANGBAUM:  Thank you.
  


17            So I just want to cover a few of the benefits
  


18   and the limitations, reemphasizing social media is an
  


19   additional way of reaching customers.  Part of the mix
  


20   that we have said also includes the mailed notice, the
  


21   emails and newspaper advertisements.  It can be a cost
  


22   effective and, as we just discussed, geographically
  


23   specific way of pointing people to the website or the
  


24   comment area.
  


25            As with anything else, you have limitations.
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 1   Not everyone uses social media.  Not everyone is on all
  


 2   channels of social media.  And even on Facebook we can't
  


 3   guarantee that, even if you are in that zone, you will
  


 4   see our ads.  We can, we can do our best.  Like the
  


 5   traditional tactics, it is effective when it is
  


 6   appropriate to the audience.  So we are using it as
  


 7   another tool in our toolkit.
  


 8            MR. DERSTINE:  Kevin, I am sorry.  Can I stop
  


 9   you for a minute with a question?
  


10            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes.
  


11            MR. DERSTINE:  I saw you had Instagram and
  


12   Facebook.  I understand Facebook owns Instagram.  So if
  


13   I am on Instagram but I am not on Facebook, or vice
  


14   versa, if you are placing a Facebook ad and I just use
  


15   Instagram, am I going to see that on my feed?  Is there
  


16   the same geographic targeting for Instagram that you
  


17   have for Facebook?
  


18            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes, it should be.  One of the
  


19   advantages to Facebook is, because the platforms are
  


20   connected, we can reach Instagram as well.
  


21            MR. DERSTINE:  So --
  


22            CHMN. CHENAL:  And then -- sorry.
  


23            MR. DERSTINE:  Well, I was just going to say,
  


24   when we had some comments from the last case,
  


25   particularly from Member Gentles, who said, you know,
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 1   the younger folks use Instagram, maybe the folks in my
  


 2   generation or older have taken off with Facebook, would
  


 3   work.  When APS is placing a targeted Facebook ad,
  


 4   trying to publicize an upcoming case for an open house
  


 5   for a case, it is going to go through to both channels.
  


 6   Am I right in understanding that?
  


 7            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes, that's correct.
  


 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Now, my question is:  What is
  


 9   being advertised on Facebook and Instagram?  Is it the
  


10   open house or is it the hearing that's coming up, or
  


11   both?
  


12            MR. LANGBAUM:  Typically, and, Kevin, you can
  


13   chime in as well on this, but these examples here are --
  


14   show ads for the virtual open house, which would go out
  


15   kind of timed to the beginning of that open house so
  


16   that these would be served for several weeks during the
  


17   duration of the virtual open house.
  


18            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.  Thank you, Kevin.
  


19            Mr. Chairman, on this, for this project
  


20   specifically, the upcoming Facebook ad would coincide
  


21   with the opening of our virtual open house and would
  


22   direct people to the virtual open house.  We would again
  


23   use the Facebook ad in conjunction with our notice of
  


24   hearing to help publicize the notice of hearing.  That
  


25   is a second use that we would have upcoming adjacent to


      COASH & COASH, INC.                  602-258-1440
      www.coashandcoash.com                 Phoenix, AZ







LS CASES 120 & 131    PREFILING CONFERENCE   06/04/2021 40


  


 1   the announcement of the virtual open house.
  


 2            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Let's stop there and just
  


 3   key in on that for a second.  Okay.  So the notice of
  


 4   hearing will also be advertised in the same targeted
  


 5   area as we discussed, both on Facebook and Instagram,
  


 6   correct?
  


 7            MR. DUNCAN:  That is correct.
  


 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Very good.
  


 9            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Mr. Chairman, just to clarify,
  


10   our intent with our use of social media in this manner
  


11   is really to mimic the mailings.  So if we do a mailing,
  


12   we would do a social media ad campaign with that.  So if
  


13   we do a mailing for the virtual open house, or in the
  


14   future even a regular open house, we would do a
  


15   mailing -- we would do the social media ads.  Same thing
  


16   when we put a mailing out for notice of hearing, we
  


17   would do notice in the social media also.  So it is
  


18   another -- if we are going to send out a postcard or a
  


19   newsletter, we will also do the social media version.
  


20            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Very good.
  


21            MR. LANGBAUM:  So one other thing I want to
  


22   cover in regards to social media is it is, by nature, an
  


23   engaged, a two-way engaged conversation.  While we do
  


24   provide a link to the virtual open house where customers
  


25   can put their input into the record there, we will treat
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 1   comments that come in through social media as if they
  


 2   are coming into every other appropriate channel.  So we
  


 3   will forward those to the project team.  They will be
  


 4   logged and they will be responded to as appropriate.
  


 5            So we do, we do not get a lot on social media
  


 6   comments about it because there are other venues to do
  


 7   that, but we do have a process in place to handle that.
  


 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you.
  


 9            MR. LANGBAUM:  I want to just talk a little bit
  


10   about some of the other social media channels.  For
  


11   Twitter, we do not do the advertising there.  It has a
  


12   much smaller audience.  It doesn't have the ability to
  


13   target as effectively with the geographic areas.
  


14            And then NextDoor is relatively new.  It is
  


15   growing.  It is evolving.  We will continue to monitor,
  


16   evaluate, and adjust our best practices in terms of
  


17   using that as appropriate.  So that's something we are
  


18   definitely keeping an eye on.
  


19            And then the last slide I am going to kick over
  


20   to Jason.  He is going to have some summary of kind of
  


21   recommendations.
  


22            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Thank you, Kevin.
  


23            So, Mr. Chairman, you know, we wanted to provide
  


24   a background of what our evaluation and our use of
  


25   social media is to date.  You know, I think you had
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 1   indicated a desire to hear a little bit about that.
  


 2            As you have seen from Kevin's presentation here,
  


 3   APS's use at this time is primarily in the Facebook ads
  


 4   and, you know, the attached Instagram audience also.  We
  


 5   feel that is the best use of social media to date.  As
  


 6   he also just mentioned, social media, the platforms that
  


 7   are out there are always evolving.  So we will, you
  


 8   know, continuously evaluate the uses and the platforms.
  


 9            So with that, you know, our recommendation, you
  


10   know, for future orders regarding use of social media
  


11   would be to have it as broad as possible and, you know,
  


12   not as specific, because the uses could even change
  


13   depending upon the nature of the case, too.  So the
  


14   flexibility is really key to reach the right audience
  


15   and the right location for the right project.
  


16            Some other comments, you know, our plan for
  


17   social media, you know, most all platforms, people can
  


18   comment on those.  So if we do get comments from those
  


19   Facebook ads, we will pull those down and include them
  


20   as needed in our public comment summaries.  But our
  


21   intent is to use those ads to drive the audience to the
  


22   websites where you can have that official comment and an
  


23   easier back and forth so we can respond to comments as
  


24   appropriate.
  


25            So, hopefully, I hope we provided a good
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 1   background for our current use of social media and what
  


 2   our hope is for future orders of social media providing
  


 3   that flexibility.
  


 4            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yeah, thank you.  And I, I am --
  


 5   I found this to be very helpful, enlightening.  I know
  


 6   it is a generational thing.  I learned today, for
  


 7   example, how specific and targeted Facebook could be.  I
  


 8   did not know it could be as targeted as a mailing.  I
  


 9   guess it makes sense, but it just, that's new to me that
  


10   it can be that precise.
  


11            So I will probably have general language in the
  


12   procedural order that will say kind of like we treat
  


13   signage, it will be something like use social media in a
  


14   manner discussed and directed during the prefiling
  


15   conference, or something like that, at least for this
  


16   coming case, just to keep it flexible and loose.  But I
  


17   think I have the intent.  I know the understanding.  It
  


18   will be the use of Facebook and Instagram to, to provide
  


19   notice of the hearing and the virtual, the virtual open
  


20   house in the area that has been discussed as the area
  


21   for the giving of notice, including that expanded area
  


22   to the east side of I-17.
  


23            At the last, the last time we had a meeting, we
  


24   did discuss what that area looked like and the size of
  


25   it.  And we actually got into a discussion of whether it
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 1   should be expanded a little, which you have done.  But
  


 2   did any of your exhibits describe that area yet today?
  


 3            MR. DUNCAN:  I am sorry, Mr. Chairman.  This is,
  


 4   this is Kevin Duncan.
  


 5            If we can bring Exhibit A, that's the Figure 1
  


 6   map, back up, I can use that to illustrate the area.
  


 7            CHMN. CHENAL:  I think we used numbers.  That
  


 8   will be Exhibit A -- excuse me, Exhibit 1.
  


 9            MR. DUNCAN:  So basically we include the study
  


10   area.  Everything within the study area boundary is part
  


11   of the notification area.  But we also included, if you
  


12   follow along the Carefree Highway over to basically
  


13   where state land, the state land begins to the north, I
  


14   am sorry, over and then basically all down to there,
  


15   then over to the east, and then down to Dove Valley
  


16   Road, and then back to the west, that's the area that we
  


17   added in.
  


18            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  And that's, looking at
  


19   Exhibit 1, it is the blue area just to the east of what
  


20   is depicted as Carefree Highway, Dove Valley Road, and
  


21   Sonoran Desert Drive.  It is the residential areas that
  


22   are to the east of North Valley Parkway and bordered on
  


23   the north by Carefree Highway and the south by Sonoran
  


24   Desert Drive, at least to the area indicated in blue,
  


25   and the east, which is the State Trust Land.  So that --
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 1   and all the area to the west, to the freeway.  So --
  


 2            MR. DUNCAN:  I want to clarify that it is the
  


 3   area east of the study area between Carefree Highway and
  


 4   Dove Valley Road.  We did not include the area south of
  


 5   Dove Valley Road.
  


 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  And was there a reason?
  


 7   It looks like they are going to be impacted just as much
  


 8   to the south of Dove Valley as to the north.
  


 9            MR. DUNCAN:  The only reason that I can offer,
  


10   and it is not a very good reason, is that's how it was
  


11   communicated to me.
  


12            MR. DERSTINE:  Kevin, can we expand it between
  


13   Dove Valley south to Sonoran Desert Drive?
  


14            MR. DUNCAN:  It is not going to be possible to
  


15   get the mailings to that lower area in time for the
  


16   virtual open house.  But we certainly could expand that
  


17   for the Facebook ad.
  


18            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, what about the noticing --
  


19   what about the hearing?  I think I am a little bit more
  


20   concerned about the hearing than the open house.
  


21            MR. DUNCAN:  The notice of hearing, that
  


22   certainly can be added in.
  


23            CHMN. CHENAL:  So let's do that.  Let's, let's
  


24   include that area south of Dove Valley Road to Sonoran
  


25   Desert Drive, and to the east -- and I can't tell from
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 1   this map how far east it goes.
  


 2            MR. DUNCAN:  It continues quite a ways beyond
  


 3   that boundary.
  


 4            CHMN. CHENAL:  In terms of residential property?
  


 5            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.
  


 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  You see the general north-south
  


 7   line from Carefree Highway where it becomes public,
  


 8   where it becomes the State Trust Land?
  


 9            MR. DUNCAN:  State land, yes, we can use that.
  


10   And then it looks like there is some sort of a wash or
  


11   canal there, or something there that could define as the
  


12   boundary.
  


13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yes, yes, okay.  Let's use that
  


14   as best as is possible to pick up that additional
  


15   residential area.
  


16            MR. DUNCAN:  Certainly.  No problem.
  


17            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  All right.  Good.  And at
  


18   least to make sure if we can pick that up for the
  


19   notification and Facebook and Instagram for the notice
  


20   of hearing.
  


21            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.
  


22            CHMN. CHENAL:  I know we would not be able to do
  


23   it for the virtual, the open house, but for the notice
  


24   of hearing, that would be good.
  


25            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.
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 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay, very good.
  


 2            All right.  Let's -- I think the rest of this
  


 3   should be pretty easy.  Let's go on to the rest of what
  


 4   I have on my checklist and talk about the hearing.
  


 5            The location.
  


 6            MR. DUNCAN:  Okay.  So the hearing location is
  


 7   intended to be at the Briarwood Country Club located at
  


 8   20800 North 135th Avenue in Sun City West.
  


 9            CHMN. CHENAL:  And the estimated time for this,
  


10   it is going to start changing very -- excuse me.  It is
  


11   July 26th at 1:00 p.m.  And then there will be an open
  


12   house or, excuse me, a public comment session that
  


13   evening starting at 5:30, I would like to say.
  


14            MR. DUNCAN:  We --
  


15            CHMN. CHENAL:  Then the remaining hearing dates
  


16   would be the times 9:30 to 5:00.
  


17            MR. DUNCAN:  We are estimating, Mr. Chairman,
  


18   that we believe that this can be finished by the end of
  


19   the day on the 28th.
  


20            CHMN. CHENAL:  And what hearing -- I am sorry.
  


21   I don't have it in the notice of hearing in front of me.
  


22   What -- let's see if I can pull that up.
  


23            The public comment will be taken in the evening
  


24   on the first day.  That's 5:30.  The hearing will begin
  


25   on the 26th at 1:00 p.m., July 26th.  And the remaining
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 1   days it will go from 9:00 to 5:00 until the completion
  


 2   of the hearing.
  


 3            So the question is:  Should the hearing be
  


 4   noticed to finish on the 28th, which is Wednesday, or
  


 5   should we add at least one extra day in there to be
  


 6   safe?
  


 7            MR. DERSTINE:  Let's add a day to be safe.
  


 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Is one enough?  Do
  


 9   you want to add two?
  


10            MS. BENALLY:  I think what we discussed --
  


11            I am sorry, Mr. Spitzkoff.  Go ahead.
  


12            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Mr. Chairman, I think we
  


13   certainly feel that one would be enough, given the
  


14   limited area of the project.
  


15            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  I just warn you.  It
  


16   sounds like that would be the case.  The unknown is
  


17   intervenors or people who are opposed to the project
  


18   come out of the woodwork that we don't know that could
  


19   delay.  I just, I will scare you, because we have
  


20   hearings set in August, in September, and a bunch of
  


21   people lining up for hearings in October.  So if we
  


22   don't complete it that week, you won't be seeing the
  


23   completion of this until November at the earliest.
  


24            MR. SPITZKOFF:  I think we are more than happy
  


25   to notice the whole week.
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 1            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah.  Do it.
  


 2            MS. BENALLY:  So I think July -- starting at
  


 3   1:00 on July 26th, and noticing it to 5:00 on Friday,
  


 4   July 30th, I think is adequate coverage for any
  


 5   unexpected matters that may come up.
  


 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  And I think, I think you should.
  


 7            The Committee is available, right, Tod?  The
  


 8   Committee is available that week?
  


 9            MR. BREWER:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.
  


10            CHMN. CHENAL:  So I know it is extremely
  


11   unlikely, and I will push and we can extend the hours of
  


12   the hearing as necessary, and we can move it along, and
  


13   I grant you, it should finish by Wednesday, it is just
  


14   the unknown.
  


15            I mean my sense is you don't have a -- it is no
  


16   one's fault, it is just that the waters haven't been
  


17   tested to find out if there is going to be opposition to
  


18   this or not, and you just don't know.  So because of
  


19   that, let's build in a little more, a safety valve just
  


20   for your benefit.
  


21            It wouldn't be such a big deal to me if we
  


22   didn't have all these hearings that are set up.  And I
  


23   am telling you it is just really jamb packed.  And I
  


24   mean there are ones we are trying to squeeze in between
  


25   now and October.  And we are -- even a three-day
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 1   hearing, we can't figure out a way how to do it.
  


 2            So I am not making this up.  This is, this is
  


 3   precious time that we have.  I would certainly take
  


 4   advantage of it, even though it is extremely unlikely
  


 5   that we will use it.  I just, I just say that.  I think
  


 6   it is wise to put it in there.
  


 7            And I know, I think there is authority to, if we
  


 8   only noticed it for three days and we won't know if it
  


 9   is going to go longer, I think there is authority that I
  


10   could continue the hearing, and we could do it that way.
  


11   But I just would feel safer and I think it is cleaner to
  


12   do it the way we just discussed.  So just --
  


13            MR. DUNCAN:  Agreed.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
  


14            CHMN. CHENAL:  -- that's what you are going to
  


15   do.
  


16            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, we are
  


17   certainly prepared to notice that whole week.
  


18            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  I think that's smart.
  


19            MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Chairman, I am sorry, before
  


20   you continue, would you please confirm that the start
  


21   time starting on the 27th through the 30th would be
  


22   9:00 a.m.?
  


23            CHMN. CHENAL:  9:00.  I misspoke when I said
  


24   9:30.  It is 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 --
  


25            MS. BENALLY:  Thank you.
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 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  -- as normally.
  


 2            And then the hearing on July 26th, the public
  


 3   comment portion would be at 5:30.  Okay?
  


 4            Standard issue of lodging, have arrangements
  


 5   been made by the applicant for lodging for those people
  


 6   that want lodging?
  


 7            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  Lodging
  


 8   has been arranged, availability at the Hilton Garden Inn
  


 9   located at 16601 North Stadium Way in Surprise.
  


10            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Thank you.
  


11            All right.  Moving on to the tour, we are not
  


12   going to have a tour in person.  But I would ask the
  


13   applicant to have, you know, a very good, strong flyover
  


14   presentation, Google flyover or something like that,
  


15   drones, whatever, that would take the place of a tour.
  


16   I believe we have discussed that previously.
  


17            Is that your intent?
  


18            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes, it is.
  


19            Mark, would you mind speaking to that briefly.
  


20            MR. TURNER:  Yes.  This is Mark Turner with
  


21   AECOM.
  


22            Yes, Kevin, we do have a draft flyover available
  


23   that I could share with you.  John has finished that
  


24   just as of this morning.  So you have not seen it yet,
  


25   but it is ready for internal review.
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 1            MR. DUNCAN:  Thank you, Mark.
  


 2            CHMN. CHENAL:  Perfect.
  


 3            Let's talk about a date for prehearing
  


 4   conference.  Did we already discuss a date?
  


 5            MS. BENALLY:  Not to my knowledge, Mr. Chair.
  


 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  So what about the 19th,
  


 7   July 19th, at 2:00 p.m.?  Does that make sense?
  


 8            MR. DERSTINE:  That works for me.
  


 9            MS. BENALLY:  Works for the applicant,
  


10   Mr. Chairman.
  


11            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right, Monday, July 19th, at
  


12   2:00 p.m.
  


13            I believe we have discussed there is no ongoing
  


14   litigation or disputes regarding this project or the
  


15   area that you intend, what is in the application, or
  


16   will be in the application, is that correct, Ms. Benally
  


17   or Mr. Derstine?
  


18            MS. BENALLY:  That's correct, Chairman.
  


19            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.
  


20            CHMN. CHENAL:  The procedural order, I will
  


21   issue that as we normally do.  And I think, like I said,
  


22   on social media, and, Tod, you will have to make a note
  


23   here, the social media will be something along the lines
  


24   of will be done in accordance with what was discussed at
  


25   the prefiling conference, something pretty general.  I
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 1   know that in the future matters will refine that
  


 2   language.
  


 3            The CEC, we will get that by the prehearing
  


 4   conference.  Kind of the general request is to do red
  


 5   line versions of any changes to the previous CECs so we
  


 6   can see what changes are made.  It might be extremely
  


 7   similar and very similar to the previous case but a few
  


 8   things have changed, and if you do a red line version,
  


 9   that's helpful.
  


10            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah.  Mr. Chairman, this is,
  


11   again, because this is an amendment process that will go
  


12   back to the Commission, this will be a recommended
  


13   opinion and order.
  


14            CHMN. CHENAL:  That's right.  That's right.
  


15            MR. DERSTINE:  And so our thought was, because
  


16   we are dealing with -- you are on what?  The last case
  


17   was 188?  This is CEC 120 and 131.
  


18            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yeah.
  


19            MR. DERSTINE:  Your conditions have evolved
  


20   probably significantly.  Well, I know they have since
  


21   then.
  


22            So our thought was for the conditions for this
  


23   limited segment of line that's going to be relocated, we
  


24   will simply, we will follow the general practice for
  


25   your line siting cases to include the updated conditions
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 1   rather than trying to negotiate conditions from Case 120
  


 2   to Case 188, that kind of thing.  And so we will, for
  


 3   this new segment of line, the relocated segment of the
  


 4   line, the new current conditions will apply, but we will
  


 5   have language in there that all of the remaining, you
  


 6   know, conditions as to the original CECs will remain
  


 7   unchanged or unaffected, it is just this, the relocated
  


 8   segment of line, that's going to fall under the new
  


 9   conditions.
  


10            CHMN. CHENAL:  I think that's fair.  That sounds
  


11   like it makes some sense.  And I think that will meet
  


12   the path of least resistance.
  


13            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah, our thought, too.
  


14            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yeah, that makes sense.
  


15            All right.  We always request robust wi-fi for
  


16   the hearing location.
  


17            Will the applicant be providing iPads or Surface
  


18   Pros or something with the application, exhibits
  


19   located -- downloaded on those devices?
  


20            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  We will be
  


21   providing you iPads.
  


22            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Good.
  


23            The applicant obviously will discuss with Staff
  


24   at the Corporation Commission covering all the costs for
  


25   the hearing?
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 1            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.
  


 2            CHMN. CHENAL:  Mr. Emedi, did you have any
  


 3   thoughts or comments regarding any of the matters you
  


 4   have heard so far?
  


 5            MR. EMEDI:  No.  Thank you, Chairman Chenal.
  


 6   Everything you guys have decided on sounds reasonable.
  


 7            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  I don't really have
  


 8   anything further.  Anything we need to talk about,
  


 9   Ms. Benally or Mr. Derstine, or anybody else on the
  


10   call?
  


11            (No response.)
  


12            CHMN. CHENAL:  So my to do list is to review the
  


13   notice of hearing, get that to Tod this afternoon.  And
  


14   then he will get it to you all.  And then I doubt there
  


15   will be -- I am not going to fill in the dates.  I will
  


16   leave it to you to do that.  If there is any changes, I
  


17   will note it.  I doubt that there will be.  But then you
  


18   will get it back to me on Monday or Tuesday.  And as
  


19   soon as I get it, I will turn it around and get it, and
  


20   get it back to Tod to get back to you.
  


21            Sound good?
  


22            MR. DERSTINE:  That sounds good.  Thank you.
  


23            CHMN. CHENAL:  Then you will, you will fill in
  


24   the dates for that, Mr. Derstine.  And I expect it will
  


25   be dated June 11th for the date of the signing of the
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 1   notice of hearing.  But, you know, give some thought to
  


 2   that and just make sure that works from your end.  But I
  


 3   will move that back right away.
  


 4            And then, Tod, just because this is our
  


 5   opportunity, we will work on that.  You will draft that
  


 6   procedural order.
  


 7            MR. BREWER:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.
  


 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  That's how we do it.
  


 9            And then we will have your agenda and the
  


10   other -- anything else we need ready to go.  And then,
  


11   because we will be moving quickly if it is going to be
  


12   filed here on June 11th, so we want to be ready to go.
  


13            And then we will see everyone on July 19th at
  


14   2:00 p.m. for the prehearing conference.  And if
  


15   anything comes up between now and then, we need to
  


16   speak, we will make ourselves available to do that.
  


17            MR. DERSTINE:  Thank you.
  


18            CHMN. CHENAL:  And if nothing else, thank you
  


19   very much.  We will adjourn.  And please have a good,
  


20   good weekend.  And we will see, we will see you back
  


21   here pretty soon.
  


22            (The
  


23    proceeding concluded at 3:24 p.m.)
  


24
  


25
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           1            CHMN. CHENAL:  Good afternoon, everyone.  My



           2   name is Tom Chenal.  This is the time set for the



           3   prefiling conference.



           4            And may I have appearances, please.



           5            Ms. Benally, do you want to start?  We just need



           6   appearances for the record, so if you just state your



           7   name and who you are here on behalf of.



           8            MS. BENALLY:  Linda Benally.  I represent APS.



           9            MR. DERSTINE:  Matt Derstine of Snell & Wilmer



          10   representing APS.



          11            MR. EMEDI:  Stephen Emedi on behalf of the



          12   Arizona Corporation Commission.



          13            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right, good.



          14            Sorry?



          15            MS. BENALLY:  Chairman.



          16            MR. LANGBAUM:  Can I introduce myself here?



          17            CHMN. CHENAL:  Sure.



          18            MR. LANGBAUM:  Kevin Langbaum on behalf of APS.



          19            CHMN. CHENAL:  Very good.  Thank you.



          20            MR. DERSTINE:  And I think we have got one or



          21   two others.



          22            Kevin Duncan, are you on as well?



          23            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.  I am Kevin Duncan on behalf



          24   of APS.



          25            MR. TURNER:  And also Mark Turner with AECOM,
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           1   consultant to APS.



           2            MS. CHAULK:  Hi.  And I am on, too.  I'm Anna



           3   Chaulk with APS in the regulatory department.



           4            And I apologize.  I am having connectivity.  So



           5   I am going to stay off camera.  I can see and hear you.



           6   And that's good enough for now.



           7            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.



           8            MS. CHAULK:  Thank you.



           9            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.



          10            MR. DERSTINE:  I will start just briefly.



          11            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Matt, I'm sorry.



          12            MR. DERSTINE:  Oh, there he is.



          13            Jason.



          14            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Jason Spitzkoff -- I apologize



          15   for my tardiness -- with APS.



          16            MR. DERSTINE:  Jason, would you please adjust



          17   your camera so the Chairman can see what you are



          18   wearing.



          19            CHMN. CHENAL:  Full disclosure, Jason.



          20            All right.  We are good.



          21            MR. DERSTINE:  Well, just briefly, so this is a



          22   prefiling conference.  You are right.  We have talked on



          23   this matter a couple of times through informal



          24   conferences.  I know you have your checklist, kind of



          25   the standard prefiling conference checklist.  We have
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           1   covered some of those things.  So I think we are ready.



           2   You gave us some input on some of those issues, sign



           3   locations, et cetera, study area.  So we took your good



           4   advice on those.



           5            I think in a prior one of our informal



           6   conferences you had suggested or requested that we give



           7   you a little bit of a presentation on APS's approach to



           8   the use of social media now that that's kind of come to



           9   the fore of the Committee.  I know your last, your



          10   procedural order for an upcoming case includes a



          11   provision on the use of social media.  So we have --



          12   Mr. Langbaum is here to give you a presentation on how



          13   APS has used and plans to use social media.



          14            And then I think we want to, when you get to



          15   those sections of your checklist on timing for



          16   publication and the notice, this hearing is scheduled



          17   for July the 26th.  We are filing our, we are scheduled



          18   to file the supplement.  Again, this is a, it is an



          19   amendment to two CECs.  It is under 40-252, but we are



          20   packaging this filing in support of the application to



          21   amend as a CEC application.  That is, it contains all



          22   the relevant information of a normal CEC application,



          23   which would, in my mind -- we are planning to comply



          24   with the rules, but Ms. Benally and I were talking



          25   earlier today.
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           1            I am a little bit concerned that, if we file on



           2   July 11th, that we would be way ahead of the



           3   July hearing date.  So when we get there, let's talk



           4   through that to see if it makes sense to adjust the time



           5   for either the filing of the supplement, although we are



           6   ready to go with that, or probably, more importantly,



           7   the publication of the notice of hearing so that it is



           8   closer in time to the hearing, and as well as the



           9   posting.  So when you get there, we are ready to talk



          10   about that a bit.



          11            And then as I mentioned on the social media



          12   issue, whenever you want to address that, Mr. Langbaum



          13   is ready to talk through and give you a bit of a



          14   presentation on APS and social media.



          15            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Very good.  Let's go



          16   through my checklist.  Again, I don't think this is



          17   going to take all that long, but I would be interested



          18   in the items that you just raised, Mr. Derstine.



          19            Let me ask just generally how much public



          20   interest there is in the project that might lead to



          21   additional public comment or intervenors or anything of



          22   that nature.



          23            MR. DERSTINE:  I will just jump in.



          24            In terms of the -- we just, we are just



          25   announcing the project.  Obviously the application to
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           1   amend has been filed.  Intervenors in those two siting



           2   cases, CEC 131 and CEC 120, have received notice.



           3   Beyond that, we are just getting ready to go forward



           4   with a virtual open house and newsletters or mailings



           5   that would publicize the open house.



           6            So I don't know that we are in a position now to



           7   gauge how much, you know, public interest or concern



           8   there will be over the project.  I think we anticipate



           9   that there won't be a lot given the nature of the case



          10   and what we are seeking to do, which is simply, you



          11   know, move the line a bit further north to accommodate



          12   the new TSMC project.  But I think the answer to your



          13   question is we don't really have an answer for you yet



          14   in terms of how much public interest there will be.



          15            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  All right.  Well,



          16   let's talk about just briefly the project description.



          17   And if there are any exhibits to go with this hearing,



          18   let's make sure they are marked and will be attached to



          19   the transcript.



          20            I think, you know, it is a little harder to do



          21   these remotely.  I think the last time I did it I forgot



          22   to use the magic words attach map or so and so as



          23   Exhibit A to the transcript.  So let's make sure we do



          24   that this time, or make sure I do it.



          25            So let's get a brief description and we will
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           1   attach any, review exhibits and attach those as



           2   exhibits.



           3            Mr. Derstine, if that's you, or if it is --



           4            MR. DERSTINE:  I think it is Mr. Spitzkoff



           5   and/or Mr. Duncan.



           6            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Very good.



           7            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Yes.  So I am going to go



           8   through the project description.  And I am going to



           9   bring it up to the screen.



          10            So this is the map, I think, you know, part of



          11   your reference that we will use and attach.  However --



          12            CHMN. CHENAL:  This would be Exhibit A, then, to



          13   the transcript.



          14            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Okay.  We will do that.



          15            CHMN. CHENAL:  We need to make sure the court



          16   reporter has a copy of any exhibit to the hearing.



          17            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Definitely.



          18            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.



          19            MR. DERSTINE:  I think we have forwarded



          20   whatever we are going to present on the screen and that



          21   you will identify as exhibits to this proceeding,



          22   Mr. Chairman.  We have then forwarded those to



          23   Mr. Brewer.  And I think he may have already forwarded



          24   those on to the court reporter, or will do so.  I think



          25   I'm right about that.
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           1            MR. BREWER:  That's correct.  I sent it to the



           2   reporter.



           3            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you, Tod.



           4            So we are looking at Figure 1, Project Vicinity



           5   Map, which will be Exhibit A to this conference.



           6            MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Spitzkoff, let me interrupt



           7   you before you start.



           8            To augment what Mr. Derstine just commented on,



           9   the only exhibit that we have not sent to Mr. Brewer is



          10   the PowerPoint presentation that Mr. Langbaum will be



          11   speaking from today.  We will send that over at the



          12   close of the hearing, meeting today.



          13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Very good.



          14            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Okay.  So, Mr. Chairman, the



          15   Figure 1 map, which will be Exhibit A, I will orient



          16   everyone to what we are seeing here.  So through the



          17   north-south alignment, sort of on the middle right side



          18   is the I-17, Interstate 17.  The alignment I am showing



          19   that's labeled as 74 here, this is Carefree Highway.  A



          20   little bit further down going east-west is the 303



          21   highway here.



          22            And then all of the shaded area in blue is state



          23   land.  That's designated as state land.  Anything that



          24   does not have a color is private land.



          25            And this, this other shade of blue, I don't
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           1   know, a little darker blue, is Game & Fish land.  So



           2   this is generally going to be covered over the Ben Avery



           3   facilities.  Coming down the middle of the page here,



           4   the 51st Avenue alignment, that's here.



           5            So going into some of the more detailed, what



           6   you see here, the dashed line that goes around this



           7   project is the project study area.  The red line that



           8   shows up coming through here, that's the existing



           9   500/230 line alignment as it is today.  It is already



          10   constructed.  It was authorized between CECs 131 and



          11   120.



          12            The blue hashed area that you see around that



          13   line, we are showing those -- we thought it was good



          14   reference -- that was the previously certificated



          15   corridor with those projects.  So we have those for



          16   reference.  The yellow or orange hash marks that you can



          17   see behind that here, that's the previously certificated



          18   siting area for the Avery substation.  The solid green



          19   is our Avery substation location.  Avery substation is



          20   covered in CEC 120.



          21            So we are staying within the certificated area.



          22   The subject of this amendment is going to be more about



          23   expanding the size of that substation.  But we are still



          24   within the previously certificated area.



          25            The dotted hash marked area here that you could
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           1   see outlines the TSMC land.  So that's the land they



           2   purchased from Arizona State Land Department in, I think



           3   it was, December of just this past year.



           4            The yellow hashed area will be the proposed



           5   corridor expansion.  So that will cover -- as you could



           6   see, the black line here is symbolized as the reroute of



           7   the existing line that we would like to do.  So, in



           8   essence, the red that you see between those, where the



           9   black line connects, will go away and be replaced by



          10   this black line routing here.  And the yellow is what



          11   our proposed expansion will be.  That will allow us to



          12   site that line with enough area to move it as far north



          13   as we need.



          14            The pink box represents the TS22 substation



          15   siting area.  So like the Avery box here, this box is



          16   the actual footprint representation of the Avery



          17   substation within the hashed siting area.  This box is



          18   equivalent to the orange siting area.  So a TS22



          19   substation would be somewhere within this box.  This



          20   box, I believe, I forget the exact number, I think it



          21   was 409, 439 acres, something like that.  The substation



          22   itself will be approximately 80 acres within there.



          23            And then -- so that's the project description.



          24   I think we will -- you will have future questions, talk



          25   about notice area and all that.  So I think I will stop
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           1   here for that part.



           2            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you.



           3            Well, let's then talk about the notice of



           4   hearing and other hearing issues and get into the social



           5   media and the timing of it.



           6            So, Mr. Derstine, I mean the proposed hearing



           7   dates are July 26 through, I don't know, 29th or 30th,



           8   depending how many days we want to make sure we have it



           9   reserved for.  But then I looked at the draft notice of



          10   hearing.  It looks appropriate to me.  I didn't



          11   really -- I took a quick look at it.  I just really got



          12   it.



          13            Let's talk about who you are going to publish



          14   the notice with.  I assume the Republic.



          15            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Duncan, do you want to



          16   talk about the --



          17            I mean, assuming we are going to file the



          18   supplement this -- the package that looks like a CEC



          19   application on June 11th, then I think Mr. Duncan is



          20   prepared to identify what our proposed publication dates



          21   are in the newspapers that we will use.



          22            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.  Thank you, Mr. Derstine.



          23            Mr. Chairman, the newspapers that we plan to



          24   publish in would be the Arizona Republic, Zones 1 and 3,



          25   on Wednesday, Friday -- sorry.  Their publication cycle
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           1   is Wednesday, Friday, Saturday.  We propose to publish



           2   on Wednesday, June 16th, and Saturday, June 19th, in



           3   that, for that newspaper.



           4            For the Foothills Focus, it covers portions of



           5   nearby areas.  It's publication cycle is only on



           6   Wednesday.  So we propose to publish also on Wednesday,



           7   June 16th.



           8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  A second publication or



           9   just the one for the Foothills?



          10            MR. DUNCAN:  Just the one.



          11            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  All right.  Well, that



          12   sounds acceptable.



          13            Mr. Derstine, have you and Ms. Benally had a



          14   discussion about the timing of the publication of giving



          15   of notice?



          16            MR. DERSTINE:  I just wanted to raise with you



          17   whether -- you know, this is, it is not different than,



          18   you know, other cases in which our hearing date is maybe



          19   40 days out from the filing of the application.  We just



          20   wanted to raise whether or not it is, given that it is



          21   really a 40-252 proceeding, and I will look for some



          22   legal advice from Staff through Mr. Emedi if he thinks



          23   otherwise, I don't think this is governed by 40-360 in



          24   terms of the timing rules, but we are happy to comply



          25   with those as if it were a new CEC application.  I just
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           1   wanted to raise whether you thought it made sense to



           2   delay the publication of the notice to a time that's



           3   closer to the July 26 hearing date, because we have the



           4   flexibility.  But maybe it makes sense, given all,



           5   everything, that we should just follow the rules as the



           6   statute is written, even though, technically, it is not



           7   a new CEC application.



           8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, let me ask this question.



           9   Mr. Emedi can ponder the answer to your question.  I



          10   didn't review the, you know, the statutes and the rules



          11   on the notice.  But aren't those more in terms of



          12   minimum time limit?  In other words, you have to have



          13   the publications and notice at least a certain number of



          14   days before.  I mean it is more, it is more a



          15   limitation.  It is not a maximum period, I guess is what



          16   I am saying.



          17            MR. DERSTINE:  Well, there is -- so, and I don't



          18   have it in front of me either, but my recollection is



          19   that 04, 40-360.04 says we have to provide notice within



          20   10 days of the filing of the application or actually you



          21   signing the notice of hearing.



          22            CHMN. CHENAL:  Notice of hearing, right.



          23            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah.  So that's the trigger.  So



          24   that starts that 10-day clock.  So we would have to



          25   publish within 10 days.  The timeline that Mr. Duncan
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           1   provided you complies with 04 in terms of meeting that



           2   first publication within the 10 days.  And then your



           3   procedural order requires that we get the signs in the



           4   ground 20 days before the hearing.  That's not a



           5   problem.



           6            CHMN. CHENAL:  Right.



           7            MR. DERSTINE:  It is posting.  But it is really



           8   the trigger of, you know, the early publication of the



           9   notice of hearing.  And we are happy to comply with it.



          10   We just, we just thought we would raise it with you.



          11            CHMN. CHENAL:  Let's do it the way that is.  It



          12   is within the 30 to 60 days, you know, after the -- the



          13   hearing would be within 30 to 60 days after technically



          14   the notice is given.  So let's just do it the way you



          15   proposed.



          16            MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.



          17            CHMN. CHENAL:  It is one less avenue of attack



          18   if someone wants to attack this down the road.  You



          19   know, clearly this will work, you know.  You know, if we



          20   deviate from it, who knows what kind of mischief someone



          21   could cause.



          22            MR. DERSTINE:  Right.  Very good.



          23            CHMN. CHENAL:  So...



          24            All right.  Signs and lo --



          25            Yes, Ms. Benally.
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           1            MS. BENALLY:  I am sorry, Mr. Chairman.



           2            So based on the review that we have done with



           3   the newspapers, they would have to have the final



           4   publication by the 9th of June, so just from a timing



           5   standpoint for you to be aware of when you issue your



           6   notice of hearing in order to meet the publication date



           7   of June 16th and June 19.



           8            CHMN. CHENAL:  So say that again, please.  When



           9   do they have to --



          10            MS. BENALLY:  June the 9th is the date that, I



          11   believe.



          12            Mr. Duncan, you can verify that for me if I am



          13   inaccurate.



          14            MR. DUNCAN:  No, you are correct.  June 9th is



          15   when those need to be at the newspaper.



          16            CHMN. CHENAL:  But I thought your filing is



          17   going to be June 11th.



          18            MR. DERSTINE:  Right.  So I guess we can, we can



          19   reconvene on that.



          20            But, so if we file June 11th, Kevin, if we slide



          21   back our -- and the Chairman signs the notice of hearing



          22   on or about June 11th, I assume we can still get a



          23   publication within 10 days.  We just may slide back from



          24   the June 16th original publication date.  And maybe what



          25   you have set up --
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           1            MR. DUNCAN:  Let me clarify.  Is it 10 business



           2   days or 10 calendar days?



           3            MR. DERSTINE:  10 days straight, yeah, calendar



           4   days.



           5            MR. DUNCAN:  I am going to say that they -- it



           6   would probably -- that's going to put it on the 10th



           7   day.  That would be -- because, because Foothills Focus



           8   only runs on Wednesday, and the Republic doesn't run on



           9   Monday or Tuesday.  So in both cases it would be the



          10   10th day.



          11            MR. DERSTINE:  So the Republic doesn't run ads



          12   on Monday or Tuesday in the zones that you are looking



          13   to publish, is that right?



          14            MR. DUNCAN:  That's right.  And Foothills Focus



          15   only runs on Wednesday.  So if we are talking about



          16   10 days from the 11th, that's -- let's see.



          17            Actually, we cannot meet that.  That would put



          18   us outside that window.



          19            CHMN. CHENAL:  It is really not 10 days from



          20   the -- and I apologize.  It is harder doing this when



          21   you are -- when I am not in the office and I have all my



          22   books in front of me and statutes and, you know.



          23            But I think the statute is not technically 10



          24   days from filing.  It is 10 -- it is within giving



          25   notice.
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           1            And, Mr. Derstine, maybe help me out here, but



           2   can we just -- can I just hold the notice of hearing and



           3   sign it a day later and start the clock ticking?  I



           4   mean, will that assist in meeting the schedule or give



           5   you --



           6            MR. DERSTINE:  Or it sounds like maybe what we



           7   would do is, can we file earlier?  Are we in a position



           8   to file earlier Kevin?  Does that work?



           9            MR. DUNCAN:  We are not in a position to file



          10   earlier.  In order for us to, in order for us to make



          11   10 days, because the publication date would be the 23rd,



          12   that's the earliest Wednesday we could get if we don't



          13   make the 16th.  And 10 days back from the 23rd is the



          14   13th.  That is the Sunday following our filing.



          15            MS. BENALLY:  I have the rule relating to the



          16   notice requirement.  So if you don't mind, I can share



          17   that really quickly.



          18            Basically it says:  The presiding officer shall,



          19   within 10 days after receiving an application, provide



          20   public notice as to time and place of hearing on the



          21   application.  So it is 10 days from the time the



          22   application is filed.



          23            CHMN. CHENAL:  Are you reading the statute or



          24   the rule?



          25            MS. BENALLY:  The rule.
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           1            CHMN. CHENAL:  You are reading the rule.  The



           2   statute is a little different.  But there is a little



           3   inconsistency there, I think.



           4            MR. DERSTINE:  Well, I guess the difficulty with



           5   this is that the particular -- we need to get one notice



           6   up within 10 days.



           7            And, Kevin, you are saying none of the, either



           8   the Republic or that Foothills paper won't accommodate



           9   that unless the Chairman signs it on the 9th?



          10            MR. DUNCAN:  That is correct.  Well, yes,



          11   because the 9th is the day we have to have it to the



          12   newspapers in order to -- they, both newspapers, require



          13   a week.



          14            CHMN. CHENAL:  Can I postdate it?  Can we give



          15   it to them on the 9th but I date it the 11th?



          16            MR. DUNCAN:  I don't think the newspaper is



          17   going to reject it, as long as we all feel that's



          18   aboveboard.



          19            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well --



          20            MR. DERSTINE:  It is effective on the 11th



          21   anyway.



          22            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yeah.  I don't know why it



          23   wouldn't be.  They just need something so they can get



          24   it in their publication process so it is ready to be



          25   published on the 16th.  I don't -- if what they publish
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           1   on the 16th is dated the 11th, I don't think they really



           2   care.



           3            MR. DERSTINE:  Right.



           4            CHMN. CHENAL:  Right?  I think, I mean correct



           5   me if I'm wrong, but I think that will work.  I am happy



           6   to do that, by the way.



           7            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah.  I think if we can -- you



           8   have our proposed draft notice of hearing.  You can



           9   review it and mark up whatever you think needs to be



          10   edited or changed.  And then if you are in a position to



          11   then sign it and postdate it effective the 11th, then we



          12   can send it back to the newspapers.  They can use that



          13   to do their markup and their galley sheet for the actual



          14   publication.  And that meets their timing requirements.



          15   I think that works legally and works for the paper.



          16            CHMN. CHENAL:  So today is the 4th.  5th, 6th,



          17   the 7th is Monday.  I will look at this this afternoon



          18   and I will get it back to Tod.  He can get it to you.



          19            I doubt there will be any changes other than



          20   filling in the dates and things like that.  I did look



          21   at it briefly.  Nothing jumped out at me.  So assuming



          22   you get it back later this afternoon, you can do it in



          23   final.  If you want to send it to me Monday, I can sign



          24   it and we get it back to you.  So you will have it on



          25   the 7th.  But we will have it dated the -- maybe if,
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           1   when you send it back for me to sign it, you can fill in



           2   the dates, you know, the 11th so I don't inadvertently



           3   write the 7th or whatever the date is.



           4            MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.



           5            CHMN. CHENAL:  I think that works.



           6            MR. DERSTINE:  Yep, I agree.



           7            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Signs and locations.



           8            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes, I will speak to that.



           9            So I know you have seen this map before.



          10            Jason, can you share the sign map, please.



          11            So once this --



          12            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Kevin, who are you asking?



          13            MR. DUNCAN:  I am sorry.  Jason, I thought -- I



          14   can bring it up.  Just give me a moment.  Sorry.  I



          15   didn't have it ready.



          16            MR. SPITZKOFF:  I have it.  I just didn't hear



          17   who you asked.



          18            MR. DUNCAN:  Oh, okay.



          19            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Okay.  That is Figure 1.  And



          20   here is our sign map.  This was, the base layer behind



          21   this is an older, older figure --



          22            MR. DUNCAN:  We are going to be updating --



          23            MR. SPITZKOFF:  -- that shows --



          24            MR. DUNCAN:  -- this, yeah, we are going to be



          25   updating this map just to reflect that if -- it does
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           1   show an older version, but in terms of the sign



           2   locations, they are accurate.



           3            So the Sign No. 1 location is just south of the



           4   entrance into the Ben Avery shooting facility but on the



           5   south side.  The sign will be placed on state lane.



           6            Sign No. 2 is at the south end of the entrance



           7   into the Arizona Game & Fish Department's headquarters,



           8   but, again, will be on the south side.



           9            Both of those signs are in areas that have



          10   established large turnoff areas.  So even though the



          11   signs will be set back from the road, there will be room



          12   there for people to pull up, take a picture safely



          13   and/or read the sign, and get back in their car and be



          14   on their way.



          15            Sign No. 3 is located adjacent to 51st Avenue.



          16   Again, it will be on state land.  And we are putting



          17   this in a location where there is an adequate pull-off



          18   area for people to safely be able to see that sign.



          19            And Sign No. 4, the appearance here shows it as



          20   if it is on the private land, but it actually will be on



          21   the state land, on the south there of the Carefree



          22   Highway alignment.  But, again, it will be on the state



          23   land but in an area where there is adequate room for



          24   people to pull over safely and photograph or view the



          25   sign.
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           1            So those four locations are all generally in the



           2   project vicinity in areas where people who are here by



           3   the area would see it.  And I know this has been



           4   discussed with you previously.  So those are our four



           5   locations.



           6            CHMN. CHENAL:  Those are fine to me.  Let's make



           7   the map we are looking at Exhibit 2 this conference,



           8   and, again, to make sure that the Colette has a copy.



           9            THE REPORTER:  Did you want 2 or B?



          10            CHMN. CHENAL:  B.  If the other one was A, this



          11   will be B.  If the first one was 1, this will be 2.



          12   Makes no difference.



          13            Okay.  I think that's good.  Let's talk now



          14   about social media.



          15            Mr. Langbaum.  Did I pronounce your name



          16   correctly?



          17            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes.  Thank you.



          18            MR. DUNCAN:  Do you want to review the sign



          19   text --



          20            CHMN. CHENAL:  I am sorry, yes.



          21            MR. DUNCAN:  -- before --



          22            CHMN. CHENAL:  I do.  And we do it for the



          23   record.  I jumped ahead because I already looked at it



          24   when it was sent to me earlier today.  And it looked



          25   acceptable.  But let's make sure that's correct.
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           1            And so this will become Exhibit No. 3.  Let's



           2   make them numerical, Colette.



           3            THE REPORTER:  Okay.



           4            MR. DUNCAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.



           5            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Okay.  I think I have the latest



           6   version, but I don't know.  We will find out.



           7            MS. BENALLY:  That is not the current version.



           8            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Okay.  Well, then, does anyone



           9   else have it?



          10            MS. BENALLY:  I sent it to the team at



          11   12:08 p.m.  Mr. Spitzkoff, would you mind checking your



          12   email to see if you might be able to look at it?



          13            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Yep, I got your email.



          14            MS. BENALLY:  Thank you very much.



          15            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Okay.  There we go.  That's it?



          16            MS. BENALLY:  Yes.  Thank you.



          17            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Okay.  Kevin, or I don't know



          18   who is talking to this.



          19            MR. DUNCAN:  Oh, yes.  So this is me.  This is



          20   talking about the -- this is the text that we intended



          21   for the roadside signs.



          22            Mr. Chairman.



          23            CHMN. CHENAL:  Can you scroll up so we can see



          24   the bottom?  Oh, it is just the -- okay.  That's it.



          25   All right.
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           1            MR. DERSTINE:  And we had elected, or I



           2   suggested that we not include a map just because it is



           3   hard to get all the relevant information in a letter



           4   size format people can read.  And so that was --



           5   (indiscernible).



           6            THE REPORTER:  Mr. Derstine.



           7            (The reporter requested repetition.)



           8            MR. DERSTINE:  My suggestion was not to include



           9   a map, Mr. Chairman.  I am not sure how you feel about



          10   it.  It just seems like a lot of information to put on a



          11   road sign.  But if we need to include the map on the



          12   sign, we can do it.



          13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, it is a difficult issue.  I



          14   would rather see a map.  I would rather see a map,



          15   frankly.  That's kind of the way we have done it in past



          16   hearings.



          17            I certainly would like to have the discussion



          18   with the Committee on that.  On the times I have seen



          19   signs, it is somewhat helpful.  And I don't think it



          20   would be too hard to add it.  I know that it would be



          21   accessible by the link, but I think it would be more



          22   helpful to have the map than not, even though this is



          23   squishing it a little to get it onto the sign.  And we



          24   can talk to the Committee about it when it comes up in



          25   the hearing if there is much, you know, if there is much
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           1   thought about, about whether or not to have the map



           2   associated with the sign.



           3            MR. DERSTINE:  Very good.



           4            MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Chairman, this is Ms. Benally.



           5   The only other comment I would like to make is the date



           6   and time will be revised to reflect whatever you advise



           7   that we set for this hearing.



           8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yeah.  I thought the 28th was a



           9   little optimistic.  I don't know.  Maybe it is not.



          10   Maybe we finish then.  But, you know, I may want to



          11   include a little more time just in case.  I don't know.



          12   We can talk about that in a minute.



          13            But the form looks fine to me.  The language



          14   looks fine.  I prefer, Mr. Derstine, to see a map.  I



          15   appreciate the issue.  But I would rather have it than



          16   not.  Then we can discuss it with the Committee when it



          17   comes up at the hearing just to make sure that, you



          18   know, the Committee is all on the same page going



          19   forward.  That would be a pretty big change to me, and I



          20   would rather have the input of the Committee on that.



          21            MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.



          22            CHMN. CHENAL:  So all right.



          23            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Do we need to provide this or



          24   have we already provided it as like Exhibit C?



          25            CHMN. CHENAL:  That would be Exhibit 3, yes.
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           1   What is on the screen will be marked as Exhibit 3 to



           2   this conference.  Thank you.



           3            Notice to affected jurisdictions.  Mr. Derstine,



           4   can you remind me which jurisdictions are affected by



           5   this?



           6            MR. DERSTINE:  I will let Mr. Spitzkoff or



           7   Mr. Duncan respond to that.



           8            MR. DUNCAN:  I will be happy to respond to that.



           9            So the, Mr. Chairman, the affected jurisdictions



          10   include the City of Phoenix.  The entire project area is



          11   within the City of Phoenix.  It also impacts the Arizona



          12   State Land Department, being that the entirety of the,



          13   the planned relocated line is on Arizona State Trust



          14   Land.



          15            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.



          16            MR. DERSTINE:  And is it also all within



          17   Maricopa County, Kevin?



          18            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes, it is all within Maricopa



          19   County as well.



          20            CHMN. CHENAL:  So I think we would want to



          21   include all three of those.



          22            MR. DERSTINE:  Right.



          23            MR. DUNCAN:  Very good.



          24            CHMN. CHENAL:  Any reason to include -- we don't



          25   have to -- Game & Fish?  I mean --
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           1            MR. DUNCAN:  We --



           2            CHMN. CHENAL:  -- it is south of their property,



           3   I understand.



           4            MR. DUNCAN:  We have not felt the need to



           5   include them, as there are no direct impacts.  Yeah, the



           6   line potentially would be moved closer to their



           7   property, but still at a great distance.  So we didn't



           8   feel it necessary.



           9            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Understood.  I don't



          10   dispute that.



          11            Mr. Langbaum, let's talk about social media now.



          12            MR. LANGBAUM:  Thank you.



          13            Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman.  My name is Kevin



          14   Langbaum.



          15            CHMN. CHENAL:  Langbaum.



          16            MR. LANGBAUM:  It is fine.



          17            I am the manager of customer communications at



          18   APS.  I have been here for 13 years, all in corporate



          19   communications, including eight years in which I have



          20   overseen our social media in various roles.



          21            I want to talk today a little bit about how we



          22   use social media with our line siting outreach.  So I am



          23   going to pull up a deck that I will walk through.



          24            Okay.  Let me know if you are seeing it.



          25            CHMN. CHENAL:  Not yet.
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           1            MR. DERSTINE:  And I think, as Ms. Benally



           2   indicated, we will get this deck to the court reporter.



           3   And I assume you will want to mark it for the record as



           4   Exhibit 4.



           5            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yes.  Thank you.



           6            MR. LANGBAUM:  Okay.  Are you seeing it now?



           7            CHMN. CHENAL:  Negative.



           8            MR. DUNCAN:  No.



           9            MR. DERSTINE:  No.



          10            MR. LANGBAUM:  Okay.  Let me try again.  It



          11   shows that I am sharing it.



          12            So how about now?



          13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yes.



          14            MR. LANGBAUM:  Okay.  So we are currently using



          15   a variety of channels to publicize line siting open



          16   houses, public comment or hearings, including direct



          17   mail, email, newspaper advertising, our websites, and



          18   social media.



          19            What we are, what we are using for social media



          20   is Facebook advertising.  This is part of an effective



          21   overall media mix.  We use advertising to reach



          22   customers geographically based on the impacted areas of



          23   the project.



          24            We can run these advertisements during the



          25   virtual open house period and point people through the
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           1   links in the ad to the virtual open house website and



           2   invite them to share their comments or ask questions.



           3            CHMN. CHENAL:  Oh, one second.  Can we go back?



           4            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes.



           5            CHMN. CHENAL:  What does the last comment mean?



           6   You have to dumb that one down for me.



           7            MR. LANGBAUM:  Okay.  So we have a Facebook



           8   page, an APS Facebook page.  We can post anything we



           9   want on it.  And the people who follow our page will



          10   see, only the people who followed our page would see



          11   that in their feeds.  That's referred to as an organic



          12   post.



          13            Paid advertising does not live on our page.  It



          14   shows up in the feeds of the people that we are trying



          15   to reach through the ad.  So it is a little bit



          16   different versus posting something on our page.  It



          17   really allows us to reach the desired audience.



          18            CHMN. CHENAL:  So, rather than organic posts,



          19   which I understand now to be, say, followers on



          20   Facebook, the specific audience is actually a larger



          21   audience of people who are not yet followers who you



          22   hope to reach.



          23            MR. LANGBAUM:  Correct.



          24            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  All right.  Thank you.



          25            MR. LANGBAUM:  Okay?  These are two examples of
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           1   recent efforts, the one on the left, a Facebook ad, the



           2   one on the right, that appears on Instagram, which is



           3   connected to Facebook.  So I will cover that in a



           4   moment.  These are within the last year.  I should point



           5   out that we have started doing these ads about the



           6   middle of last year.



           7            Facebook gives us a broad audience.  It is a



           8   popular site.  We have really good capabilities to reach



           9   the audiences.  We can do it based on a radius



          10   surrounding a certain area mileage-wise.  Others you can



          11   only look at zip codes.  So this is a really effective



          12   way of finding the folks that we want to reach in the



          13   areas surrounding the project.



          14            CHMN. CHENAL:  Mr. Langbaum, let me stop you



          15   right there.  Are you going to discuss in a moment what



          16   radius, for example, or area or zip code you are going



          17   to use for this project?  In other words, is this just



          18   background; you are going to get into the specifics of



          19   this case?



          20            MR. LANGBAUM:  I was not prepared to get into



          21   the specifics of this case.  This is background.  But we



          22   certainly can provide that information.



          23            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yeah.  So am I to understand that



          24   the methods you have just described will be the methods



          25   you will use for this project?
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           1            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes.



           2            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  And then, since this is an



           3   issue of the radius surrounding the project area, or the



           4   zip code, what would be your intent as to the radius you



           5   would use of the extent of the zip code area for this



           6   project for purposes of the social media, at least



           7   Facebook?



           8            MR. LANGBAUM:  So I am not prepared to answer



           9   that today.  I would have to research that and get back



          10   to you.  We would be able to provide that information.



          11            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, do you have like a -- do



          12   you have like thoughts or policies or, based on your



          13   previous cases, kind of what would normally, you would



          14   think, might be appropriate for a case like this?  Now,



          15   I'm not holding you to it of course.  I have no idea.  I



          16   mean I don't know if it extends to Wickenburg, to



          17   Carefree.



          18            MR. LANGBAUM:  Kevin, can --



          19            MR. DUNCAN:  If I might, Mr. Chairman.



          20            So in the last meeting that you had with our



          21   team, I was not in attendance but it was brought to my



          22   attention that there was a request to extend our



          23   notification area slightly to the east to encompass some



          24   residential neighborhoods east of I-17 in addition to



          25   our notification area, which comprised essentially the
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           1   study area, which was essentially what you saw on the



           2   map that was marked as Exhibit A.



           3            That additional notification area is primarily



           4   the area that these Facebook ads are going to be driven



           5   to.  I don't have an exact statement on the radius.  But



           6   the extended area was shared with the social media team



           7   at APS, and they designed a radius appropriate to



           8   encompass that.  And that is in addition to the other,



           9   you know, handful of property owners that would be



          10   receiving the -- that would have received the Facebook



          11   ad previously, such as the Arizona Game & Fish



          12   Department, the Arizona State Land Department, the Ben



          13   Avery Shooting Range, and a few commercial properties



          14   along the east side of I-17.



          15            So the radius on this one is being extended to



          16   include, it is probably what it is -- honestly, I don't



          17   have the exact reference in front of me -- but it is



          18   probably two separate radiuses that were created, one



          19   for the initial study area and then one for the added



          20   area to include those residences.



          21            That radius probably is somewhere on the order



          22   of about a quarter mile, because the additional area



          23   would be, if you looked at it as a circle, would be



          24   about a, about a quarter mile, you know, if it was, if



          25   it was -- if you were to measure it, about a quarter
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           1   mile dimensionally in each direction.



           2            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman.



           3            Kevin, I am sorry.



           4            I was just going to note I think our objective



           5   in using these targeted Facebook ads, Mr. Chairman, is



           6   to mirror the notifications or the mailing list that we



           7   would pull up.  So all the addresses in our notification



           8   area, we are looking to kind of cover that same map with



           9   our Facebook, with our targeted Facebook ads so that the



          10   bulk who we have identified would be within the



          11   notification area.



          12            In this case, as Kevin mentioned, we decided to



          13   expand it to include some of those subdivisions a little



          14   bit further east of I-17.  But those folks will get the



          15   mailings, and they will also be targeted with these



          16   Facebook ads.



          17            And so that's really, when we are using the term



          18   radius here, as I understand what we are really looking



          19   at is trying to mirror the same notification area that



          20   would cover our mailing list for paper mailing.



          21            Is that right, Kevin?



          22            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.



          23            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes, that's right.



          24            CHMN. CHENAL:  And I appreciate that.  That



          25   gives, that gives some, you know, context to this.
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           1            I remember in the last meeting we did discuss



           2   picking up a little of the neighborhood to the east of



           3   where, of what had been proposed and that those people



           4   would receive mailers, if I remember correctly.



           5            So the Facebook ads and targeted area would try



           6   to mirror the notice, the same noticed area for the



           7   mailers.  You will have to forgive me.  I didn't know



           8   Facebook could be that precise.



           9            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes.  That's one of the



          10   advantages we find to using these ads.



          11            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  All right.  Thanks,



          12   Mr. Langbaum.  Go ahead.



          13            MR. LANGBAUM:  Thank you.  Okay.



          14            CHMN. CHENAL:  I wanted to clarify that, and I



          15   now have it.  So thank you.



          16            MR. LANGBAUM:  Thank you.



          17            So I just want to cover a few of the benefits



          18   and the limitations, reemphasizing social media is an



          19   additional way of reaching customers.  Part of the mix



          20   that we have said also includes the mailed notice, the



          21   emails and newspaper advertisements.  It can be a cost



          22   effective and, as we just discussed, geographically



          23   specific way of pointing people to the website or the



          24   comment area.



          25            As with anything else, you have limitations.
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           1   Not everyone uses social media.  Not everyone is on all



           2   channels of social media.  And even on Facebook we can't



           3   guarantee that, even if you are in that zone, you will



           4   see our ads.  We can, we can do our best.  Like the



           5   traditional tactics, it is effective when it is



           6   appropriate to the audience.  So we are using it as



           7   another tool in our toolkit.



           8            MR. DERSTINE:  Kevin, I am sorry.  Can I stop



           9   you for a minute with a question?



          10            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes.



          11            MR. DERSTINE:  I saw you had Instagram and



          12   Facebook.  I understand Facebook owns Instagram.  So if



          13   I am on Instagram but I am not on Facebook, or vice



          14   versa, if you are placing a Facebook ad and I just use



          15   Instagram, am I going to see that on my feed?  Is there



          16   the same geographic targeting for Instagram that you



          17   have for Facebook?



          18            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes, it should be.  One of the



          19   advantages to Facebook is, because the platforms are



          20   connected, we can reach Instagram as well.



          21            MR. DERSTINE:  So --



          22            CHMN. CHENAL:  And then -- sorry.



          23            MR. DERSTINE:  Well, I was just going to say,



          24   when we had some comments from the last case,



          25   particularly from Member Gentles, who said, you know,
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           1   the younger folks use Instagram, maybe the folks in my



           2   generation or older have taken off with Facebook, would



           3   work.  When APS is placing a targeted Facebook ad,



           4   trying to publicize an upcoming case for an open house



           5   for a case, it is going to go through to both channels.



           6   Am I right in understanding that?



           7            MR. LANGBAUM:  Yes, that's correct.



           8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Now, my question is:  What is



           9   being advertised on Facebook and Instagram?  Is it the



          10   open house or is it the hearing that's coming up, or



          11   both?



          12            MR. LANGBAUM:  Typically, and, Kevin, you can



          13   chime in as well on this, but these examples here are --



          14   show ads for the virtual open house, which would go out



          15   kind of timed to the beginning of that open house so



          16   that these would be served for several weeks during the



          17   duration of the virtual open house.



          18            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.  Thank you, Kevin.



          19            Mr. Chairman, on this, for this project



          20   specifically, the upcoming Facebook ad would coincide



          21   with the opening of our virtual open house and would



          22   direct people to the virtual open house.  We would again



          23   use the Facebook ad in conjunction with our notice of



          24   hearing to help publicize the notice of hearing.  That



          25   is a second use that we would have upcoming adjacent to
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           1   the announcement of the virtual open house.



           2            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Let's stop there and just



           3   key in on that for a second.  Okay.  So the notice of



           4   hearing will also be advertised in the same targeted



           5   area as we discussed, both on Facebook and Instagram,



           6   correct?



           7            MR. DUNCAN:  That is correct.



           8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Very good.



           9            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Mr. Chairman, just to clarify,



          10   our intent with our use of social media in this manner



          11   is really to mimic the mailings.  So if we do a mailing,



          12   we would do a social media ad campaign with that.  So if



          13   we do a mailing for the virtual open house, or in the



          14   future even a regular open house, we would do a



          15   mailing -- we would do the social media ads.  Same thing



          16   when we put a mailing out for notice of hearing, we



          17   would do notice in the social media also.  So it is



          18   another -- if we are going to send out a postcard or a



          19   newsletter, we will also do the social media version.



          20            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Very good.



          21            MR. LANGBAUM:  So one other thing I want to



          22   cover in regards to social media is it is, by nature, an



          23   engaged, a two-way engaged conversation.  While we do



          24   provide a link to the virtual open house where customers



          25   can put their input into the record there, we will treat
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           1   comments that come in through social media as if they



           2   are coming into every other appropriate channel.  So we



           3   will forward those to the project team.  They will be



           4   logged and they will be responded to as appropriate.



           5            So we do, we do not get a lot on social media



           6   comments about it because there are other venues to do



           7   that, but we do have a process in place to handle that.



           8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you.



           9            MR. LANGBAUM:  I want to just talk a little bit



          10   about some of the other social media channels.  For



          11   Twitter, we do not do the advertising there.  It has a



          12   much smaller audience.  It doesn't have the ability to



          13   target as effectively with the geographic areas.



          14            And then NextDoor is relatively new.  It is



          15   growing.  It is evolving.  We will continue to monitor,



          16   evaluate, and adjust our best practices in terms of



          17   using that as appropriate.  So that's something we are



          18   definitely keeping an eye on.



          19            And then the last slide I am going to kick over



          20   to Jason.  He is going to have some summary of kind of



          21   recommendations.



          22            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Thank you, Kevin.



          23            So, Mr. Chairman, you know, we wanted to provide



          24   a background of what our evaluation and our use of



          25   social media is to date.  You know, I think you had
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           1   indicated a desire to hear a little bit about that.



           2            As you have seen from Kevin's presentation here,



           3   APS's use at this time is primarily in the Facebook ads



           4   and, you know, the attached Instagram audience also.  We



           5   feel that is the best use of social media to date.  As



           6   he also just mentioned, social media, the platforms that



           7   are out there are always evolving.  So we will, you



           8   know, continuously evaluate the uses and the platforms.



           9            So with that, you know, our recommendation, you



          10   know, for future orders regarding use of social media



          11   would be to have it as broad as possible and, you know,



          12   not as specific, because the uses could even change



          13   depending upon the nature of the case, too.  So the



          14   flexibility is really key to reach the right audience



          15   and the right location for the right project.



          16            Some other comments, you know, our plan for



          17   social media, you know, most all platforms, people can



          18   comment on those.  So if we do get comments from those



          19   Facebook ads, we will pull those down and include them



          20   as needed in our public comment summaries.  But our



          21   intent is to use those ads to drive the audience to the



          22   websites where you can have that official comment and an



          23   easier back and forth so we can respond to comments as



          24   appropriate.



          25            So, hopefully, I hope we provided a good
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           1   background for our current use of social media and what



           2   our hope is for future orders of social media providing



           3   that flexibility.



           4            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yeah, thank you.  And I, I am --



           5   I found this to be very helpful, enlightening.  I know



           6   it is a generational thing.  I learned today, for



           7   example, how specific and targeted Facebook could be.  I



           8   did not know it could be as targeted as a mailing.  I



           9   guess it makes sense, but it just, that's new to me that



          10   it can be that precise.



          11            So I will probably have general language in the



          12   procedural order that will say kind of like we treat



          13   signage, it will be something like use social media in a



          14   manner discussed and directed during the prefiling



          15   conference, or something like that, at least for this



          16   coming case, just to keep it flexible and loose.  But I



          17   think I have the intent.  I know the understanding.  It



          18   will be the use of Facebook and Instagram to, to provide



          19   notice of the hearing and the virtual, the virtual open



          20   house in the area that has been discussed as the area



          21   for the giving of notice, including that expanded area



          22   to the east side of I-17.



          23            At the last, the last time we had a meeting, we



          24   did discuss what that area looked like and the size of



          25   it.  And we actually got into a discussion of whether it
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           1   should be expanded a little, which you have done.  But



           2   did any of your exhibits describe that area yet today?



           3            MR. DUNCAN:  I am sorry, Mr. Chairman.  This is,



           4   this is Kevin Duncan.



           5            If we can bring Exhibit A, that's the Figure 1



           6   map, back up, I can use that to illustrate the area.



           7            CHMN. CHENAL:  I think we used numbers.  That



           8   will be Exhibit A -- excuse me, Exhibit 1.



           9            MR. DUNCAN:  So basically we include the study



          10   area.  Everything within the study area boundary is part



          11   of the notification area.  But we also included, if you



          12   follow along the Carefree Highway over to basically



          13   where state land, the state land begins to the north, I



          14   am sorry, over and then basically all down to there,



          15   then over to the east, and then down to Dove Valley



          16   Road, and then back to the west, that's the area that we



          17   added in.



          18            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  And that's, looking at



          19   Exhibit 1, it is the blue area just to the east of what



          20   is depicted as Carefree Highway, Dove Valley Road, and



          21   Sonoran Desert Drive.  It is the residential areas that



          22   are to the east of North Valley Parkway and bordered on



          23   the north by Carefree Highway and the south by Sonoran



          24   Desert Drive, at least to the area indicated in blue,



          25   and the east, which is the State Trust Land.  So that --
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           1   and all the area to the west, to the freeway.  So --



           2            MR. DUNCAN:  I want to clarify that it is the



           3   area east of the study area between Carefree Highway and



           4   Dove Valley Road.  We did not include the area south of



           5   Dove Valley Road.



           6            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  And was there a reason?



           7   It looks like they are going to be impacted just as much



           8   to the south of Dove Valley as to the north.



           9            MR. DUNCAN:  The only reason that I can offer,



          10   and it is not a very good reason, is that's how it was



          11   communicated to me.



          12            MR. DERSTINE:  Kevin, can we expand it between



          13   Dove Valley south to Sonoran Desert Drive?



          14            MR. DUNCAN:  It is not going to be possible to



          15   get the mailings to that lower area in time for the



          16   virtual open house.  But we certainly could expand that



          17   for the Facebook ad.



          18            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, what about the noticing --



          19   what about the hearing?  I think I am a little bit more



          20   concerned about the hearing than the open house.



          21            MR. DUNCAN:  The notice of hearing, that



          22   certainly can be added in.



          23            CHMN. CHENAL:  So let's do that.  Let's, let's



          24   include that area south of Dove Valley Road to Sonoran



          25   Desert Drive, and to the east -- and I can't tell from
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           1   this map how far east it goes.



           2            MR. DUNCAN:  It continues quite a ways beyond



           3   that boundary.



           4            CHMN. CHENAL:  In terms of residential property?



           5            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.



           6            CHMN. CHENAL:  You see the general north-south



           7   line from Carefree Highway where it becomes public,



           8   where it becomes the State Trust Land?



           9            MR. DUNCAN:  State land, yes, we can use that.



          10   And then it looks like there is some sort of a wash or



          11   canal there, or something there that could define as the



          12   boundary.



          13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yes, yes, okay.  Let's use that



          14   as best as is possible to pick up that additional



          15   residential area.



          16            MR. DUNCAN:  Certainly.  No problem.



          17            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  All right.  Good.  And at



          18   least to make sure if we can pick that up for the



          19   notification and Facebook and Instagram for the notice



          20   of hearing.



          21            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.



          22            CHMN. CHENAL:  I know we would not be able to do



          23   it for the virtual, the open house, but for the notice



          24   of hearing, that would be good.



          25            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.
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           1            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay, very good.



           2            All right.  Let's -- I think the rest of this



           3   should be pretty easy.  Let's go on to the rest of what



           4   I have on my checklist and talk about the hearing.



           5            The location.



           6            MR. DUNCAN:  Okay.  So the hearing location is



           7   intended to be at the Briarwood Country Club located at



           8   20800 North 135th Avenue in Sun City West.



           9            CHMN. CHENAL:  And the estimated time for this,



          10   it is going to start changing very -- excuse me.  It is



          11   July 26th at 1:00 p.m.  And then there will be an open



          12   house or, excuse me, a public comment session that



          13   evening starting at 5:30, I would like to say.



          14            MR. DUNCAN:  We --



          15            CHMN. CHENAL:  Then the remaining hearing dates



          16   would be the times 9:30 to 5:00.



          17            MR. DUNCAN:  We are estimating, Mr. Chairman,



          18   that we believe that this can be finished by the end of



          19   the day on the 28th.



          20            CHMN. CHENAL:  And what hearing -- I am sorry.



          21   I don't have it in the notice of hearing in front of me.



          22   What -- let's see if I can pull that up.



          23            The public comment will be taken in the evening



          24   on the first day.  That's 5:30.  The hearing will begin



          25   on the 26th at 1:00 p.m., July 26th.  And the remaining
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           1   days it will go from 9:00 to 5:00 until the completion



           2   of the hearing.



           3            So the question is:  Should the hearing be



           4   noticed to finish on the 28th, which is Wednesday, or



           5   should we add at least one extra day in there to be



           6   safe?



           7            MR. DERSTINE:  Let's add a day to be safe.



           8            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Is one enough?  Do



           9   you want to add two?



          10            MS. BENALLY:  I think what we discussed --



          11            I am sorry, Mr. Spitzkoff.  Go ahead.



          12            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Mr. Chairman, I think we



          13   certainly feel that one would be enough, given the



          14   limited area of the project.



          15            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  I just warn you.  It



          16   sounds like that would be the case.  The unknown is



          17   intervenors or people who are opposed to the project



          18   come out of the woodwork that we don't know that could



          19   delay.  I just, I will scare you, because we have



          20   hearings set in August, in September, and a bunch of



          21   people lining up for hearings in October.  So if we



          22   don't complete it that week, you won't be seeing the



          23   completion of this until November at the earliest.



          24            MR. SPITZKOFF:  I think we are more than happy



          25   to notice the whole week.
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           1            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah.  Do it.



           2            MS. BENALLY:  So I think July -- starting at



           3   1:00 on July 26th, and noticing it to 5:00 on Friday,



           4   July 30th, I think is adequate coverage for any



           5   unexpected matters that may come up.



           6            CHMN. CHENAL:  And I think, I think you should.



           7            The Committee is available, right, Tod?  The



           8   Committee is available that week?



           9            MR. BREWER:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.



          10            CHMN. CHENAL:  So I know it is extremely



          11   unlikely, and I will push and we can extend the hours of



          12   the hearing as necessary, and we can move it along, and



          13   I grant you, it should finish by Wednesday, it is just



          14   the unknown.



          15            I mean my sense is you don't have a -- it is no



          16   one's fault, it is just that the waters haven't been



          17   tested to find out if there is going to be opposition to



          18   this or not, and you just don't know.  So because of



          19   that, let's build in a little more, a safety valve just



          20   for your benefit.



          21            It wouldn't be such a big deal to me if we



          22   didn't have all these hearings that are set up.  And I



          23   am telling you it is just really jamb packed.  And I



          24   mean there are ones we are trying to squeeze in between



          25   now and October.  And we are -- even a three-day
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           1   hearing, we can't figure out a way how to do it.



           2            So I am not making this up.  This is, this is



           3   precious time that we have.  I would certainly take



           4   advantage of it, even though it is extremely unlikely



           5   that we will use it.  I just, I just say that.  I think



           6   it is wise to put it in there.



           7            And I know, I think there is authority to, if we



           8   only noticed it for three days and we won't know if it



           9   is going to go longer, I think there is authority that I



          10   could continue the hearing, and we could do it that way.



          11   But I just would feel safer and I think it is cleaner to



          12   do it the way we just discussed.  So just --



          13            MR. DUNCAN:  Agreed.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.



          14            CHMN. CHENAL:  -- that's what you are going to



          15   do.



          16            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, we are



          17   certainly prepared to notice that whole week.



          18            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  I think that's smart.



          19            MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Chairman, I am sorry, before



          20   you continue, would you please confirm that the start



          21   time starting on the 27th through the 30th would be



          22   9:00 a.m.?



          23            CHMN. CHENAL:  9:00.  I misspoke when I said



          24   9:30.  It is 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 --



          25            MS. BENALLY:  Thank you.
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           1            CHMN. CHENAL:  -- as normally.



           2            And then the hearing on July 26th, the public



           3   comment portion would be at 5:30.  Okay?



           4            Standard issue of lodging, have arrangements



           5   been made by the applicant for lodging for those people



           6   that want lodging?



           7            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes.  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  Lodging



           8   has been arranged, availability at the Hilton Garden Inn



           9   located at 16601 North Stadium Way in Surprise.



          10            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Thank you.



          11            All right.  Moving on to the tour, we are not



          12   going to have a tour in person.  But I would ask the



          13   applicant to have, you know, a very good, strong flyover



          14   presentation, Google flyover or something like that,



          15   drones, whatever, that would take the place of a tour.



          16   I believe we have discussed that previously.



          17            Is that your intent?



          18            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes, it is.



          19            Mark, would you mind speaking to that briefly.



          20            MR. TURNER:  Yes.  This is Mark Turner with



          21   AECOM.



          22            Yes, Kevin, we do have a draft flyover available



          23   that I could share with you.  John has finished that



          24   just as of this morning.  So you have not seen it yet,



          25   but it is ready for internal review.
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           1            MR. DUNCAN:  Thank you, Mark.



           2            CHMN. CHENAL:  Perfect.



           3            Let's talk about a date for prehearing



           4   conference.  Did we already discuss a date?



           5            MS. BENALLY:  Not to my knowledge, Mr. Chair.



           6            CHMN. CHENAL:  So what about the 19th,



           7   July 19th, at 2:00 p.m.?  Does that make sense?



           8            MR. DERSTINE:  That works for me.



           9            MS. BENALLY:  Works for the applicant,



          10   Mr. Chairman.



          11            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right, Monday, July 19th, at



          12   2:00 p.m.



          13            I believe we have discussed there is no ongoing



          14   litigation or disputes regarding this project or the



          15   area that you intend, what is in the application, or



          16   will be in the application, is that correct, Ms. Benally



          17   or Mr. Derstine?



          18            MS. BENALLY:  That's correct, Chairman.



          19            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.



          20            CHMN. CHENAL:  The procedural order, I will



          21   issue that as we normally do.  And I think, like I said,



          22   on social media, and, Tod, you will have to make a note



          23   here, the social media will be something along the lines



          24   of will be done in accordance with what was discussed at



          25   the prefiling conference, something pretty general.  I
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           1   know that in the future matters will refine that



           2   language.



           3            The CEC, we will get that by the prehearing



           4   conference.  Kind of the general request is to do red



           5   line versions of any changes to the previous CECs so we



           6   can see what changes are made.  It might be extremely



           7   similar and very similar to the previous case but a few



           8   things have changed, and if you do a red line version,



           9   that's helpful.



          10            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah.  Mr. Chairman, this is,



          11   again, because this is an amendment process that will go



          12   back to the Commission, this will be a recommended



          13   opinion and order.



          14            CHMN. CHENAL:  That's right.  That's right.



          15            MR. DERSTINE:  And so our thought was, because



          16   we are dealing with -- you are on what?  The last case



          17   was 188?  This is CEC 120 and 131.



          18            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yeah.



          19            MR. DERSTINE:  Your conditions have evolved



          20   probably significantly.  Well, I know they have since



          21   then.



          22            So our thought was for the conditions for this



          23   limited segment of line that's going to be relocated, we



          24   will simply, we will follow the general practice for



          25   your line siting cases to include the updated conditions
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           1   rather than trying to negotiate conditions from Case 120



           2   to Case 188, that kind of thing.  And so we will, for



           3   this new segment of line, the relocated segment of the



           4   line, the new current conditions will apply, but we will



           5   have language in there that all of the remaining, you



           6   know, conditions as to the original CECs will remain



           7   unchanged or unaffected, it is just this, the relocated



           8   segment of line, that's going to fall under the new



           9   conditions.



          10            CHMN. CHENAL:  I think that's fair.  That sounds



          11   like it makes some sense.  And I think that will meet



          12   the path of least resistance.



          13            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah, our thought, too.



          14            CHMN. CHENAL:  Yeah, that makes sense.



          15            All right.  We always request robust wi-fi for



          16   the hearing location.



          17            Will the applicant be providing iPads or Surface



          18   Pros or something with the application, exhibits



          19   located -- downloaded on those devices?



          20            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  We will be



          21   providing you iPads.



          22            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Good.



          23            The applicant obviously will discuss with Staff



          24   at the Corporation Commission covering all the costs for



          25   the hearing?
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           1            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.



           2            CHMN. CHENAL:  Mr. Emedi, did you have any



           3   thoughts or comments regarding any of the matters you



           4   have heard so far?



           5            MR. EMEDI:  No.  Thank you, Chairman Chenal.



           6   Everything you guys have decided on sounds reasonable.



           7            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  I don't really have



           8   anything further.  Anything we need to talk about,



           9   Ms. Benally or Mr. Derstine, or anybody else on the



          10   call?



          11            (No response.)



          12            CHMN. CHENAL:  So my to do list is to review the



          13   notice of hearing, get that to Tod this afternoon.  And



          14   then he will get it to you all.  And then I doubt there



          15   will be -- I am not going to fill in the dates.  I will



          16   leave it to you to do that.  If there is any changes, I



          17   will note it.  I doubt that there will be.  But then you



          18   will get it back to me on Monday or Tuesday.  And as



          19   soon as I get it, I will turn it around and get it, and



          20   get it back to Tod to get back to you.



          21            Sound good?



          22            MR. DERSTINE:  That sounds good.  Thank you.



          23            CHMN. CHENAL:  Then you will, you will fill in



          24   the dates for that, Mr. Derstine.  And I expect it will



          25   be dated June 11th for the date of the signing of the
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           1   notice of hearing.  But, you know, give some thought to



           2   that and just make sure that works from your end.  But I



           3   will move that back right away.



           4            And then, Tod, just because this is our



           5   opportunity, we will work on that.  You will draft that



           6   procedural order.



           7            MR. BREWER:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.



           8            CHMN. CHENAL:  That's how we do it.



           9            And then we will have your agenda and the



          10   other -- anything else we need ready to go.  And then,



          11   because we will be moving quickly if it is going to be



          12   filed here on June 11th, so we want to be ready to go.



          13            And then we will see everyone on July 19th at



          14   2:00 p.m. for the prehearing conference.  And if



          15   anything comes up between now and then, we need to



          16   speak, we will make ourselves available to do that.



          17            MR. DERSTINE:  Thank you.



          18            CHMN. CHENAL:  And if nothing else, thank you



          19   very much.  We will adjourn.  And please have a good,



          20   good weekend.  And we will see, we will see you back



          21   here pretty soon.



          22            (The



          23    proceeding concluded at 3:24 p.m.)



          24



          25
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